
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 4 June 2018

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
On: Tuesday 12 June 2018 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall Bideford

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor J Hellyer (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, J Himan and R Julian

Non Elected Member: Alastair C Ashworth

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)
Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 February 2018.

3.  Declaration of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.

4.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 

5.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair 



- 2 -

6.  Audit Manager's Opinion (Pages 9 - 26)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager.

7.  Annual Governance Statement - Final Review (Pages 27 - 55)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Manager.

8.  Draft Accounts 2017 - 2018 (Pages 56 - 157)
To receive the draft accounts from the Statutory Finance Officer.

9.  Waivers and Non-compliance with Procedure Rules (Pages 158 - 167)
To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer.

10.  2018/19 Audit Fee Letter (Pages 168 - 170)
To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

11.  Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 171 - 185)
To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

12.  Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 186 - 201)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager.

13.  Progress with Agreed Audit Actions (Pages 202 - 207)
To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer.

14.  The Local Audit Quality Forum 
To receive a verbal update from the Chair.

15.  Forward Plan (Page 208)

16.  Corporate Assurance Risk Register - June 2018 (Pages 209 - 221)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

17.  Exclusion of the Public 
The Chair to move:

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

18.  PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 13 February 2018 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillors B Boundy, R Julian, C Simmons (substituting for D 
Brenton) and G Dezart (substituting for S Robinson)

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis
C Dobbs
B Davies

- Senior Solicitor
- Service Improvement Officer
- DAP

M Bartlett - Grant Thornton Audit Manager
T Vanstone - Democratic Services Officer

-
APOLOGIES J Himan, S Robinson, D Brenton, G Daly – Grant Thornton, R 

Hutchins  - DAP

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

127.   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 5 December were presented. 

It was proposed by Alastair Ashworth, seconded by Councillor Hackett and –

Resolved:

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For 2, Abstention 4)

Minute 116

The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave an update on the IT security policy. The 
Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that he is working with Devon County 
Council who have already produced their own policy which meets similar 
requirements. Devon County Council are due to report back on the IT security 
policy on 23 February.

Minute 117

The Strategic Manager (Resources) reported back to the committee regarding the 
waste contract with Peake GB. The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

the Waste Manager was in discussions with colleagues at other Councils and they 
were in agreement that the council could continue to work with Peake GB under the 
current arrangement even though there was no formal contact.

Mr Ashworth raised that a written contract should be put into place.

128.   ACTION LIST 

The Audit Manager from DAP confirmed that currently under the Housing Benefit 
rules, if a local authority is worried about fraud then this should be  reported to the 
DWP.

The Audit Manager from DAP confirmed that once Torridge District Council move 
over to Universal Credit in July 2018, any fraudulent benefit activity will continued to 
be dealt with by the DWP.

The Audit Manager concluded that there is no reason why Torridge District Council 
should be affected by fraud once Universal Credit is in place.

129.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest.

130.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The agenda as circulated was agreed.

131.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

132.   DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

The Service Improvement Officer advised that the report was being presented to 
give the Committee an opportunity to review and comment on the Draft Annual 
Governance Statement. Legislation requires the Council to conduct a review at 
least once a year and to publicise a report on the effectiveness of its control 
environment. 

The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that parts of the report were highlighted 
in red as these are areas which would be updated in April 2018 as the draft report 
had being presented earlier than normal.

The Service Improvement Officer was thanked by the chair for his comprehensive 
review of the Annual Governance Statement.

Members duly noted the report.

Page 4



3

133.   ANNUAL CERTIFICATION LETTER 

The Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton presented the Annual Certification 
Letter which represented the certification of the Housing Benefit subsidy claim 
submitted by Torridge District Council.

The Engagement Manager confirmed that the issues which were identified were 
listed in Appendix A of the report and that the fee for the work carried out was the 
same as the fee set by PSAA.

Members noted the report.

134.   INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY & PLAN 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the report and advised that it was in 
three parts – Strategy, Charter and Plan.

Members were informed that the audit plan had been created to provide an 
independent and objective opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
arrangements for the governance, risk management and controls implemented to 
achieve the Council’s agreed objectives. 

The Service Improvement Officer went through the areas in which Devon Audit 
Partnership will carry out the audits based on a risk assessment of all service areas 
and would include Data Protection Act 2017, Food & Safety, Waste Management 
and Homelessness.

A discussion followed regarding new legislation coming into to force in 2018 
regarding homelessness. Assurances will be provided by an audit in quarter 4.

The Audit Strategy & Charter were briefly discussed and it was noted that they 
would be reviewed every three years or sooner if material amendments are 
required. Full updates will take place next year.

The Service Improvement Officer agreed that Internal Audit dates will be included in 
the next Audit newsletter.

It was proposed by Councillor Boundy, seconded by Councillor Simmons and –

Resolved:

That the Internal Audit Plan, Internal Audit Strategy and Internal Audit Charter be 
approved.

(Vote: For – Unanimous)

135.   AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE 

The DAP Audit Manager present the report which contained details of six audit 
reports which had been published since the last meeting. The audits reported were: 

Page 5



4

Transforming Torridge Programme, Planning, NNDR, Creditors, Treasury 
Management and Main Accounting. 

The DAP Audit Manager commented how delightful it was to see such positive 
reports. 

The DAP Audit Manager confirmed that the Planning Audit produced a 
Marginal/Satisfactory opinion however commented that the council were working on 
improvements and anticipates future reports will have a higher level of assurance.

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that a planning improvement plan has been in place 
for approximately five months. The Senior Solicitor confirmed that changes had 
already been made and that 5 of the 7 vacancies have been filled.

Members noted the report.

136.   PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS 

The Service Improvement Officer provided an update on the progress in 
implementing agreed actions. Since the last Committee meeting in December 2017 
there has been 7 internal audit reports issued containing 21 agreed new audit 
actions. In the same period there have been 8 actions completed by management. 

The Service Improvement Officer went through each of the 5 actions which were 
due for completion by the end of January 2018 which were not completed and 
explained to Members why these target dates had been missed. 

Members discussed the actions and noted the update.

137.   GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT 

The Engagement Manager gave a brief update and confirmed the work which had 
been carried out up to 5 February which included planning for the 2017/18 financial 
statements audits, value for money work which is set out in the guidance issued by 
the National Audit Officer as well as work on the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim.

Members noted the update.

138.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

The Engagement Manager went through the external audit plan explaining that the 
report is designed to provide the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 
delivering the projects as Torridge District Councils external auditors.

The Engagement Manager went through the deep business understanding in the 
report which includes changes to Torridge District Council service delivery, changes 
to financial reporting requirements which will affect local councils and any key 
challenges which might face the Council.

Page 6



5

The Engagement Manager also discussed how Grant Thornton plan on meeting the 
early close timeframe to meet the statutory date for publication of audited local 
government accounts. 

The Chair thanked the Engagement Manager for his update and members duly 
noted the update.

139.   RIPA 

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that the RIPA (Regulation of Investigating Powers 
Act 2000) covert surveillance inspection is carried out every three years by the 
Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office.

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that Torridge District Council made no use of RIPA 
in the last two inspection periods but confirmed that RIPA training will continue  to 
ensure Council staff remain up to date with training so that they can use the 
legislation appropriately should the need arise to do so.

Members noted the update.

140.   DATA PROTECTION ACT 2017 

The Senior Solicitor updated the committee on the progress of the GDPR. The 
Senior Solicitor confirmed that all departments had carried out an audit on the 
personal data they hold in their business area and a meeting is being held on 14 
February to go through the findings and highlight any issues.

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that the next stage is to go through all policies and 
ensure that all policies are compliant with the Data Protection Regulations 2018.

It was confirmed that two days training will be held for staff in March with a 
refresher training session being held in May before the new regulations come into 
force. The Senior Solicitor also confirmed that Members will receive training.

Members noted the update. 

141.   DAP UPDATE REPORT (INTERNAL AUDIT VIEW) 

The Audit Manager from DAP confirmed that the latest edition of ‘An Internal Audit 
View’ produced by Audit Together had been included in the Agenda. The 
newsletter included information on the role of Audit in Transformation and Project 
Management – lessons to learn.

The Audit Manager from DAP informed Members that Audit Together has been 
short listed for the Innovation in Internal Audit Award at the Public Finance 
Innovation Awards 2018.

Page 7



6

142.   FORWARD PLAN 

The Service Improvement Officer distributed the 2018/19 Forward Plan and 
confirmed that there is currently four committee meetings scheduled for 2018/19. 
The next scheduled meeting is 12 June 2018 therefore an audit newsletter will be 
produced in the Spring to keep members up to date with any information.

Members noted the forward plan.

143.   CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER - FEBRUARY 2018 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that the Risk Management Group 
met on 7 February which comprises of the Service Improvement Officer, Waste & 
Recycling Manager, Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager, Property 
& Procurement Manager, Customer Support Manager and the Strategic Manager 
(Resources).

At the meeting on 7 February officers discussed businesses continuity and also 
discussed the high profile compromise of Carillion. The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) confirmed that the Council had an independent Business Continuity 
Health Check undertaken by Zurich Insurance this month. The results of this check 
will be reported back at a future meeting. 

Officers also discussed issues relating to a profit warning issued by Capita, a large 
supplier to the Council who provide the cash receipts, Council Tax Business Rates 
and benefit systems. Officers discussed how the Council would manage if Capita 
got into a similar situation to Carillion.

Members noted the update.

The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that there were no part II information 
for the Corporate Assurance Risk Register.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.32 pm

Chair: Date:

Page 8



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Head of Internal Audit (DAP Partnership Manager)
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Annual Audit Manager’s Opinion
Date: 12 June 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:   To report on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control environment prior to the approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement.

1. INTRODUCTION
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance 
requires the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual internal audit opinion based 
on an objective assessment of the framework of governance, risk management and 
control. 

The report should be timed to support the Annual Governance Statement and 
include:

 The opinion
 A summary of the work that supports the opinion; and 
 A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

and the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme.

The report is attached to this report.

2. REPORT
See Appendix A. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Risk Management
As reported.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
As reported.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, has 
commented: "The annual Internal Audit plan confirms that the necessary controls are 
in place for our key systems and the Internal Auditors are confident that the scope of 
the audit plan and the resultant testing allowed them to provide the Council with 
significant assurance for 2017/18."

4. CONCLUSIONS
In compliance with the CIPFA guidance the opinion set out at Appendix A provides 
an assurance of the adequacy and effectiveness of controls operating on the 
Council’s activities and identifies any significant weaknesses and actions taken to 
address those weaknesses. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Audit and Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance 
provided alongside that of Senior Management, Corporate Risk Management and 
external assurance including that of the External Auditor as part of the Governance 
Framework and satisfy themselves from this assurance for signing the Annual 
Governance Statement.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace 
Councillor Philip Hackett
Senior Management - Assurance Statements
Those officers involved in gathering evidence for the Annual 
Governance Statement 
Monitoring Officer

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Internal Audit systems files
Internal Audit Governance working papers
The Terms of Reference for the Audit & Governance 
Committee
CIPFA guidance on providing the Audit opinion
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016
The British Standards Institute’s Code of Practice on 
Whistleblowing 
Internal Audit reports
External audit reports
Other external reports from professional organisations

Page 10



Internal Audit 
 
Annual Audit Report 2017/18 
 
Torridge District Council 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
May 2018 

 
 
 

P
age 11



Contents 

 

 

INTRODUCTION ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

ASSURANCE STATEMENT __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2 

BASIS FOR OPINION _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

AUDIT AUTHORITY ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 

THE CONSEQUENCES OF CHANGE AND RISK _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE AND RESULTS __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 6 

FRAUD PREVENTION AND DETECTION _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 

SERVICE DELIVERY - DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP – PROFESSIONALISM AND QUALITY ___________________________________________________________ 9 

CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) ___________________________________________________________________ 9 

CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

APPENDIX 1 - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK ASSURANCE ______________________________________________________________________________ 10 

APPENDIX 2 – PERFORMANCE INDICATORS _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

APPENDIX 4 - CUSTOMER FEEDBACK RESULTS 2017/18 ______________________________________________________________________________________ 132 

 

Devon Audit Partnership Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of 
Plymouth, Torbay and Devon councils.  We aim to be recognised as a high quality internal audit service 
in the public sector.  We work with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that 
will assist them in meeting their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying 
out our work we are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other 
best practice and professional standards. 

The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you 
have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership 
would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk . 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National 
Protective Marking Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well 
need to be discussed with other officers within the Council, the report 
itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of 
the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies.  

This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no 
responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it. 

P
age 12

mailto:robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk


 

1 
 

Introduction 
The Audit and Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in Torridge Council’s Constitution is required to consider the Internal Audit 
Manager’s annual report and opinion, and a summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements. 
 
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 require that all Authorities need to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their 
internal audit system, and need to incorporate the results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement 
of Accounts. 
 
The Internal Audit plan for 2017/18 was presented to and approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in April 2017. The following report and 
appendices set out the background to audit service provision; reviews work undertaken in 2017/18 and provides an opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report providing an opinion that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement. This report provides that opinion. 
 
Expectations of the Audit Committee from this annual report 

Audit Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report; 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan; 

 the scope and ability of audit to complete the audit work; 

 audit coverage and findings provided; 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

 
In review of the above the Audit and Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided alongside that of Senior Management, 
Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework (see appendix 1) and satisfy 
themselves from this assurance for signing the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

P
age 13



 

2 
 

Overall, based on work performed during 2017/18 and our 
experience from previous years audit, Internal Audit is able to 
provide “significant assurance” (see below) on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

framework. 

Assurance Statement 
 

   This statement of opinion is underpinned by: 
 

 

 

 

This assurance statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 
Annual Governance Statement see appendix 1. 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily, and an opinion on the adequacy of controls is provided to 
management as part of the audit report.   

All final audit reports include an action plan which identifies responsible 
officers, and target dates, to address control issues identified during a 
review. Implementation of action plans are reviewed during subsequent 
audits or as part of a specific follow-up process. 

Senior Management have been provided with details of Internal Audit’s 
opinion on each audit review carried out in 2017/18 to assist them with 
compilation of their individual annual governance assurance statements.  If 
significant weaknesses have been identified in specific areas, these have 
been considered by the Authority in preparing its Annual Governance 
Statement which will be accompanying its published Statement of Accounts 
for 2017/18.   

 

Full Assurance -Full assurance can be given that there is a sound system of internal control which 
is designed to meet the organisation’s objectives and that controls are being consistently applied in 
all the areas reviewed.  

Significant Assurance - Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system 
of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally 
being applied consistently. However, some weakness in the design and/or inconsistent application 
of controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk.  

Limited Assurance - Limited assurance can be given as weaknesses in the design, and/or 
inconsistent application of controls, put the achievement of the organisation’s objectives at risk in a 
number of the areas reviewed.  

No Assurance -No assurance can be given as weaknesses in control, and/or consistent non-
compliance with controls, could result/ has resulted in failure to achieve the organisation’s 
objectives in the areas reviewed. 

 

Internal Control Framework   
The control environment comprises the Council’s policies, procedures and 
operational systems and processes in place to: 

 Establish and monitor the achievement of the Council’s objectives; 

 Facilitate policy and decision making; 

 Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources; 

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations; 

 Safeguard the Council’s assets and interests from losses of all kinds, 
including those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption.  

During 2017/18, core financial and administrative systems were reviewed by 
Internal Audit either through specific reviews (e.g. creditors, payroll & main 
accounting system) or generally in the reviews undertaken in respect of the 
services systems. The Council’s overall internal control framework operated 
effectively during 2017/18, and where internal audit work has highlighted 
instances of none or part compliance, none have had a material impact on the 
Authority’s affairs.  

Risk Management 

 

Risk management 
arrangements were 
reviewed and an 
assurance opinion of 
Satisfactory was 
provided. 

A number of 
recommendations are 
being enacted upon. 

 

Governance 
Arrangements 
 
Our audit confirmed 
expected controls tested 
were working effectively. 
Improvements were 
agreed for  

 social media 
access and  

 learning from 
upheld complaints. 

 
 

Economy Efficiency & 
Effectiveness 
 
In our review of 
“Transforming Torridge” 
we made 
recommendations with 
regard to 

 risk identification & 
management,  

 cost and time 
estimating and  

 ensuring all 
objectives are 
SMART. 

 
 

P
age 14



 

3 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 
The Head Internal Auditor is required to provide the Council with an 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting records and 

its system of internal control in the Council. In giving our opinion, it should 
be noted that this assurance can never be absolute. The most that the 
internal audit service can do is to provide reasonable assurance, based on 
risk-based reviews and sample testing, that there are no major weaknesses 
in the system of control. 
 

This report compares the work carried out with the work that was planned 
through risk assessment (see appendix 2); presents a summary of the audit work 
undertaken; includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control environment; and summarises the performance of the 
Internal Audit function against its performance measures and other criteria. The 
report outlines the level of assurance that we are able to provide, based on the 
internal audit work completed during the year. It gives: 

 a comparison of internal audit activity during the year with that planned; 

 a summary of significant fraud and irregularity investigations carried out 
during the year and anti-fraud arrangements; and 

 a statement on the effectiveness of the system of internal control in meeting 
the Council’s objectives. 

The internal audit plan for 2017/18 was delivered via staff employed by Devon 
Audit Partnership. In 2017 Torridge joined the Partnership as a partner The 
Partnership makes available a dedicated member of staff to deliver most audit 
assignments and to provide a consistent approach; the work of this officer is 
then supplemented by specialist auditors to meet specific audit needs.  

The resources available have enabled the agreed plan to be delivered, with 
work being completed within expected timescales. 

 

 
  

audits completed during 2017/18 and previous 
years, 

any follow up action taken in respect of audits 
from previous periods; 

any significant recommendations not accepted 
by management and the consequent risks; 

the quality of internal audit’s performance; 

the proportion of the Council’s audit need that 
has been covered to date; 

the extent to which resource constraints may 
limit this ability to meet the full audit needs of 

the Council; 

any limitations that may have been placed on 
the scope of internal audit. 

In assessing the level of assurance to be given the following have 
been taken into account: 

P
age 15



 

4 
 

Audit Authority 
 

Service Provision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regulatory Role 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Professional Guidelines 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audit Strategy

The  

The Internal Audit (IA) for Torridge Council has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). This is a shared service arrangement 
between Torridge, Devon, Torbay, Plymouth and Mid Devon councils constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 2000. The 
Partnership undertakes an objective programme of audits to ensure that there are sound and adequate internal controls in place across the whole 
of the Council. It also ensures that the Council’s assets and interests are accounted for and safeguarded from error, fraud, waste, poor value for 
money or other losses. 
An annual plan, setting out expected audit priorities is risk assessed and agreed with senior management annually. 

There are two principal pieces of legislation that impact upon internal audit in local authorities: 

 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which state at section 5(1) “A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal 
audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards (PSIAS) or guidance”. 

 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every local authority to make arrangements for the proper administration of 
its financial affairs. 

 

Devon Audit Partnership works to professional guidelines which govern the scope, standards and conduct of Internal Audit as set down in the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Partnership was independently assessed in December 2016 by Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for 
Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager; the Partnership was assessed as “conforming” to the 
standards. 

The Partnership has an internal Audit Manual that provides the method of work and works to and with the policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations established by the Authority. These include standing orders, schemes of delegation, financial regulations, conditions of service, anti-
fraud and corruption strategies, fraud prevention procedures and codes of conduct, amongst others 

Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service will be provided and the Internal Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal 
responsibilities of the audit function. 

 

P
age 16



  

5 
 

The consequences of change and risk 
 

Times are changing; the expectation of the public for services provided by the 
public sector has never been greater; yet the money that is available for these 
services is limited. All public sector organisations are looking at how services 
can be transformed; what worked in the last decade may not meet new 
challenges. The use of, and dependency on, IT for service delivery will only 
increase further; this brings rewards but also carries its own risk.  
 
The Internal Audit function has a key role in helping management fully 
understand their risks and in designing effective and efficient controls that 
mitigate these risks to an acceptance level; a consistent application of a quality 
internal audit opinion assists the organisation to develop alternative and new 
delivery solutions that will deliver the service required. 
 
Our work during the year was been tailored to meet the changing requirements 
of the Authority throughout the year. All of the changes and risks within this 
graphic have been observed.  
 
 
 
 

  

Change Risk 

P
age 17



  

6 
 

Internal audit coverage and results 
 

In our opinion, and based upon our audit work completed during the 2017/18 financial year and in previous years, we consider that adequate controls are in 
place to control operations at the council and, as stated on page 2, Internal Audit is able to provide “significant assurance” on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Authority’s internal control framework.  

Where weaknesses or areas for improvement have been identified management have generally agreed these findings and have either agreed the 
recommendations or accepted the associated risks.  Where management actions have been agreed and as appropriate, we shall undertake follow up work to 
ensure that the identified risks have been mitigated.  

We provide an assurance opinion for each piece of work. This assurance opinion is graded as follows (please also refer to appendix 3). 

 

Opinion Audit  

Good; which means minimal risk has been identified) ICT Cyber Security Follow-Up; Governance; Debtors; Council Tax 

NNDR; Creditors; Treasury Management; Main Accounting; Payroll; 
Housing Benefits. 

Satisfactory; (which means some risks have been identified) Risk Management; Community Safety Partnership; Asset Management; 
Licensing; Transforming Torridge Programme; Cemeteries; Key 
Performance Indicators 

Satisfactory / Marginal; which means a number of risks have been identified) None 

Marginal / Satisfactory; (which means significant changes are required to reduce 
risk) 

Planning and  Health & Safety 

One audit was carried out by an external audit provider (SWAP). 

Substantial 

(which means the processes were adequately controlled and the controls in place 
operate effectively and risks are well managed) 

Wessex Home Improvement Loans 

 

For a limited number of reviews (3), Marginal / Satisfactory audit opinions have been reported. The detailed findings from our work have previously been 
presented to members of the Audit and Governance Committee, but a brief summary of the opinion and management response is provided below for 
information purposes. 

 

 

P
age 18



  

7 
 

Planning 

Internal Audit Opinion - The audit has found that five of the twelve controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be made with regard to staffing 
resources and costs; timeliness and completeness of supporting records; timeliness of validation and decision making; improvements to interdepartmental 
communications, finalisation of the Local Plan and ensuring members are careful to observe impartiality during their involvement with planning cases.  
 
 
Management Response Senior Solicitor - The planning team has recently embarked on a comprehensive programme of improvement covering all aspects of 
the service. Some significant changes have been made with very positive and measurable results, particularly in relation to process efficiencies, recruitment 
and retention, validation turnaround times and other important areas. As this audit includes a period of time before the improvement programme was 
introduced, the improved outcomes of the programme are not immediately obvious in this report. We are confident that future audits will show marked 
improvement in the key areas identified within the audit process 
 
 
 
Health & Safety  
 
Internal Audit Opinion - The audit has found that four of the eight controls tested were working effectively. Improvements can be made with regard to ensuring 
sufficient resources are available to fulfil all requirements of the Council. 
 
Management Response - Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager. Audit findings noted and accepted. 
 

  

P
age 19



  

8 
 

Other Sources of assurance 
 
During the year other sources of assurance will be gained. During 2017/18 these sources have included the following:- 
 
1. Grant Thornton (production of annual accounts etc.) 
2. Local Government Ombudsman (annual letter) 
3. North Devon Council (Crematorium arrangements) 
4. ICT Security (external penetration testing) 
5 Internal review of the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee 
6. ICT Change Management – situation report – prepared by DAP 
7. GDPR readiness assessment 

Fraud Prevention and Detection  
 

Fraud Prevention and Detection and the National Fraud Initiative  

Counter-fraud arrangements are a high priority for the Council and assist in the protection of public funds and accountability, regular reminders about anti-
fraud and whistleblowing arrangements are provided to staff in the regular staff newsletter.  The Audit Commission runs a national data matching exercise 
(National Fraud Initiative - NFI) every two years.  In January 2017 results from data extracted in October 2016 were provided. These results have been 
reviewed by Internal Audit or the relevant department / team of the council and appropriate action has been taken.  

 
Every case of alleged fraud or irregularity is thoroughly investigated and action will be taken to address any concerns identified. The council will issue 
sanctions against those who commit fraud, although it should be noted that since the transfer of benefit payments to DWP, the need for Torridge to issue 
cautions has reduced. In the 2017/18 financial year Torridge issued 4 administrative penalties which were actioned by colleagues at the DWP. 
 
The Council also assist with request for data from the police, other local authorities and public sectors bodies who asked for information to assist in their own 
prevention and detection of fraud. Such requests relate to the release of data concerning the general public and are referred to as “section 29” requests.  
 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption – Self Assessment  
 
During 2015 CIPFA’s Counter Fraud Centre issued a code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption. The guidance emphasised the need for 
public service organisations to take responsibility to embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This supports good 
governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong public management.  
 
Internal Audit undertook a self assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council against the code of practice. It was reported to the Audit and 
Governance committee that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards were in place. In some instances these have since benefited from a refresh, 
although the good principles to prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and corruption were in place.   
 
Internal Audit will continue to ensure that standards and practices are embedded, and remain effective at deterring and preventing fraud. 

P
age 20



  

9 
 

Service Delivery - Devon Audit Partnership – Professionalism and Quality 

The audit plan for 2017/18 has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership. The Partnership is expected to meet high standards of professionalism and 
quality, and in particular meet the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit standards. The following paragraphs are provided by Devon Audit 
Partnership. 

 

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

Conformance - Devon Audit Partnership conforms to the requirements of the PSIAS for its internal audit activity. The purpose, authority and responsibility of 
the internal audit activity is defined in our internal audit charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. Our 
internal audit charter was approved by senior management and the Audit Committee in March 2017. This is supported through DAP self-assessment of 
conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards & Local Government Application note. 

Quality Assessment - the Head of Devon Audit Partnership maintains a quality assessment process which includes review by audit managers of all audit 
work. The quality assessment process and improvement is supported by a development programme.  External Assessment provides assurance that against 
the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Quality Assessment & Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  In December 2016 DAP welcomed Terry Barnett, 
Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager, who completed an external validation of the 
Partnership.  

Terry and Chris concluded that; 

“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms * to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. 

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards 

Improvement Programme – DAP maintains a rolling development plan of improvements to the service and customers. All recommendations of the external 
assessment of PSIAS and quality assurance were included in this development plan and have been completed. This will be further embedded with revision of 
our internal quality process through peer review. Our development plan is regularly updated and a status report was reported to the DAP Management Board 
in October 2016. 

Customer Service Excellence 
 

DAP has been successful in re-accreditation by G4S Assessment Services of the CSE standard during June 2017. 
 
During the period we issued client survey forms with our final reports. The results of the surveys returned are very good and again are very positive. The 
overall result is very pleasing, with near 98% being "satisfied” or better across our services.  It is very pleasing to report that our clients continue to rate the 
overall usefulness of the audit and the helpfulness of our auditors highly. 

  

P
age 21



  

10 
 

Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Framework Assurance 
 
The conclusions of this report provide the internal audit assurance on the internal control framework necessary for the Committee to consider 
when reviewing the Annual Governance Statement. 

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) provides assurance that  
o the Authority’s policies have been complied with in practice; 
o high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 
o ethical standards are met; 
o laws and regulations are complied with; 
o processes are adhered to; 
o performance statements are accurate. 

The statement relates to the governance system as it is applied 
during the year for the accounts that it accompanies. It should:- 

 be prepared by senior management and signed by the Head of 
Paid Service and Leader of the Council; 

 highlight significant events or developments in the year; 

 acknowledge the responsibility on management to ensure good 
governance; 

 indicate the level of assurance that systems and processes can 
provide; 

 provide a narrative on the process that has been followed to 
ensure that the governance arrangements remain effective. This 
will include comment upon; 
o The Authority; 
o Audit and Governance Committee; 
o Risk Management; 
o Internal Audit 
o Other reviews / assurance 

 Provide confirmation that the Authority complies with 
CIPFA / SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. If not, a statement is 
required stating how other arrangements provide the same 
level of assurance. 

Corporate Risk Management 
framework and Reporting 

Internal Audit Assurance on 
the internal control 

framework 

Executive and Service 
Director Review and 

Assurance 

External Audit and Other 
Assurance Reports 

Annual 
Governance 
Framework 

The AGS needs to be presented to, and approved by, the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and then signed by the Chair. 

The Committee should satisfy themselves, from the assurances provided by Risk 
Management arrangements, senior management and Internal Audit that the 
statement meets statutory requirements and that the management team endorse 
the content. 

 

P
age 22



  

11 
 

Appendix 2 – Performance Indicators 
 
There are no national Performance Indicators in existence for Internal Audit, but the following Local Performance Indicators LPI’s may be of interest. 
 

Local Performance Indicator (LPI) 2017/18 
 
2017/18 
 

2016/17 2015/16 

 Target Actual Actual Actual 

Percentage of Key System Audits completed 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Percentage of Other System Audits completed 70% 92% 93% 80% 

Actual Audit Days as percentage of planned 90% 100% 97% 95% 

Productive Audit Time 65% 71.5% 83% 84% 

Customer Satisfaction  - average score out of 10 9 91% 9 9.5 

Average number of days to produce draft internal audit reports  43 days 25 22 days 35 days 

Average number of days to produce final internal audit reports 70 days 48 38 days 56 days 

Out-turn within budget Yes Yes Yes Yes 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 23



  

12 
 

Appendix 3 – Comparison of Audit Opinions   

 

Internal Audit Reports 2017/18: Comparison of Audit Opinion
By Date

Percentage

Green 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Cyber Follow Up 100% Good Good

Asset Mgt 73% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Governance 78% Satisfactory Good

Community Safety 86% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Debtors 86% Good Good

Licensing 70% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Council Tax 86% Good Good

Transformation 60% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Planning 42% Marginal/Satisfactory Marginal/Satisfactory

NNDR 89% Good Good

Treasury 100% Good Good

Main Accounting 100% Good Good

Creditors 100% Good Good

IT User controls 75% Satisfactory Good

Payroll 73% Satisfactory Good

Heath & Safety 50% Marginal/Satisfactory Marginal/Satisfactory

KPIs 71% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Benefits 85% Good Good

Risk Management 63% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Cemeteries 78% Satisfactory Satisfactory

Undertaken by DAP 

Audit

Rating at time of 

audit

Completed at time of 

publication

Controls at time of audit

P
age 24



  

13 
 

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback Results 2017/18 
 
For each audit we issue a customer feedback form.  For 2017/18, we trailed the use of the DAP process, which uses a form generated from the MKi audit management 
system.  Unfortunately, only 4 feedback forms were received. Although the overall feedback was positive, the lack of responses does not provide enough information with 
which to identify if there are any issues in the service being provided. For 2018/19 it has been agreed that we will revert to the former “Torridge” process for collecting 
customer feedback. 
 

The feedback scores received are shown below. 

 
 

P
age 25



  

14 
 

 

Appendix 4 (cntd) 
Additional comments provided by Auditees - 2017/18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Question Comments: Directorate Audit Area Entity

Do you have any other comments 

regarding our audit service and 

your customer experience?

Generally satisfied with the audits undertaken, they do highlight areas for 

improvement. Sometimes the tone of the audit findings can come across as a 

little adversarial in nature.

Corporate Property and Procurement Property

Which aspects of the audit 

process did you find particularly 

helpful or positive?

Highlighted weakness in leavers (ensuring IT accounts closed etc). Was 

pleasing that the liaison between Finance and HR in setting establishment 

budgets was recognised as adequate and sufficient.

Resources Key Financial Systems Payroll

Was the audit able to "add value" 

to you? If so, can you describe 

how?

Audit confirmed that existing procedures and practices were robust and no 

serious issue were present
Resources Key Financial Systems Payroll

Do you have any other comments 

regarding our audit service and 

your customer experience?

The audit was detailed and the auditor had a good comprehension of the 

payroll processes.
Resources Key Financial Systems Payroll

Which aspects of the audit 

process did you find particularly 

helpful or positive?

Gary got to grips with the subject matter and had done some background 

research on the area for the audit which was useful
Services Partnerships Partnerships

P
age 26



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit and Governance Committee
Subject: Annual Governance Statement
Date: 12th June 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To seek Committee approval for the Annual Governance Statement for 2017/2018

1. INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 4 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires the Council to 
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to 
publish this in the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was 
approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 5th December 2017 (see Appendix A). 

The Annual Governance Statement should be a holistic assessment of the checks and 
balance arrangements that are in place to ensure that public money is properly spent and 
principles for the conduct of individuals in public life are maintained.

Members of the Committee will review the evidence to support the Statement and that the 
Statement covers all relevant issues.

2. REPORT

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) developed the Code of Corporate Governance in 
accordance with the best practice document ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’ produced jointly in 2007. The Framework was given ‘proper 
practices’ status by the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) through 
non statutory guidance in respect of the requirement for Local Authorities to prepare an 
Annual Governance Statement which must accompany the statement of accounts. A new 
framework was developed and published in April 2016. 

The new Governance Framework has seven core principles on which arrangements for good 
governance should be based. The principles are:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law;

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits;
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes;
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it;
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management;
G. Implementing good practises in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 

accountability 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



At the meeting on 5th December 2017 the Committee approved the 2018 Code of Corporate 
Governance. At the meeting on 13th February 2017 the the Committee reviewed a draft copy 
of the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement.

Since the last meeting the Senior Managers have completed and signed the Senior Manager 
Governance Assurance Statements and the Governance Team have reviewed and 
approved the statements. The Service Improvement Officer has collected and risk assessed 
the governance risks identified in 2017/18 and discussed these with the Head of Paid 
Service.   

At this meeting (12th June 2018) the Audit & Governance Committee are asked to:

1. Review the Audit Managers Opinion for 2017/18.
2. Note the Committee’s ongoing review of the evidence to support the Annual 

Governance Statement, to satisfy themselves that the evidence accurately reflects 
the governance framework (see Appendix B)

3. Review the 2017/18 AGS Action Plan and come to a view on which actions need to 
be included in the Annual Governance Statement (see Appendix C)

4. Agree the Annual Governance Statement (see Appendix D) and the actions (see 
Appendix E)

    

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

There is a legal requirement as part of the approval of the annual statement of accounts

Financial Implications

None

Human Resources Implications

None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications

N/A

Equality/Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment prepared

Risk Management

The evidence supporting the Annual Governance Statement reviews the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and identifies areas for 
improvement that are identified in the action plan.

Page 28



Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Approval and adoption of the Annual Governance Statement is a key aspect of 
demonstrating that Torridge District Council has undertaken an annual review of its 
governance framework

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Hackett, the Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee said “it is a key role 
of this committee to seek assurance that the Council’s governance arrangements are 
carefully and effectively monitored and remain robust.”

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Committee having reviewed the evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement 
(database and audit reports) will then review the draft Annual Governance Statement and 
action plan to address any areas identified for improvement.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

 The Annual Governance Statement be formally approved (it will be signed off with the 
Financial Statement at the meeting on 24th July 2018)

 The Summary Action Plan be noted

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service
Jamie Hollis, Monitoring Officer
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer

Contact Officers: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government, CIPFA, 2007
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government, Addendum, 
CIPFA, December 2012
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework, 
April 2016
Code of Corporate Governance, TDC, December 2017

APPENDICES

A - 2018 Approved Code of Governance

B – List of Governance Principles (for use in selecting samples of the database for review)

C - 2017/18 AGS Action Plan (Ranked by Officer Suggestion of Highest Priority)

D – 2017/18 Draft Annual Governance Statement 

E – Officer suggestions for priority actions to include in the AGS

Page 29



1 

Issue Number 12 Approval Date: December 2017 

Approved: Audit & Governance Committee Next Review Date: December 2018 

 

 

 

 
 
 

CODE 
OF 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

2018 

P
age 30



2 

C.  Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

D.  Determining the 
interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes 

F.  Managing risks and 
performance through robust 
internal control and strong 

public financial management 

G.  Implementing good 
practices in transparency, 

reporting, and audit, to 
deliver effective 
accountability 

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement 

Introduction 

Corporate Governance is the framework used to direct, manage and monitor an organisation to ensure it meets its aims and to enable it to 

relate to its external environment. It comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values, by which such bodies are directed and 

controlled and through which they account to, engage with and, where appropriate, lead their communities. Good governance encourages 

better informed and longer-term decision making as well as the efficient use of resources, and is characterised by robust scrutiny, which places 

importance on improving performance and tackling corruption.  
 

A revised Framework was developed by the CIPFA/SOLACE Joint working Group on Good Governance in Local Government in 2015 and the 

group’s conclusions are set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. The 

revised framework  emphasises the importance of considering the longer term and the links between governance and public financial 

management – all key considerations for local authorities in today’s climate.   

The diagram on the right illustrates how the various 

principles for good governance in the public sector relate 

to each other.  
 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles 

C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance 

is dynamic, and that an entity as a whole should be 

committed to improving governance on a continuing basis 

through a process of evaluation and review. 

The Council strives to meet the highest 

standards of corporate governance to help 

ensure it meets its objectives. Members and 

Senior Officers are responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangements for the governance 

of the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 

resources at its disposal. This Code of 

Corporate Governance describes what the 

Council will do to meet each of the key 

principles of good governance. 
 

Each year the Council undertakes a review of 

its corporate governance arrangements, and at 

the end of each year produces an Annual 

Governance Statement which outlines the 

effectiveness of the Code of Governance and its 

application, suggesting areas for improvement 

and recommendations as appropriate. 

E  Developing the entity’s 
capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it  

P
age 31



Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 

Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the 

resources under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the 

outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to 

the requirements of legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the 

appropriateness of all their actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values 
and to respect the rule of law.  

We will: 

Behave with integrity. 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring Members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently 

demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation 

 Ensuring Members take the lead in establishing specific operating principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that they 

are communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles) 

 Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other 

actions 

 Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and 

processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively. 

We will: 

Respect the rule of law 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring Members and staff  demonstrate a strong commitment to 

the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and 

regulations 

 Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other 

key post holders, and Members, are able to fulfil their 

responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory 

requirements 

 Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the 

benefit of its citizens, communities and other stakeholders 

 Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively  

 Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively. 

 

We will: 

Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values 

 

We will do this by: 

 Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance 

 Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and 

ensuring they permeate all aspects of the organisation’s 

culture and operation 

 Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures 

which place emphasis on agreed ethical values 

 Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the 

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

organisation. 3 

P
age 32



Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 

Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, 

trusted channels of communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, 

such as individual citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders. 

We will: 

Be Open 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 

communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness  

 Making decisions that are  open about actions, plans, resource use, 

forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that 

is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 

confidential should be provided   

 Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 

and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 

rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact 

and consequences of those decisions are clear 

 Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the 

most appropriate and effective interventions/courses of action. 

We will: 

Engage with individual citizens and service 

users effectively 

 

We will do this by: 

 Establishing a clear policy on the type of 

issues that the organisation will meaningfully 

consult with or involve  communities, 

individual citizens, service users and other 

stakeholders to ensure that service (or 

other) provision is contributing towards the 

achievement of intended outcomes.  

 Ensuring that communication methods are 

effective and that Members and officers are 

clear about their roles with regard to 

community engagement 

 Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the 

views and experiences of communities, 

citizens, service users  and organisations  of 

different backgrounds including reference to 

future use 

 Implementing effective feedback 

mechanisms in order to demonstrate how 

views have been taken into account 

 Balancing  feedback from more active 

stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 

groups to ensure inclusivity 

 Taking account of the impact on future 

generations of tax payers and service users.  

We will: 

Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 

 

We will do this by: 

 Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders  to ensure that the 

purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder 

relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 

sustainably 

 Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be 

used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively  

 Ensuring that partnerships are based on: Trust; A Shared Commitment to 

Change; A Culture that Promotes and Accepts Challenge Among Partners; 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit. 4 

P
age 33



Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 

The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan 

outcomes and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended 

benefits and outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, 

including citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing 

competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available .  

We will: 
Define Outcomes 
 

We will do this by: 

 Having a clear vision, which is in an agreed formal 

statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended 

outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, 

which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall 

strategy, planning and other decisions  

 Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including individual citizens and service 

users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year 

or longer 

 Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within 

the resources that will be available 

 Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes  

Managing service users’ expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use of  

the resources available. 

We will: 

Provide sustainable economic, social and 

environmental benefits 

 

We will do this by: 

 Considering and balancing the combined economic, 

social and environmental impact of policies and plans 

when taking decisions about service provision 

 Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision 

making, taking account of risk and acting transparently 

where there are potential conflicts  between the 

organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors 

such as the political cycle or financial constraints 

 Determining  the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs 

 Ensuring fair access to services. 

5 

P
age 34



Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes 
 

Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions 

(courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that the 

Council has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. The Council needs robust decision-making mechanisms 

to ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types 

of resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to 

ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised.  

We will: 

Determine Interventions 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring  decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 

variety of options indicating how  intended outcomes would be achieved 

and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however 

services are provided 

 Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 

decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 

required in order to prioritise competing demands with limited resources 

available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind 

future impacts. 

We will: 

Optimise achievement of intended outcomes 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 

service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints 

 Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the 

full cost of operations over the medium and longer term 

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 

decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 

external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order 

for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage 

 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 

commissioning. 

 

We will: 

Plan interventions 

 

We will do this by: 

 Establishing  and implementing robust planning and 

control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, 

priorities and targets  

 Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action 

should be planned and delivered 

 Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner 

when working collaboratively, including shared risks 

 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 

adapted to changing circumstances 

 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators 

(KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify 

how the performance of services and projects is to be 

measured  

 Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information 

required to review service quality regularly 

 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, 

strategies and the medium term financial plan  

 Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy. 

6 

P
age 35



Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 

Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate 

qualifications and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified 

periods. A local government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make 

certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as 

a whole. Because both individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change over time, there will be 

a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as providing training to develop the skills and experience of individual staff 

members. Leadership in local government is strengthened by the participation of people with many different types of 

backgrounds, reflecting the structure and diversity of communities.  

We will: 

Develop the entity’s capacity 

 

We will do this by: 

 Reviewing operations, performance and use of 

assets on a regular basis to ensure their 

continuing effectiveness 

 Improving resource use through appropriate 

application of techniques such as benchmarking 

and other options in order to determine how 

resources are allocated so that defined outcomes 

are achieved effectively and efficiently 

 Recognising the benefits of partnerships and 

collaborative working where added value can be 

achieved 

 Developing and maintaining an effective 

workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation 

of resources.   

We will: 

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other 

individuals  

 

We will do this by: 

 Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 

negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on 

in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and 

objectives is maintained 

 Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that 

are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision 

making of the governing body 

 Ensuring the Leader and the Head of Paid Service have clearly 

defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby 

the Head of Paid Service leads in implementing strategy and 

managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by 

Members and each provides a check and a balance for each 

other’s authority 

 

    Continued…. 

 

7 

P
age 36



Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 

Continued… 

We will: 

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals 

Continued… 

 

We will do this by: 

 Developing the capabilities of Members and Senior Management to achieve effective leadership and to enable the 

organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental 

changes and risks by: 

 Ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and 

development matching individual and organisational requirements is available and encouraged 

 Identifying training needs to ensure Members and Senior Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge resources 

and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a 

continuing basis 

 Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learned 

from governance weaknesses both internal and external 

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation 

 Taking steps to consider  the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from 

peer review and inspections 

 Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs 

 Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain  the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 

maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.  

 

8 

P
age 37



Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 

Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, 

and can sustain, an effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned 

services. Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a performance management system 

and are crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making 

activities. 

  

A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended 

outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and 

accountability.  

 

It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of accountable decision making, 

policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is 

critical to successful scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it 

requires repeated public commitment from those in authority. 

We will: 

Manage risk 

 

We will do this by: 

 Recognising  that risk management is an integral part of all activities 

and must be considered in all aspects of decision making 

 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements 

and ensuring that they are working effectively 

 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are 

clearly allocated.  

Note: Although we recognise that not all risks can be eliminated, we 

will ensure that we understand the impact of those risks and reduce 

them to an acceptable level over time.  

We will: 

Have strong public financial management 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring financial management supports 

both long term achievement of outcomes and 

short-term financial and operational 

performance 

 Ensuring well-developed financial 

management is integrated at all levels of 

planning and control, including management 

of financial risks and controls.  

9 

P
age 38



10 

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 
 

Continued… 

We will: 

Have robust internal controls 

 

We will do this by: 

 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal 

control with achieving objectives  

 Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal 

control on a regular basis 

 Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place 

 Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal auditor 

 Ensuring an audit committee which is independent of the 

executive and accountable to the governing body: 

 Provides a further source of assurance regarding the 

authority’s arrangements for managing risk and 

maintaining an effective control environment 

 And its recommendations are listened to and acted 

upon.  

 

We will: 

Manage performance 

 

We will do this by: 

Monitoring service delivery effectively including 

planning, specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review 

Making decision based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the  implications and 

risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook 

 Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in  

place which encourages effective and constructive 

challenge and debate on policies and objectives to 

support balanced and effective decision making  

 Providing Members and Senior Management with 

regular reports on service delivery plans and on 

progress towards outcome achievement  

 Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (e.g. financial statements).  

We will: 

Manage Data 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to 

safeguard personal data and preparations for compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) in May 2018.  

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies 

 Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring.  

P
age 39



Principle G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability 
 

Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are answerable for them. Effective 

accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to 

understand and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 

internal audit contribute to effective accountability.  

We will: 

Implement good practice in transparency 

 

We will do this by: 

 Writing and communicating reports for the 

public and other stakeholders in a fair, 

balanced and understandable style 

appropriate to the intended audience and 

ensuring that they are easy to access and 

interrogate 

 Striking a balance between providing  the 

right amount of information to satisfy 

transparency demands and enhance public 

scrutiny whilst not being too onerous to 

provide and for users to understand. 

We will: 

Provide assurance and effective accountability 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by internal and external audit are acted upon 

 Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance 

arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon 

 Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations 

 Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and this is evidenced in the annual governance 

statement 

 Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider public accountability has 

been recognised and met.  

We will: 

Implement good practices in reporting 

 

We will do this by: 

 Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of 

resources 

 Ensuring Members and Senior Management own the results 

 Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles 

contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on 

this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to 

demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement) 

 Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service 

organisations as appropriate  

 Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 

statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements 

allow for comparison with other, similar organisations. 

11 

P
age 40



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance 

Head of 

Paid 

Service 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Section 

151 

Officer 

Property 

Manager 

Devon Audit 

Partnership 
External 

Audit 

Human 

Resources 

Governance 

Manager 

Senior 

Managers 

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee 

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing 

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee 

Standards 

Committee 

Constitution 

General 

Public 

Members 

Governance : Key Functions 

12 

P
age 41



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance 

Head of 

Paid 

Service 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Section 

151 

Officer 

Property 

Manager 

Devon Audit 

Partnership 

External 

Audit 

Human 

Resources 

Governance 

Manager 

Senior 

Managers 

Grant Thornton 

• Ensure economic, efficient, & 

effective public services 

• Performance reports 

• Financial reports 

• VfM conclusions 

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes 
O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee 

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing 

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee 

Standards 

Committee 

Constitution 

Scrutiny 

• Independently review 

activities and decisions 

• Review/develop policies 

• Service reviews 

General 

Public 

Public Engagement 

• Individual surgeries 

• Town/Parish meetings 

• Working parties 

• Community groups 

• Public consultations 

Provide Assurance 

• Risk management framework 

• Control environment 

• Performance Scrutiny 

      (financial & non-financial) 

• Oversee financial reporting 

• CIPFA compliance 

Ethics 

• Promote/maintain high 

standards 

• Members code of conduct 

• Investigate/report on 

breaches to the code 

Members 

Provide Assurance 

• Produce Internal Audit Plan 

• Execute Audit Plan 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Regular reporting (A&G) 

• Provide audit opinion 

• Compliance with agreed polices & procedures 

• Compliance with Accounts & Audit  Regs 2016 

 

Standards 

• Audit Practices 

Board 

• CIPFA 

• PSIAS 

• IIA 

Corporate Management 

• Staff organisation 

• Economic and effective delivery 

of Council objectives 

• Compliance with section 4 of 

LG&H Act 1989 

Deliver Services 

• Business plan 

goals &objectives 

• Council policies  

• Assurance 

statements 

• Risk Management 

Financial Management 

• Ensure financial implications, 

opportunities & risks are fully considered 

for all material business decisions 

• Promote and deliver good financial 

management 

• Safeguard public monies 

• Comply with Section 151 of the Local 

Govt. Act 1972 

Legal & Ethical Assurance 

• Monitor ethical standards 

• Members code of conduct 

• Standards Committee 

• Openness & transparency 

• Compliance with section 5 of LG&H 

Act 1989 

• Date Security/Data Protection 

• Prepare AGS and evidence 

• Report writing protocol 

• Update Strategic Plan 

• Produce Business Plans & PIs 

• Customer Complaints 

• Communications Strategy 

• Staff newsletter 

• Member Induction & Bulletin 

Asset Management 

• Control asset register 

• Control property database 

• Conditions survey 

• Review property requirements 

• Asset disposal 

• Report to AMWG and C&R 

 

• Recruitment & selection 

• Job evaluation 

• Person specification 

• Induction process 

• Meet identified training needs 

• Control staff changes (GWAF) 

• Annual appraisal system 

 

Governance: 

Roles &  

Responsibilities 

13 

P
age 42



 
  

Governance Principles: Scoring summary for 2017/18          Appendix B 
 

 Topic 
Score 

Principle 
Score 
(Average) 

PRINCIPLE A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law 

98% 

A.1 Behave with integrity. 100% 
 

A.2 Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values 95% 
 

A.3 Respect the rule of law 100% 
 

PRINCIPLE B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 

93% 

B.1 Be Open 95% 
 

B.2 Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 95% 
 

B.3 Engage with individual citizens and service users effectively 90% 
 

PRINCIPLE C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

97% 

C.1 Define Outcomes 100% 
 

C.2 Provide sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 100% 
 

PRINCIPLE D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes 

82% 

D.1 Determine Interventions 100% 
 

D.2 Plan interventions 95% 
 

D.3 Optimise achievement of intended outcomes 50% 
 

PRINCIPLE E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it 

97% 

E.1 Develop the entity’s capacity 100% 
 

E.2 Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals  95% 
 

PRINCIPLE F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management 

98% 

F.1 Manage risk 100%  

F.2 Have strong public financial management 95%  

F.3 Manage performance 100%  

F.4 Have robust internal controls 95%  

F.5 Manage Data 100% 
 

PRINCIPLE G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective accountability 

98% 

G.1 Implement good practice in transparency 100% 
 

G.2 Implement good practices in reporting 100%  

G.3 Provide assurance and effective accountability 95%  

Overall Average Score 94% 

 

Page 43



 2017/18 AGS Action Plan: Sorted by Risk

Service / 

Theme

Responsible 

Officer

Known Areas of Weak or Missing controls / question 

numbers

Priority 

H/M/L

Action to be taken
Current Position

Community 

Safety 

Partnership

Janet Williams There is no Annual Strategic Assessment in place to report 

on the performance and work of the Community Safety 

Partnership
H

Complete an Annual Strategic Assessment and 

report to the appropriate Committee
30/09/2018

Health & 

Safety 

Janet Williams Insufficient resources to carry out an effective H&S function

H

Identify the additional resources required to 

effectively carry out the role and have a full plan in 

place
30/09/2018

H

From 30 April 2018 planning applications submitted 

to North Devon Council and Torridge District 

Council will be considered against relevant policies 

in the emerging North Devon and Torridge Local 

Plan. 

Complete

H

Awaiting Planning Inspector to produce a final 

report for TDC and NDDC based on her findings, 

setting out any changes needed so that the plan 

can be adopted. The plan is expected to be 

adopted this autumn. 

30/12/2018

M

Scoping workshop with SMT/OMT Complete

M
Major service recovery provision identified including 

staff and resource need
31/07/2018

M

Mapping exercise required to ensure ability to 

implement recovery position (physical resources 

and infrastructure

30/09/2018

M Approve Plan 31/10/2018

M Test Plan 30/11/2018

Harbour Sean Kearney Succession planning for Pilotage service in order to 

discharge pilotage responsibilities
M

Recruit and train an appropriately qualified pilot and 

deputy
31/07/2018

Health & 

Safety 

Janet Williams Health & Safety policies out of date - could contain unreliable 

or incorrect information M

A review of all H&S policies to be carried out

30/09/2018

From SENIOR MANAGER ASSURANCE STATEMENTS + INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW

Planning Jamie Hollis The adoption of the Local Plan was delayed by the Planning 

Inspector whose feedback resulted in the need for an 

additional public consultation. Until the local plan is formally 

adopted there is a risk that plan led housing delivery will be 

undermined which could adversely affect the character of 

settlements and landscapes in Torridge.

Business 

Continuity

SMT Audit conducted by Zurich Insurance identified a number of 

areas of vulnerability which need addressing in case of a 

major business Interruption event.

1

P
age 44



 2017/18 AGS Action Plan: Sorted by Risk

Health & 

Safety 

Janet Williams Fire and safety checks and risk assessments for some of the 

Council's smaller sites are overdue M

Carry out a review of fire and safety checks and 

risk assessments. 30/09/2018

Health & 

Safety 

Janet Williams Incomplete or inaccurate accident/incident reports may 

impair the ability to analyse data, identify trends and assist 

services with their safety requirements.
M

Records and summary sheets to be updated and 

maintained in full

Complete

M

The individual system' control environment and 

functionality will be reviewed to determine options 

and discussed with end user Manager
30/06/2018

M
Control measures will be updated to reflect the 

Corporate Security Standards
30/09/2018

ICT Steve Hearse The ICT Security policy was identified as requiring refreshing 

and updating during the year M

Policy has recently been refreshed and is now 

subject to review and approval by SMT prior to 

disseminating to Officers and Members

30/06/2018

Licensing Janet Williams Child Sexual Exploitation Training has not been provided for 

taxi drivers in the district (required for full compliance with the 

Children's Act). Any incidents would lead to reputational 

damage to the Council.

M

Effective processes are already in place for 

checking licensee applications and renewals. The 

Council is working alongside the police force to 

provide CSE training for all taxi drivers

31/12/2018

Planning Jamie Hollis Over reliance on temporary/agency staff to deal with work 

volumes placing strain on the budget. M

Successful appointment of a number of permanent 

officers and a range of other measures has 

alleviated this issue 

Complete

Risk 

Management

Steve Hearse No recent risk management training for the management 

team. Managers may not maintain an adequate awareness 

and understanding of the principles and importance of Risk 

Management 

M

Refresher course to be organised for SMT/OMT

31/03/2019

Risk 

Management

Steve Hearse Some inconsistences and inaccuracies found in service risk 

registers which may detract from their usefulness.
M

All risk registers to be reviewed and challenged by 

the Risk Management Group. The register format 

to be reviewed to ensure it is less onerous. 31/12/2018

Risk 

Management

Steve Hearse Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Group needs to 

be finalised and the group needs to meet on a 

frequent/regular basis.
M

Terms of reference have been finalised and RMG 

meetings scheduled for 2018/19

Complete

ICT Steve Hearse Password control, permission rights, administrator rights, and 

security logs - Bond (payroll system), Capita, and Efinancials

2

P
age 45



 2017/18 AGS Action Plan: Sorted by Risk

Asset 

Management

David Heyes In the Draft Statement of accounts (2016-17) there was an 

instance where 'migration' and 'acceptance' costs had not 

been capitalised L

The amount was non-material, so no adjustment 

was required to the accounts, but steps have been 

put in place to ensure this happens in future 

accounts.  

Complete

Asset 

Management

David Heyes There are come inconsistencies in the FPR  in relation to 

values and Disposal authorisation
L

Inconsistencies will be amended when the FPR are 

next updated and approved
30/06/2019

Benefits Simon Toon There had not been a full 'test restore' of the data back up of 

the Benefits records on Academy and DIPS for a prolonged 

period
L

A test restore of the system has been carried out 

and was successful

Complete

Cemeteries Andrew Waite Duplication of burial records due to the lack of a robust 

computerised solution. L
Awaiting the implementation of a full data solution

31/12/2018

Council Tax Simon Toon The procedure manual held on the ACS Navigator site 

remains out of date and in some instances inaccurate which 

could lead to the incorrect processing of Council Tax 

accounts.

L

The system owners have been contacted and the 

system has been updated

Complete

Finance David Heyes Inconsistencies on signatories list 

L

List updated and reminders sent Complete

Governance Jon Walter Access request forms could not be found for some officers 

who had access to Facebook and twitter as required by the 

Social Media Policy
L

All forms completed and reminder sent Complete

HR Sarah Ayres Leavers checklists not completed in all instances

L

Reminder issued to ensure checklists completed 

for all leavers

Complete

NNDR Simon Toon There was no independent monitoring of cases held at the 14 

day letter stage leading to delays in the recovery process
L

Quarterly monitoring process of any cases held for 

more than 14 days has been implemented

Complete

3

P
age 46



June 2018 

Annual Governance Statement 

2017/18 

DRAFT P
age 47

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiW6cyM4LvYAhVFBcAKHTC6DgYQjRwIBw&url=http://greatrissington.org/lorem-ipsum-dolor-sit-amet-consectetuer-adipiscing-elit-aenean-commodo-ligula-eget-dolor-aenean-massa-4/&psig=AOvVaw0O20Ko90gsdnk_TxvXBA_d&ust=1515067411301227


2 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating 

strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement 

C. Defining outcomes in 

terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 

environmental benefits 

E. Developing the entity’s 

capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it  

D. Determining the 

interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement 

of the intended outcomes 

G. Implementing good practices in 

transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver 

effective accountability 

F.  Managing risks and performance 

through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management 

The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with 

the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of 

Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This statement explains how Torridge has 

complied with the code and also how we meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.  

A copy of the Council’s code is 

available on our website at 

www.torridge.gov.uk/governance  

or can be obtained from the 

Governance Manager,  

Riverbank House, Bideford, 

Devon  EX39 2QG 

 The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good    

 governance and describes the arrangements the Council 

 has  put in place to meet each of these principles: 

 

Torridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly 

accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty 

under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement 

in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible 

for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 

exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk. 

  

Scope of 

Responsibility  

P
age 48

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12759/Corporate-Governance-at-Torridge


The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by which 

the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and accounts to the 

community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives 

and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective 

services and outcomes.  

 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 

risk to an acceptable level in accordance with our ‘risk appetite’ threshold. It cannot eliminate all 

risk of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to provide reasonable 

rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on 

going process designed to identify, prioritise and manage the risks to the achievement of the 

Council’s aims and objectives. 

  

The governance framework has been in place at Torridge District Council for the year 

ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts.  

 

The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and 

managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The 

Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focussed upon its corporate priorities and 

seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Strategic Plan. 

The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, such as 

standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the barriers to 

achieving the Council’s objectives. 

 

The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually through the Audit and 

Governance Committee. This last happened on 5 December 2017. Members and senior 

officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the 

Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  This task is managed by 

the Strategic Management Team (SMT) which comprises the Head of Paid Service (HOPS), the 

Section 151 Officer, and the Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer. 

  

The Council has designed systems and processes to regulate, monitor and control its activities 

in order to achieve its vision and objectives. The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the 

controls in full. 
 

The Purpose of 

the Governance 

Framework 

 

The  

Governance 

Framework 

3 

P
age 49



Code of Corporate Governance 
(The Council’s commitment to good governance based on the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework) 

Monitoring Officer 
(Legal & Ethical Assurance) 

Governance Manager 
(Challenge Governance Statement etc.) 

S151Officer 
(Promote & Deliver Good Financial Management) 

Annual Governance Statement 
(Meets Account & Audit Regulations and is published with the Annual Accounts) 

Constitution 

Code of Conduct 

Scheme of 

Delegation 

Complaints Process 

Equality & Diversity 

Financial Management 

Framework 

Budget Monitoring 

Process 

Compliance with CIPFA 

Guidelines 

HR Policies 

Pay Policy 

Risk Management  

Complaints 

Summary 

Reports 

Corporate 

Risk 

Register 

Annual Audit 

Letters 

(External) 

Local Government 

Ombudsman Report 

Statement of 

Accounts 

Standards 

Committee 

Strategic Plan 

Policies & Procedures 

Business Planning 

Business Continuity 

Performance Results 

Partnership Protocol 

Audit & Governance Committee 
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence. Approve AGS) 

Head of Paid Service & Strategic Management Team 
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence) 

Governance 

Framework 

Financial & Contract  

Procedure Rules 

Medium 

Term 

Financial 

Strategy 

Treasury & 

Investment 

Strategy 

Whistleblowing Policy 

Personal Appraisals 

Public 

Consultations 

Annual Audit 

Opinion (Int) 

Quarterly 

Business 

Report 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

(Internal) 

Manager’s 

Assurance 

Statements 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

(External) 

Committee 

Reports 

Service 

Risk 

Registers 

Bribery, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Policy 

4 

P
age 50



The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 

its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 

informed by: 

 the work of the Governance Team who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the governance environment;  

 the Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by the Devon Audit Partnership;  

 comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates; and 

 the Audit & Governance Committee review that the elements of the governance framework 

are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the principles. They also reviewed the 

system of internal audit and concluded it was effective and remained a key source of 

assurance for the Council in 2017/18.  

The Standards Committee has monitored standards of 

conduct of Members and advised the Council on probity 

issues. Entries made in the Register of Members’ Interests 

were reviewed by the Monitoring Officer. 

The Council’s Senior Managers have completed assurance 

statements for each of their areas of control, acknowledging 

responsibility for risk management and internal control, and 

certifying satisfaction with the arrangements in place 

throughout 2017/18.  

Other key officers have also been consulted for their 

views on the standards of governance within the Council 

– specifically the 

 Statutory Finance Officer,  

 Monitoring Officer, 

 Governance Manager, and  

 DAP Partnership Manager.  

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to 

look into matters of potential unlawfulness within the 

Council. In 2017/18 the Monitoring Officer has been 

working to ensure that the Council has the necessary 

arrangements in place to ensure compliance with the Data 

Protection Act 2017 which comes into effect in May 2018. 

The Performance Management Framework has operated 

effectively during the year. Monitoring information on key 

areas of performance has been provided to the 

Governance Team for review and action. Performance 

management outputs have also been reviewed by the 

Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee. 

In 2017/18 the Council responded to 49 stage 1 and 18 

stage 2 formal customer complaints. The service 

standard is 28 days and the Council responded to 86% of 

complaints within this timeframe. Any learning outcomes 

from the complaints received have been fed back and 

incorporated into changes in service provision. 5 

In accordance with section 3.7 of the Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting for 2016/17, Torridge’s financial 

management arrangements conform with the governance 

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the 

CFO in Local Government (2010). 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

P
age 51



Monitoring Reports from Key Partnerships and other External Bodies including: 

 North Devon Plus                     P Education – School Provision          P Community Safety Partnership 

 CAB                                         P North Devon’s Biosphere Reserve, AONB               P Review of External Grants 

 TVS                                         P Health, Wellbeing and Social Care                       P Burton Art Gallery 

 Fire Service                P Community Transport                        P Locality Working    

 Link Road Consultation           P One Northern Devon Suicide Prevention 

Reviewing Actions on Officer Reports: 

 Council Tax Support Scheme      P Quarterly Business Reports    P Peer Review Action Plan 

 Economic Strategy  P Re-design Quarterly Business Report          P Section 205 Notices                

 Empty Homes Strategy    P Process for Compulsory Purchase            P Discretionary Business Rate Relief 

 Land Charges     P Income Generation Working Party             P Harbour Board Working Party  

 Digital by Default      P Transforming Torridge Programme   

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided challenge and has monitored 

the Council’s policies and performance on an ongoing basis. Lead Members have also kept issues 

under review during meetings with managers. During 2017/18 the Members of O&S, both Internal 

and External, have worked together, adopting a non-political approach, developing and using their 

knowledge and expertise, and that of others to the best effect. An evidence-based approach to the 

O&S work has been instrumental in achieving good results.  There have been contributions, and 

input, from a range of stakeholders, including public and voluntary sector organisations, the public, 

officers and Members of the Council. Highlights have included:  

The Council is dedicated to ensuring that its resources are utilised in the 

most effective and efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. 

In 2017/18 the Transforming Torridge programme has delivered actions under 

the following major work streams: accommodation; digital by default; 

modernising democracy; locality working; and the waste service review. The 

Council’s new building (Riverside) has been delivered and is now occupied 

and the majority of staff will be relocated to a single site in late 2018.  

  

During 2017/18 specific Member training 

was provided for the Audit & Governance, 

Planning, Licensing, Standards, and 

Overview & Scrutiny Committees. General 

Member training included ‘The Role of a 

Councillor – Strategic and Community 

Leadership’ and ‘Safeguarding’.  

 
6 

Updates on Key Projects 

There was a standing item on the O&S (Internal) agenda to review the progress of the Transforming Torridge Programme (TTP). 

Since September 2017 a separate Programme Board has been established. It now meets regularly and reports to Full Council. 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

P
age 52



The Code of Governance was updated to give assurance 

that standards were met in key areas. The 2018 Code 

was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in 

December 2017.   

In August 2017 the Council’s external auditor (Grant 

Thornton) provided the Council with an unqualified 

opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual 

Audit and Inspection letter (see pages 89-91 in the 

Council’s 2016/17 financial statement). Grant Thornton 

also provided an unqualified opinion of the Council’s 

arrangements to secure Value For Money.  

Based on the assurance work undertaken by Internal 

Audit, the Audit Manager (DAP) has provided an opinion 

on the adequacy of the control environment which 

concluded that this was Significant. It should, however, 

be noted that all risks of failure cannot be eliminated, 

and the assurance given is therefore reasonable and not 

absolute. Isolated areas in which controls were below 

the required standard are reported initially to the relevant 

Manager who ensures prompt corrective action is taken, 

and ultimately to the A&G Committee who monitor 

progress with improvements via follow up reports from 

Internal Audit. 

In November 2017 the Council had an independent 

Information Governance Health Check undertaken by 

Zurich Insurance. The review concluded that Torridge was 

an organisation which has established a focussed 

approach on information management for many years. The 

final report included a number of recommendations to be 

actioned as appropriate – these actions were considered 

during the 2018/19 business planning process. 

Internal Audit assessed corporate governance 

arrangements by measuring the Council against the 

requirements of the governance framework outlined in the 

CIPFA / SOLACE publication “Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government”, and the results of this 

have been reported to the Audit and Governance 

Committee. In December 2016 DAP underwent an external 

examination against the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) and received the top rating. 

In the 2016/17 Annual Governance Statement, two 

significant issues were identified. The risks relating to the 

robustness of the Council’s telephony systems have been 

mitigated. Completion of the remaining action (the Local 

Plan) was delayed by the Planning Inspector who 

requested an additional hearing in January 2018.   

All key systems were audited in 2017/18 and a total of 20 

audit reports were provided to management and the A&G 

Committee. This included an audit of the Council’s Risk 

Management arrangements (the audit opinion was 

Satisfactory). During 2017/18 Risk Management has been 

a standing item in the A&G Agenda and a separate Risk 

Management Group met on a regular basis to discuss risks 

and review the Corporate and Operational Risk Registers.  

7 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

In February 2018 the Council had an independent Business 

Continuity Health Check undertaken by Zurich Insurance. 

Zurich are now working with the Council to ensure we have 

best practice in place going forward. 

The Council has in place regular reporting arrangements on the financial affairs of the 

Council. The budget for 2017/18 was agreed by Full Council in February 2017 and financial 

performance was reported on a quarterly basis to Members. 

P
age 53



8 

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this 

overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, XXXXX issues have been identified that 

need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The 

aim is to address these weaknesses during the 2018/19 financial year, by way of an action plan 

for improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be subject to 

regular monitoring by the Committee. 

Issue 
No. 

Significant Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Significant 

Governance 

Issues 

P
age 54



1 

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this 

overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, three issues have been identified that need 

to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to 

address these weaknesses during the 2018/19 financial year, by way of an action plan for 

improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be subject to 

regular monitoring by the Committee. 

Issue 
No. 

Significant Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed 

 

1 

 

 

There is no Annual Strategic Assessment in place to 

report on the performance and work of the Community 

Safety Partnership 

 

Complete an Annual Strategic Assessment and report to 

the appropriate Committee. 

 

Janet Williams, due by 30th September 2018 

 

2 

 

 

Insufficient resources to carry out an effective H&S 

function 

 

Identify the additional resources required to effectively carry 

out the role and have a full plan in place 

 

Janet Williams, due by 30
th

 September 2018 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The adoption of the Local Plan was delayed by the 

Planning Inspector whose feedback resulted in the 

need for an additional public consultation. Until the 

local plan is formally adopted there is a risk that plan 

led housing delivery will be undermined which could 

adversely affect the character of settlements and 

landscapes in Torridge. 

 

From 30 April 2018 planning applications submitted to 

Torridge District Council and North Devon Council will be 

considered against relevant policies in the emerging North 

Devon and Torridge Local Plan.  

 

ACTION COMPLETE 
 

Awaiting Planning Inspector to produce a final report for 

TDC and NDDC based on her findings, setting out any 

changes needed so that the plan can be adopted. The plan 

is expected to be adopted late 2018. 

 

 Sean Kearney, due by 30
th

 December 2018 

Significant 

Governance 

Issues 

P
age 55



UNAUDITED 

STATEMENT 

OF 

ACCOUNTS 

2017/18 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



 

Draft Statement of accounts 2017/18   

 

     

Contents – Overview  
           

Foreword from Strategic Manager Resources 
 
1: Narrative Report 
 
2: Draft Annual Governance Statement 
 
3: Statement of Responsibilities 
 
Core Statements 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 Movement in Reserves Statement 
 Balance Sheet 
 Cash Flow Statement 

 
4: Statement of Accounting Policies 
 
5: Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted 
 
6: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
7: Assumptions about future and major source of estimation 
 
8: Events after the Accounting period 
 
Notes to the Core Statements 
 
Collection Fund Statement 
 
9: Auditor Opinion 
 
10: Glossary of Terms 

Page 57

chris.dobbs
Typewritten Text
2 of 102

chris.dobbs_1
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_2
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_3
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_4
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_5
Typewritten Text



Narrative report  
�

1.1 An Introduction to the 2017/18 Annual Accounts 

The purpose of this report is to provide the reader with an explanation of the most 

significant financial matters reported in the accounts. It sets out the overall financial 

position and details the Council�s financial transactions for the year ending 31st March 

2018.

1.2 Core Statements 

The core statements are comprised of 

• Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES)  
•    Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS)
• Balance Sheet 

• Cash Flow Statement  

The purpose of each of the components is set out below. 

1.3 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The CIES provides a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the 

Council during the year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices 

(GAAP).   

Accompanying the CIES are two notes, which are not core statements but are given 

due prominence in accordance with the Code of Practice: 

• The Expenditure and Funding Analysis � Demonstrates to stakeholders 

how the funding available to the authority (i.e. government grants, rents, 

council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in providing 

services, in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by 

authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 

Additionally it also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision 

making purposes between the Council�s various responsibilities areas.  

• Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature - shows the surplus or deficit 

on the provision of the services included on the CIES, analysed by nature. 

3 of 102
Page 58

chris.dobbs_6
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_7
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_8
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_9
Typewritten Text



Narrative report  

For information the main functions contained within the responsibility areas shown on 
both the Expenditure Funding Analysis and the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are detailed below: 

Head of Planning & Development 
o Development Control 
o Planning Enforcement  
o Planning Policy 

Senior Solicitor 
o Property Services 
o Cemeteries and Open Spaces 
o Elections and Corporate Governance 
o Human Resources 
o Legal & Land Charges 

Strategic Manager (Resources) 
o Council Tax & Business Rates Collection 
o Housing Benefits 
o Homelessness 
o Finance 
o ICT 

Strategic Manager (Services) 
o Environmental Health & Food Safety 
o Licensing 
o Economic Development 
o Building Control 
o Parking 
o Waste Collection & Recycling 
o Street Cleansing 
o Leisure 

1.4 Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement analyses the changes in the Council�s reserves over the year and 

clearly shows the real value of cash reserves held by the council. Reserves are 

classed as �Useable� i.e. those which may be used to provide services or invested in 

capital, or �Unusable� which must be set aside for specific purposes. 

1.5 The Balance Sheet 

This statement is fundamental to the understanding of the Council�s financial position 

at the year end.  It shows all the balance and reserves available to the Council, its 

long term indebtedness and the current and non current assets employed in its 

operation. 

1.6 Cash Flow Statement 

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising 

from the Council�s transactions with third parties for both revenue and capital 

purposes. 

�

�

�

4 of 102
Page 59

chris.dobbs_10
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_11
Typewritten Text



Narrative report  
�

1.7 Collection Fund 
This account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council, in its capacity as a 
billing authority, to maintain a separate Collection Fund for National Non Domestic 
Rates (Business Rates) and Council Tax. It illustrates how these have been 
distributed to the various preceptors, namely:

• Devon County Council (Council Tax & Business Rates)  

• Devon and Cornwall Police Commissioner (Council Tax) 

• Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

• Central Government  (Business Rates) 

• Torridge District Council (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

The balance sheet only reflects the Council�s share of the any Collection Fund 

surplus or deficit. 

1.8 Accounting Policies 
This section describes the accounting concepts and policies adopted in the 

preparation the accounts. The Council complied with all recommended accounting 

practices contained within the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2017/18, which is recognised by statute as representing proper 

accounting practice. These principles provide the basis by which authorities present 

their net cost of services in the statement of accounts.

1.9 Financial Performance 
The purpose of the narrative report is to provide commentary on the main financial 

highlights and to identify any significant events that may effect the reader�s 

interpretation of the Financial Statements. 

1.10 Revenue Expenditure  
The Council originally budgeted to spend £9.491m, funded from the following 

sources: 

• Central Government Support Grant   £0.716m 

• New Homes Bonus      £1.755m 

• Rural Sparsity Grant      £0.380m 

• Council Tax      £3.736m 

• Business Rates (including Section 31 Grants) £2.904m 

The 2017/18 outturn was shows a favourable variance to budget of £604k for the 

year, arrived at through a combination of savings of £559k and increased income of 

£45k. The following tables analyse this surplus by nature and by responsibility area.  

5 of 102
Page 60



Narrative report  
�

�

Variance from Budget 

2017/18 
under / 
(over) 
spend  
£'000 

Staffing related savings after meeting vacancy target of £100k 140

Premises Related Savings 108

Additional Income from Joint North Devon Crematorium                                     65

Various Government Grants received in year to support services 117

Car Parking Income 127

Planning Income 51

Under spend on Planning Studies and Reports 43

Rental and other Income  97

Transport Costs 71

Reduced provision for bad debts 53

Approved release from Reserve for Agency backfilling of Planning 
Vacancies 120

Homelessness related costs 30

Purchase of Refuse Bins for revised Refuse service 25

Purchase of vehicles not charged to Capital 32

Professional Fees (110)

Renewal of Environmental Warranty Insurance on properties 
previously transferred to Tarka Housing (56)

Telephony system upgrade / Oracle Data Migration costs (111)

Other misc over spends (31)

Housing Benefit Subsidy - Homelessness B&B and Assisted 
Tenancies (212)

Subtotal - Savings 559

Release of Business Rates Renewable Energy Surplus from prior 
year 25

Additional Section 31 Grant Income - Small Business & 
Discretionary Relief 252

Contribution to Devon Business Rate Pool (237)

Council Tax Surplus 5

Subtotal - Income 45

2017-18 Outturn Total 604

6 of 102
Page 61



 

Narrative report   

 

The table below details the breakdown of the 2017/18 surplus across the Council’s   
reporting segments 

 

The £604k surplus has been transferred to reserves and is contained within the figures 
in the ‘As reported for resource management’ column in note 1a ‘Expenditure Funding 

Analysis’ which now reports a Nil variance.  

The funds have been earmarked for future utilisation as detailed below  

  

 
Parking Pay and Display Machines 
The Council’s current Parking and Display machines are coming towards the end of 
their useful life. In addition to the £66k set aside from the 2017-18 surplus, a further 
£90k has been earmarked in the 2018/19 budget for the roll out of replacement 
machines. 

Planned Maintenance 
The Council sets aside £80k on annual basis towards planned maintenance, 
however it has been recognised that there are significant pressures on this budget in 
2018-19, most notably at the Council Offices at Riverbank House and the BMX Track 
at East the Water. Consequently additional funds have been set aside from the 2017-
18 surplus. 

 
 
 

Utilisation of 2017-18 Surplus £'000

Replacement Pay and Display Parking Machines 66

Planned Maintenance 188

Employment of Apprentices 50

Project Management 90

Additonal Resource - required to meet General Data 

Protection Regulations 12

Provision of agency backfill of vacancies within Property 

Services & ICT 75

Transfer to Contingency Reserve 45

Transfer to the Transition in Government Funding Reserve 78

Subtotal 604

Page 62



Narrative report  

Apprentices 
With effect from 6th April 2017, the Government introduced the Apprenticeship Levy 
applicable to all organisations, public and private, with an annual wage bill over £3 
million requiring them to pay 0.5% of their monthly payroll into the organisation�s 
Apprenticeship Levy Fund, collected by HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC). Torridge 
District Council supports the employment of apprentices, consequently £50k from the 
2017/18 under spend has been set aside to allow the Council to continue its support 
for apprentices. 

Project Management � Property & Regeneration 
The Property Team has a significant number of projects currently being managed 
e.g. Brunswick Wharf, Council Accommodation, Cleave Wood, Caddsdown, Bideford 
Skate Park and a Vehicle Storage Depot for Refuse Vehicles to name a few. The 
existing internal staffing resources are insufficient to deliver all the projects 
concurrently in addition to business as usual work programmes.  

A Regeneration Officer was been appointed and it has been recognised that 
resources need to be allocated to facilitate the securing of inward investment. 

General Data Protection Regulations 
The requirements of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)  which come 
into effect from the 25th May 2018 place a greater onus on all organisations to ensure 
that personal data held is secure, that it usage is legitimate and that personal data is 

not held for longer than it is required. To ensure the Council meets the obligations of 
GDPR, the Devon Audit Partnership has been commissioned at a cost of £12k to 
support the Council with the introduction of GDPR. 

Agency Backfill � ICT and Property Services 
The property services and ICT departments both currently have vacancies, it is 
recognised that the cost of back-filling vacant posts from an agency is significantly 
greater than the savings accruing from the vacancies. £75k has been set aside to 
meet these additional costs whilst the Council seeks to fill the vacant posts. 

Contingency  
The Council has a general contingency budget of £70k, it is proposed to transfer the 
2017-18 under utilisation of this budget of £45k to the Contingency Reserve. 

Transition in Government Funding Reserve 
To mitigate the reduction in Central Government funding the Council created a 
Transition in Government Funding Reserve, to be utilised for balancing the revenue 
budget.  The balance  of the 2017/18 underspend, after meeting the pressures 
identified above (£78k), is to be put back into the Transition in Government Funding 
Reserve. 

1.11 Capital Expenditure 
The budget for the capital programme for the year was £12m (of which £3.4m was 

brought forward from prior years). The capital programme included £4.6m for the 

purchase of a new Refuse Depot and £2.5m for the purchase of new vehicles (mainly 

refuse vehicles to support the revised refuse service due to commence in June 

2018); delivery of these vehicles commenced at the close of the financial year 

2017/18 and the Council has yet to secure a permanent site for a new Depot.  

8 of 102
Page 63



Narrative report  
�

Therefore the budgeted expenditure for these items has been rolled forward to 

2018/19. 

During the year, capital expenditure amounted to £2.173m, funded by capital 

receipts, external grants and earmarked reserves. 

The key areas of expenditure are detailed below: 

• Disabled adaptations    £0.336m 

• S106 Affordable Housing   £0.404m 

• Purchase of Vehicles    £0.299m 

• New Boxes and Containers for revised 

Refuse collection service   £0.116m 

• New Office Accommodation at Riverbank £0.593m 

During 2017/18 the Council delivered new office accommodation at its Riverbank site 

and initiated the transfer of staff from the offices at Bridge Buildings to the new site; 

itis anticipated that the transfer of all staff based at Bridge Buildings will be completed 

by the end of summer 2018. 

�

1.12 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows an overall 

surplus of £5.9m for the year; primarily due to favourable movements on the 

valuation on the Council�s property and pension liability.  

A number of statutory accounting adjustments are made to the final accounts in order 

to reflect the final cash position. These entries are included in the Adjustments 

between Accounting Entries and Funding Basis under regulations with the Movement 

in Reserves Statement.  

1.13 The Movement in Reserves Statement 
This statement is the key to establishing the aggregate financial position of the 

Council, as it produces a summary of all the �cash backed� reserves that the Council 

holds. It shows that the Council�s usable reserves increased by £0.140m to 

£12.742m during 2017/18. 

1.14 The Balance Sheet 
Notable items on the balance sheet are : 

• Assets held for sale increased in value by £2.5m � primarily as a result of 

planning permission being awarded for residential housing on land held by 

the Council at Cleave Wood East the Water, Bideford. 

• The overall Pension deficit has decreased by £2.177m  

• Usable Reserves have increased to £12.742m 

As a result of the above, the net assets for the period have increased by 

£5.9m 

9 of 102
Page 64



Narrative report  
�

1.15 Cash Flow Statement 
The Council had a net cash inflow of £1.040m during 2017/18  

1.16 The Collection Fund 
The financial highlights are detailed below 

Council Tax 

• The Council set a Band D Equivalent Council Tax of £153.66 in 2017/18

• The Council Tax collection rate in 2017/18 was 98.03% (98.2% 2016/17)

• The difference between the forecast level of council tax receivable and the 

actual outturn for 17/18 resulted in an overall surplus on the fund of £0.062m 

at 31/03/2018; of which 11.99% is due to Torridge Council, amounting to 

£0.008m.

Business Rates 

• The Business Rates collection rate in 2017/18 was 98.49% (97.8% in 
2016/17)

• In the difference between the forecast level of NNDR receivable and the 

actual outturn for 2017/18, resulted in an overall surplus of £1.157m at the 

31st March 2018; of which 40% is due to Torridge Council, amounting to 

£0.463m.

1.17 Pension Fund 
The highlights of the pension fund are: 

• Pension Fund assets have increased by £1.053m to £44.552m (£43.499m in 

2016/17) 

• Pension Fund liabilities have decreased by £1.124m to £86.452m (£87.576 in 

2016/17) 

• The net deficit on the pension fund has decreased by £2.177 to £41.900m 

(£44.077m in 2016/17) 

The last Tri-annual review of the Council�s pension scheme resulted in the 

Employer�s Pension contribution rate rising from 14.3% to 15.8%.  In addition the 

Council makes an annual contribution to the underlying pension deficit of £0.7m.  The 

next tri-annual review of the Council�s pension scheme is scheduled for 2019/20.  

1.18 Treasury Activities 
The main purpose of the Council�s Treasury Management Strategy is to  

• Ensure the Council has sufficient cash to meet its day to day obligations 

• Invest surplus funds in a manner that balances low risk of default by the investee 

with a fair rate of interest 

As at the 31st March 2018, the Council held £12m of short term investments held with 

Fitch 1 rated UK banks and Building Societies. These investments generated interest 

receivable of £0.078m, which gave an average rate of interest of 0.55% and a further 

£0.011m was received from the balances on our current accounts. 

The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is reviewed annually to ensure 

that new and emerging risks are mitigated and opportunities identified  
10 of 102

Page 65



Narrative report  

1.19 Borrowing 
As at the 31st March 2018 the Council had a total borrowing of £1.156m which 

included seven Public Works Board loans outstanding with a principal of £1.143m. 

The interest paid on these loans during 2017/18 was £0.071m, the interest rates on 

these loans being between 4.87% and 8.125%. 

1.20 Valuation of Property Portfolio 
The Council instructed the District Valuer to undertake a full valuation of 1/5 of its 

asset portfolio and a desktop review of the remaining assets to ascertain a �true and 

fair� view for the 31st March 2018 balance sheet.  

11 of 102
Page 66



Narrative report  

1.21 Strategic Plan � Key Actions in furtherance of Strategic Plan 

The Council� strategic plan for the period 2016-2020 set out four goals for the 

Council, the key activities undertaken in the financial year 2017/18 with respect to 

these goals are: 

• Goal 1 � Developing a prosperous & sustainable economy  

o Membership of Devon Business Rates Pilot to retain locally the growth from 

business rates income, which is to be set aside to invest into economic 

regeneration 

o Allocation of Capital funding for further development at the Caddsdown 

Business Park 

o Identifying businesses eligible for NNDR discretionary reliefs - £0.194m 

o Members voted to proceed with the development of East of the Water 

Wharves with their preferred bidder for the site �Red Earth Developments� 

• Goal 2 - Stronger, safer, healthier Communities 

o Allocation of £0.463m in Community Grants  

o Westward Ho! Beach was awarded the prestigious Blue Flag award for the 

14th consecutive year. 

o Relocation of the Skate Park 

o Following the damage caused by storm Eleanor, the Council responded 

quickly to re-establish the coastal defences on the Northam Burrows   

o Second tranche of funding applied to social housing in Westward Ho!  

• Goal 3 � Protecting & Enhancing our quality environment 

o Secured four year lease on a site for interim Refuse Depot in support of the 

reorganisation of Waste Collection Services  

o The Council extended the range of plastic materials that could be picked in 

their weekly recycling collections, to include virtually all types of plastics. 

• Goal 4 � effective and Customer Focussed Council. 

o Launch of Digital by Default  service to enable customers to alternative means 

of interacting with the Council  

o The Council added new software to make their web pages as accessible as 

possible to people of all ages, including people with disabilities. 

o With the completion of the new Riverside building, 60 Council staff have 

relocated from Bridge Buildings, as the Council looks to consolidate services 

onto one site, in order to improve efficiency and release cash savings.. 

o The Council consolidated its internet and network equipment on a single site 

as part of Torridge�s �Transformation Programme� 

12 of 102
Page 67



Narrative report  
�

1.22 Key performance indicators 

Below is an extract of our draft Annual Report providing Key Performance Indicator data 

relating to our strategic goals.  The full document will be available on Torridge Council�s 

website. 

13 of 102
Page 68



 

Narrative report   

 

1.23 Meeting the Challenges – The Medium Term Financial Strategy 
The Council’s Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) presented to 
Full Council on the 26th February 2018 identified funding challenges over the life of the 
MTFS, as shown in the table below:  

Years 2018/19 
 £m 

2019/20 
 £m 

2020/21 
 £m 

2021/22 
 £m 

2022/23 
£m 

Budget Gap 
/(surplus) 

0 0.368 0.494 0.482 0.413 

 

The MTFS recognised a series of risks and uncertainties both locally and nationally in the 
way the Council is funded and the impact Government policy has when implemented locally.  
The key areas we will be focussing our attention to are: 

 The move to 75% Business Rates retention by 2020 
 Torridge membership of the Devon Business Rate Pilot 
 The fair funding review 
 National living wage 
 Continued roll out of Universal Credit 
 The demise of Revenue Support Grant and the future of New Homes Bonus and 

other grants that form the Government Funding envelope 
 The increased reliance of the Council on Business Rates Income 
 The anticipated additional income accruing from the introduction of charging for the 

collection of organic waste 
 Uncertainty of future pension contributions 

The MTFS report recognised that the projected funding gaps for future years were subject to 
some key assumptions 

 Council Tax increases of 1.99% for years 2020/21 – 2022/23 
 Growth in underlying Business Rates base of 0.5% 
 Assumptions regarding funds set aside into provision for future business rate appeals 
 Salary increases of 2% per annum from 2020/21 – 2022/23 
 No change to funding mechanism for New Homes Bonus 
 Rural Sparsity Grant to continue at 2017/18 level (£0.38m) 
 Employer pension contributions to rise by 1.3% from 2020/21, with an additional 

£100k annual uplift in the Council’s contribution towards the pension deficit. 

The Council’s reserve levels are constantly reviewed in order to ensure that the Council 
has adequate financial resources to meet future uncertain financial pressures.  The 
current levels of reserves are considered adequate to balance the Council’s projected 
deficit whilst savings are identified to bridge the funding gap. 

  

Page 69

chris.dobbs_12
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_13
Typewritten Text
14 of 102

chris.dobbs_14
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_15
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_16
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_17
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_18
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_19
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_20
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_21
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_22
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_23
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_24
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_25
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_26
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_27
Typewritten Text



Narrative report  
�

The MTFS presented to Full Council on the 26th February 2018 approved a Capital Program 

for the period  2017/18 � 2021/22 of £23.6m, the categories of capital spend and sources of 

funding are detailed below.  

* Please note the provision of the new Operations depot has been moved from 2017/18 to 

2018/19 

  

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 Total

Expenditure Category £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ICT Related 164         180        80          80          -        504          

Vehicles & Plant 2,516      357        90          86          -        3,049       

Car Parks 355         265        -         -         -        620          

Transforming Torridge 1,224      -         -         -         -        1,224       

Operations New Depot 464         4,200     -         -         -        4,664       

Regeneration Projects 1,015      2,380     3,297     1,016     -        7,708       

Enviromental Projects 265         -         -         451        -        716          

Housing Related 308         -         -         -         -        308          

Maintaining Infrastructure 709         900        50          50          -        1,709       

Disabled Facilities Adaptations 798         578        578        578        578       3,110       

Total 7,818      8,860     4,095     2,261     578       23,612     

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 Total

Sources of Funding  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Specific Capital Reserves 1,658      637        170        166        -        2,631       

Transforming Torridge Reserve 1,224      -         -         -        1,224       

General Capital Reserve 4,072      1,645     647        692        7,056       

Prudential Borrowing -          4,000     -         -         -        4,000       

Grants & External Contributions 864         1,578     2,678     1,403     578       7,101       

Capital Receipts -          1,000     600        -         -        1,600       

Total 7,818      8,860     4,095     2,261     578       23,612     

Approved Capital Program

Sources of Funding for Approved Capital Program

15 of 102
Page 70



Narrative report  

1.24 Future Uncertainty 

Business Rates 
Looking to the future, the Council faces greater uncertainty with regard to its funding, as it is 
anticipated that 75% Business Rates Retention will commence in the financial year 2020/21. 
For 2018/19 Torridge is a member of the Devon Business Rates Pilot, where all Business 
Rates collected in Devon are retained locally. It is envisaged that membership of the Devon 
Business Rate Pilot will be advantageous to Torridge; however the benefits accruing to 
Torridge depend on the overall performance of every member of the pilot and uncertainty 
surrounding the failures within the retail sector could impact adversely upon Torridge�s 
finances. 

The introduction of Business Rate Revaluations from the 1st April 2017 also saw the 
introduction of a new system for lodging business rate appeals (Check, Challenge Appeal). 
The new appeals system requires a greater onus upon the appellant to provide information 
in support of their appeal.  Previously some agents would lodge appeals on behalf of clients 
in a speculative manner. The result has been a significant reduction in the number of 
appeals  lodged during 2017/18, however past experience would indicate that business rate 
revaluations are the biggest source of appeals and there is likely to be timing delays as 
appellant�s gather the data required to meet the new criteria.  
  
Fair Funding Review 
Alongside the 2017/18 Local Government Finance Settlement, the Government announced 
the Fair Funding Review, which will conduct a thorough review of the �needs assessment 
formula� and how this should be amended in a world in which local government spending is 
increasingly funded by local resources not central grants. The impact of this review locally 
cannot be ascertained at this juncture. 

16 of 102
Page 71



Audit and Governance Statement 

2. Audit and Governance Statement

17 of 102
Page 72



Audit and Governance Statement 

18 of 102
Page 73



Audit and Governance Statement 

19 of 102
Page 74



Audit and Governance Statement 

20 of 102
Page 75



Audit and Governance Statement 

21 of 102
Page 76



Audit and Governance Statement 

22 of 102
Page 77



Audit and Governance Statement 

23 of 102
Page 78



Audit and Governance Statement 

24 of 102
Page 79



 

Audit and Governance Statement   

 

 

 

Page 80

chris.dobbs_28
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_29
Typewritten Text
25 of 102



  

Statement of Responsibilities       

 

 
3. Statement of Responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure 
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, in line 
with statute the responsibility is held by the Section 151 Officer, who in this Council is 
the Strategic Director (Resources). 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets. 

 Certify the statement of Accounts. 

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts to present fairly the financial position of the Council in accordance with proper 
practices set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (“the code”) at the accounting date and the income and expenditure for the year 
then ended.  In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 officer has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently 
 Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
 Complied with code 

The Section 151 Officer has also  

 Kept proper, up to date accounting records, and 
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities. 

I certify that the statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Torridge District Council as at 31st March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the 
year end 31st March 2018. 

 

Steve Hearse 
Strategic Manager (Resources) 
Section 151 Officer 
 

  

Page 81

chris.dobbs_30
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_31
Typewritten Text
26 of 102

chris.dobbs_32
Typewritten Text



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Gross 

Expenditure Gross Income Net Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure Gross Income Net Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1,119 (634) 485 1,143 (804) 339

3,016 (1,219) 1,797 3,969 (1,406) 2,563

21,552 (18,812) 2,740 22,060 (18,292) 3,768

5,931 (2,624) 3,307 6,969 (3,242) 3,727

31,618 (23,289) 8,329 34,140 (23,743) 10,397

252 (355) (103) 295 (318) (23)

8,226 10,373

993 6 1,027

801 7 979

(11,595) 8 (11,500)

(1,575) 879

(2,368) 39 (3,046) 

12,475 48 (3,741) 

10,108 (6,787)

8,533 (5,907)

This section is a summary of our spending per our Reporting Structure on services and where we got the money from to do so.

2016/17

Notes

2017/18

Joint Head of Planning & Development Services

Solicitor

Strategic Manager (Resources)

Strategic Manager (Services)

Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure 

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 

Cost of services

Other Operating Expenditure 

Other

Subtotal

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure

Remeasurements of the net defined 

benefit liability

Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

27 of 102
Page 82



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2016 1,077         9,885         966            139            12,067       (224)           11,843       

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services 1,575 1,575 1,575 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (10,108)      (10,108)     

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,575 1,575 (10,108) (8,533) 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 

under regulations 5 (320)           (712)           (10)             (1,041)        1,041         -             

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves 1,255 (712) (10) 534 (9,067) (8,533) 

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves 43 (1,247) 1,247 

Net (Increase)/Decrease in 2016/17 8 1,247 (712) (10) 534 (9,067) (8,533) 

Balance at 31 March 2017 1,085 11,133 254 129 12,602 (9,292) 3,310 

Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,085         11,133       12,219       

 Held for Capital Purposes 254           129           384           

General Fund Movement for the 2016/17 year 8 1,247 1,255 

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2017 1,085         11,133       254            129            12,602       (9,292)        3,310         

Reset of balances due to roundings* (1) 2 

1,084 11,133 256 129 12,602 (9,292) 3,310 

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services (879) (879) (879) 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 6,787         6,787        

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (879) (879) 6,787 5,907 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 

under regulations 5 1,069         (49)             (1)               1,019         (1,019)        0                

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves 1,069 (49) (1) 140 5,767 5,907 

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 43 (190) 190 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in 2017/18 0 190 (49) (1) 140 5,767 5,907 

Balance at 31 March 2018 1,084 11,323 207 128 12,742 (3,525) 9,218 

Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,084         11,323       12,407       

 Held for Capital Purposes 207           128           335           

General Fund Movement for the 2017/18 year 1 190 190 

* Over time the roundings cause the MiRS to become out of sync with the balance sheet - this clarifies the impact of roundings in the interest of transparency

Movement in Reserves Statement 

USEABLE RESERVES

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

2016/17

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves  held by the Authority, analysed into �usable reserves� (i.e. those that can be 

applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true 

economic cost of providing the authority�s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is 

different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. The net Increase/Decrease 

before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked 

reserves undertaken by the Council. 

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

USEABLE RESERVES

2017/18

28 of 102
Page 83



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Balance Sheet

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Notes £000

33,002 Property, Plant & Equipment 18 33,325 

1,219 Heritage Assets 20 1,219 

58 Intangible assets 21 107 

1,625 Investment Properties 22 1,565 

114 Long-term Debtors 23 47 

36,017 Non-Current Assets 36,263 

13,046 Short-Term Investments 25 12,032 

140 Assets held for sale 24 2,650 

2,495 Short-Term Debtors 26 3,012 

1,425 Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 2,465 

17,106 Current Assets 20,159 

(3,166) Short-term Creditors 31 (3,618) 

(674) Provisions 32 (455) 

(96) Short-term Borrowing 33 (191) 

(3,936) Current Liabilities (4,265) 

(1,155) Long-Term Borrowing 34 (964) 

(94) Other Long-Term Liabilities 35

(44,077) Pension Fund Liability 48 (41,900) 

(550) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (75) 

(45,877) Long Term Liabilities (42,939) 
0 

3,310 Net Assets 9,218 
0 

(44,077) Pension Fund Reserve 36 (41,900) 

(87) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (88) 

(164) Collection Fund Adjustment 37 526 

811 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 38 243 

12,295 Revaluation Reserve 39 14,987 

21,930 Capital Adjustment Account 40 22,707 

(9,292) Total Unusable Reserves (3,525) 

129 Capital Grants Unapplied 41 128 

256 Capital Receipts Reserve 42 207 

11,133 Earmarked Reserves 43 11,322

1,084 General Fund reserve 1,084 

12,603 Total Usable Reserves 12,742 
0 

3,310 Total Reserves 9,218 

This section shows our financial position at the end of the financial year.

There have been no material adjustments to the balances since the inspection copy of the statements was 

made available for review.

29 of 102
Page 84



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Cash Flow Statement

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Notes £000

1,575 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (879) 

2,748 

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements 44 2,440 

(565) 

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing activities 

(See note references) 44 (1,618) 

3,758 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (57) 

(3,150) Investing Activities 46 1,193 

(96) Financing Activities 47 (96) 

512 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,040 

913 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 

period 27 1,425 

1,425 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 

period 27 2,465 

This section shows what cash we spent and received

30 of 102
Page 85



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4. Statement of Accounting Policies 

4.1 General Principles 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council�s transactions for the 2017/18 financial 
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2018. The Authority is required to prepare 
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016  to be 
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the �Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2017/18�. 

The Accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified by the 
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. These 
statements have been compiled on the basis of the Council remaining a going concern and 
all amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.  The complexity of the information is 
such that that there may be small rounding differences between parts of the Financial 
Statements or Totals may not sum correctly. 

For the 2017/18 the Council has made no changes to its accounting policies 

4.2 Accruals and Prepayments of Income and Expenditure 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Authority. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed � where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried 
as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services provided (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than payments 
made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for 
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

• Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

4.3 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
Expenditure on services and income relating to those services is classified within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK.  The 2017/18 code requires that authorities present 
expenditure and income on services on the basis of their reportable segments.  These 
reportable segments are based upon the Authority�s internal management reporting 
structure. 

31 of 102
Page 86



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4.4 Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non current assets during the year: 

• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off 

• amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluations, 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from 
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to at 
least 4% of the underlying amount measured by the adjusted Capital Financing 
requirement). 

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
the Minimum Revenue Provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for 
the difference between the two. 

4.5 Employee Benefits 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits e.g. cars for current employees and are recognised as 
an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. 

An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave e.g. time off in 
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees carry forward 
into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in 
the accounting year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 

4.6 Termination Benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 
terminate an officer�s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer�s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service area within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to 
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are 
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for  
Pension enhancement termination benefits and replaces them with debits for the cash paid 
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-
end. 

32 of 102
Page 87



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4.7 Post-Employment Benefits 
Employees of the Authority are members of The Local Government Pension Scheme, 
administered by Peninsula Pensions on behalf of Devon County Council. The scheme 
provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as 
employees worked for the Authority. 

4.8 The Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

• The liabilities of the Devon County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about 
mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc., and projections of earnings for current 
employees. 

• The assets of the Devon County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

o quoted securities � current bid price 
o unquoted securities � professional estimate of fair value 
o unitised securities � average of the bid and offer rates 
o property � market value 

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 

• current service cost � the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year � allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

• past service cost � the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years debited to the Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement  

• net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the 
authority � the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises 
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement � this is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability 
at the beginning of the period � taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

Re-measurements comprising: 

• the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

• actuarial gains and losses � changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions � charged to the Pensions 
reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

• Contributions paid to the Local Government Pensions Scheme - cash paid as 
employer�s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to  

33 of 102
Page 88



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations  
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions 
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to 
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned 
by employees. 

4.9 Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 

4.10 Grants and Contributions 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

• the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as either short term or long term creditors depending upon 
the conditions. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
relevant Cost of Service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. When it has been applied it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

4.11 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
REFCUS represents expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does 
not result in the creation of tangible assets controlled by the Council. Service revenue 
accounts have been charged on the basis of the benefit that the service received as a result 
of the expenditure, net of any capital grants received during the year. As the asset created is 
not owned by the Authority at the end of the accounting period, the expenditure, net of any 
capital grants received during the year, is immediately written off in full in the year of 
creation. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the REFCUS from existing  

34 of 102
Page 89



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then 
reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

4.12 Value Added Tax 
Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT as all VAT collected is 
payable to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from it, except where 
the Council is unable to recover VAT. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 

4.13 Exceptional Items 
When items of income and expenses are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or  
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding 
of the Authority�s financial performance. 

4.14 Minimum Revenue Provision 
The Prudential Code requires that all capital expenditure is financed by a credit to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. If funding is not immediately available then a capital financing 
requirement (CFR) arises. 

Essentially the CFR has to be mitigated over time on a prudent basis by making a �minimum 
revenue provision�. This is a charge to the General Fund made from the �Adjustments 
between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations� and the Capital 
Adjustment account. 

The basis of estimation adopted by the Authority comprises three elements: 

• To make a minimum revenue provision of 4% on assets acquired prior to 1 April 
2008. 

• Finance leases have their capital financing applied on a straight line basis over the 
life of the lease contract. 

• New assets, acquired after 1 April 2008, that are not finance leases, have their 
capital financing calculated on a straight line basis over the life of the asset. 

4.15 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of 
the events and their estimated financial effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 

35 of 102
Page 90



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4.16 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and 
Errors 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively. 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or if the change provides more reliable or relevant information about 
the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority�s financial position or 
financial performance. When a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated  
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the period as if the 
new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

4.17 Property Plant and Equipment  
Physical assets that are used in the provision of services or for administrative purposes for 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

4.17.1 Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset�s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. Expenditure is treated as 
revenue in nature unless the expenditure exceeds £10k. However where significant 
quantities of items are acquired at the same time e.g. personal computers or the expenditure 
is financed by capital grant, then it would be capitalised. 

4.17.2 Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost comprising: 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset into the working condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

• any costs attributable to dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located 

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 
bases: 

• infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction at depreciated 
historical cost 

• All other assets � existing use value � Where prices for comparable properties are 
available in an active market, properties are valued at market value taking into 
account the existing use (existing use value - EUV)

36 of 102
Page 91



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to 
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year 
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to 
the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. (In some cases gains might be 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from 
the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service.) 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 

4.17.3 Componentisation 
The code requires that each part of an item of property, plant and equipment which is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item is to be depreciated separately. Within the 
Council�s portfolio there are a number of assets classes where componentisation will not be 
considered, including: 

• Equipment � not considered material 

• Asset classes where there is no depreciation such as land, community assets, 
surplus assets and assets held for sale. 

4.17.4 Impairment 
Assets are assessed at year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying 
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance 
(up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

4.17.5 Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systemic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. Depreciation is charged in full 
in the year of acquisition. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite life 
(i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets), Heritage assets and assets that are not 
yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction) where no depreciation is charged. 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

• Premises � straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the 
Valuer 

• Vehicles, plant and equipment � straight-line allocation over the life of the asset 
as estimated by suitably qualified and experienced officers.  

• Infrastructure � straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated 
by the Valuer 

37 of 102
Page 92



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful lives, these are 
depreciated separately. Currently the Council has identified no such assets.  

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

4.18 Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an 
Asset held for Sale. The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then 
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains or 
losses on sale are posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount 
of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If assets no longer meet the criteria to 
be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and 
valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the 
decision not to sell. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as 
Assets Held for sale.  

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned the value of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for sale) is written off to the 
Other Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or 
loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess of £10k are categorised 
as capital receipts. 

4.19 Heritage Assets 
A tangible heritage asset is defined as an asset with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally 
for its contribution to knowledge and culture. Where such assets are identified the asset is 
included in the accounts as a tangible heritage asset and shown separately from vehicles, 
plant and equipment. If the asset was donated or acquired for less than fair value the asset 
is brought into the balance sheet at its fair value. The authority values heritage assets on the 
basis of insurance valuations. 

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment 
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or 
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Authority�s general policies on impairment shown in note 4.17.4 above. 
Where an impairment loss has been determined, and a revised valuation obtained, the 
impairment loss is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
The charge is then reversed out and charged to the Capital Adjustment account. 

38 of 102
Page 93



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4.20 Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on assets that do not have a physical substance but are identified and 
controlled by the Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Authority. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they 
are therefore carried at amortised cost. 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful economic life and debit to the 
relevant service line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

4.21 Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from 
the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent upon the use of specific assets. 

The Authority as Lessee 

Finance Leases 
Property, Plant and Equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance 
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at fair value measured at the lease's inception (or 
the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is 
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are 
added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied 
to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in 
which they are incurred. 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the 
asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).  
�

Operating Leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease.

  

39 of 102
Page 94



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

The Authority as Lessor 

Finance Leases 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and replaced by a long-
term debtor in the Balance Sheet valued on the future income due under the finance lease. 

Operating Leases 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is recognised in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Council leases out property and 
equipment under operating leases for the following purposes: 

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services 
and community centres. 

• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation 
for local businesses 

4.22 Investments including Cash on Deposit with Banking Institutions 
Where investments are held at the balance sheet date they are treated as long term, if at the 
initial contract date, their term is more than twelve months. If, at the initial contract date, their 
term is more than three months but less than twelve months they are regarded as short term 
investments. All the Council�s investments are currently less than 12 months in duration and 
therefore classed as short term investments. Any cash and bank balances whose term, at 
their initial contract date is less than three months are categorised as cash and cash 
equivalents. 

4.23 Collection Fund - accounting for local taxation 
The Council as a billing authority is statutorily required to maintain a separate agency 
Collection Fund account, into which all transactions relating to the collection of Business 
Rates, Council tax income from taxpayers and distributions to local government bodies and 
central government are made.  The Collection fund account is accounted for separately from 
the General Fund. 

Distributions of Council Tax Income, including Surpluses or Deficits are apportioned to the 
relevant precepting bodies in the following year, in proportion to each preceptors share of 
the Band D Council Tax.  

Business rate surpluses or deficits are distributed in accordance with the rules of the Devon 
Business Rate Pool. 

Both Business Rates and Council Tax income will be recognised in the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement, included within the line on Taxation & Non-Specific Grant 
Income.  

As a billing authority, the difference between the Business Rates and Council Tax included 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by 
regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in Reserve Statement.  

40 of 102
Page 95



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

Each major preceptor’s share of the accrued Business Rates and Council Tax income is 
shown within the Collection Fund Statement.  

Revenue relating to items such as council tax, general rates, etc. shall be measured at the 
full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses), as they are non-contractual, non-
exchange transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment 
dates. 

4.24 Inventories 
For the 2017/18 accounts the Council did not hold any material stock inventories 

4.25 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash 
Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management. 

4.26 Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

• loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but 
are not quoted in an active market 

• available-for-sale-assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do 
not have fixed or determinable payments 

Available-for-Sale-Assets 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and  
carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the 
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed 
or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Authority. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following 
technique: 
Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 
The input to the measurement technique is categorised in accordance with the following 
technique: 

Level 1 input – quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date. 

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Financial 
Instruments Reserve and the gain /loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on revaluation 
of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been 
incurred – these are debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in  
the Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for 
the asset accumulated in the Available-for-sale Financial Instruments reserve. 

41 of 102
Page 96



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event 
that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or 
fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the 
acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 

Any gains or losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in 
the Available–for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve. 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  

For most borrowing this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
principle outstanding; and the interest is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 

4.27 Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits and a reliable estimate  
can be made of the amount of the obligation, but where the timing of the transfer is 
uncertain. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the 
obligation, based on the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required 
to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – 
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will no longer be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service 

4.28 Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the existence of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. For this set of accounts the Council has no contingent liabilities. 

42 of 102
Page 97



  

Statement of Accounting Policies     

4.29 Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets 
The Council has an interest in another entity, the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls 

outside the accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint 

Operation in line with the Code. 

The joint arrangement is with our neighbouring authority North Devon Council and has been 

in existence and operated successfully since 1974. 

The financial operating position is considered viable and robust, which is reported to the 
respective Councils party to the arrangement.  Therefore the Council does not believe that 
there is a need for an impairment of assets in light of this arrangement 

4.30 General Fund Reserve 
Council has approved a policy whereby the level of the General Fund balance should not fall 
below £1m, the current General Fund balance being of £1.1m 

43 of 102
Page 98



  

Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Adopted    

5: Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 

Where a new standard has been published but has not yet been adopted by the Code, the 
Council is required to disclose information relating to the impact of the accounting changes. 
This requirement applies to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that have not 
been applied in the 2017/18 Code and that came into effect on or before 1 January 2017.  
For 2017/18 the following accounting policy changes have been issued but not yet adopted:  

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – has been adopted by the 2018/19 Accounting code, 
with an application date of the 1st April 2018. IFRS was devised to correct 
weaknesses in accounting practices that contributed to the global financial crisis. In 
particular it: 

o Changes the default accounting treatment for investments from one where 
gains and losses in value are not recognised as income or expenditure until 
an investment matures or is disposed of to one where income or expenditure 
is recognised as fair value gains and losses arise 

o Changes the model for impairment loss allowances for financial assets from 
one based on incurred losses to one based on expected losses 

The first of the requirements is not relevant to Torridge Council as it has no investments 
that are currently required to be measured at fair value. 

The second requirement relating to impairment losses will require the Council to review 
the allowances it currently makes for credit risk on debtors and investments to include 
losses expected to arise in the future rather then just those incurred at the balance sheet 
date.  A review of the fixed term investments currently held by the Council at the 31st

March 2018 as provided the Council’s Treasury Management advisors LINK show a very 
low risk of default consequently there will be no impact arising from the introduction of 
IFRS9 assuming the Council’s investment policy remains unchanged. 

    

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers – has been adopted by the 
2018/19 Accounting Code, with an application date of 1st April 2018. IFRS 15 
introduces a new model for the recognition of contractual income based on allocating 
the overall transaction price for goods and or services to be provided against the 
satisfaction criteria of various performance obligations in the contract. The analysis 
carried out to-dare indicates there will be no material impact on the revenue 
recognised in relation to the significant contracts entered into by Torridge Council

44 of 102
Page 99



  

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies    

6.  Critical Judgement in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies laid out in section 4, the Council has had to make certain 

critical judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 

events. In these accounts these are as follows: 

Financial Outlook 

There is a high degree of uncertainty regarding future levels of funding for local government 
and the impact of the decision for Britain to leave the European Union remains unclear. 
However the Council takes the view that this uncertainty is not yet a sufficient indication that 
the value of the Council’s assets might need to be impaired due to reduced levels of service 
provision or the need to close facilities. 

Moreover, property prices within Torridge are such that any operational assets deemed 
surplus to requirements are unlikely to be disposed of at less than their current fair value. 

Joint Working Arrangements 

The Council has an interest in the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls outside the 
accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint Operation in line 
with the Code.  The Joint arrangement is with our neighbouring North Devon Council and 
has been in existence and operated successfully since 1974. Based on Historical population 
splits Torridge Council has a 40% share in the operation. Torridge’s share of balances 
pertaining to the Crematorium is incorporated within the financial statements. The financial 
operating position is considered viable and robust, which is reported to the respective 
Councils to the arrangement. There the Council does not believe that there is a need for an 
impairment of assets in light of this arrangement. 

The Council has a number of interests in another entity ‘North Devon+” which falls within the 
group boundary of the Council on the grounds of control and significant influence in line with 
the Code. However the Council’s interests in aggregate are not sufficiently material to 
warrant producing consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and 
qualitative information. For this reason, group accounts are not deemed necessary within 
these statements. 

45 of 102
Page 100



  

Assumptions and Major Sources of Estimation    

7: Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 

The statement of accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made 
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimations are made taking 
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, 
because balances cannot be determined with certainty actual results could be materially 
different from the estimates. 

The items in the Councils’ balance sheet at 31st March 2018 which have the greatest risk of 
material adjustment in the forthcoming year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainty Effect if actual different from 
estimate 

Property, 
Plant & 
Equipment

Asset values are based upon market prices, and 
are periodically reviewed to ensure the Council 
does not materially miss-state its non-current & 
investment assets. 
The Council’s external Valuer provided valuations 
as at 1st April 2017 for 20% of its operational 
portfolio, with the remaining 80% being subject to 
a desktop revaluation, both on a fair value basis.  
The valuations returned reported an increase in 
the value of the Council’s portfolio of properties of 
£2.8m. There was only one property disposal in 
2017/18 against which to judge the valuations. 
Should evidence emerge in 2017/18, primarily 
from the next planned revaluation then the Council 
may amend its estimates of fair value.  

A reduction in the estimated 
valuations would result in 
reductions to the revaluation 
reserve, and / or a loss 
recorded as appropriate to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure statement. The 
net book value of assets 
subject to potential revaluation 
is £36m. If the valuations on 
these assets were to 
reduce/increase by 10% there 
would be a movement on the 
revaluation reserve of £3.6m 

Pensions 
Liability 

The estimation of the Councils’ net pension liability 
is dependant upon a number of factors 

• Future Interest Rates 

• Life expectancy 

• Salary inflation 

• Expected returns on investments 
Devon County Council has engaged Barnett 
Waddingham as its consulting actuary to provide 
expert advice about the assumptions to be 
applied. 

A full actuarial revaluation is done on a triennial 
basis, the latest revaluation being undertaken in 
2016/17.  As a result of this revaluation the 
employer’s pension contribution rates rose to 
15.8% from 14.3% 

Variations within the key 
assumptions will have the 
following impact upon the net 
pension liability. 

- An increase in 1 year in life 
expectancy would result in an 
increase of £3.38m on the net 
pension liability 

- A 0.1% increase to the salary 
costs would result in a £130k 
increase to the net pension 
liability 

- A movement of 0.1% on 
future interest rates results in a 
movement of £1.5m on the net 
liability, an increase resulting 
in a decrease to the net 
liability, whilst a decrease to 
future interest rates would 
increase the liability by the 
same amount. 

46 of 102
Page 101



  

Assumptions and Major Sources of Estimation    
�

Item Uncertainty Effect if actual different 
from estimate 

Business 
Rates 

Following the introduction in April 2013 of the 
Business Rates Retention scheme the Council has 
been liable for a proportion of successful rating 
appeals. A provision is calculated based upon the 
best available information, including the latest list of 
outstanding appeals lodged with the Valuation Office 
(VO), analysis of past settled appeals, age of 
appeals and knowledge of particular issues 
pertaining to specific business sectors.  

The Council is a member of 
the Devon Business Rates 
Pool, under the terms of the 
pooling arrangement should 
the Councils’ business rates 
income decline by more than 
7.5% then it will be 
reimbursed from the pool 
(subject to the overall 
performance of the Pool). 
There the maximum 
exposure of Torridge is in the 
region of £167k. 

47 of 102
Page 102



  

Events After the Accounting Period    

8: Events after the accounting period 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

• Adjusting Events -Those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end 
of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

• Non-Adjusting Events - Those events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but, 
where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of 
the nature of the events and either their estimated financial effect or a statement that such 
an estimate cannot be made reliably. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts.

48 of 102
Page 103



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ASSOCIATED NOTES INDEX 

Item Note Page No
Expenditure Funding Analysis 1a 50
Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting 1b 51
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2 51
Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 3 52
Segment reporting 4 52
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 5 53-56
Other Operating expenditure 6 57
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 7 57
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 8 57
Grant Income 9 58
Trading Operations 10 59
Officers' Remuneration 11 60
Termination Benefits 12 60
Members Allowances 13 61
Related Party Transactions 14 61
External Audit Costs 15 61
Agency Services 16 61
Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing 17 62
Property, Plant and Equipment 18 63-64
Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluations 19 65
Heritage Assets 20 66
Intangible Assets 21 66
Investment properties 22 67
Long-term Debtors 23 68
Assets held for sale 24 68
Short-term investments 25 68
Short Term Debtors (amounts due in less than 12 months) 26 68
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 68
Financial Instruments 28 69-71
Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 29 71-73
Operating Leases 30 74
Short-term Creditors 31 75
Provisions 32 75
Short-term Borrowing 33 75
Long Term Borrowing 34 76
Other Long term Liabilities  35 76
Pension Fund Reserve 36 76
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 37 77
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 38 78
Revaluation Reserve 39 78
Capital Adjustment Account 40 79
Capital Grants Unapplied 41 80
Capital Receipts Reserve 42 80
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 43 81
Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 44 82

Cash Flow - Non-cash Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 45 82
Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
that are investing activities 46 83
Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
that are financing activities 47 83
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 48 84-87
Contingent Liabilities 49 88
Contingent Assets 50 88
Trusts 51 88

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates 89
Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Council Tax 90
Calculation of Council Tax Base 1 91
Income collectable from Business Rates 2 91

49 of 102
Page 104

chris.dobbs_33
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_34
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_35
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_36
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_37
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_38
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_39
Typewritten Text



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

1a

2016/17

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund 

not incl in 

reporting

Net movement 

on GF reserves

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure 

in CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (9,457) 10,189 732 (732)

Joint Head Planning & Development 494 (9) 485 485

Senior Solicitor 1,628 169 1,797 1,797

Strategic Manager (Resources) 4,350 (1,980) 2,370 370 2,740

Strategic Manager (Services) 2,985 322 3,307 3,307

Other (145) (145) 42 (103)

Net cost of services 8,546 8,546 (320) 8,226

Other Income and Expenditure 1,794 1,794 1,794

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,595) (11,595) (11,595)

Total (1,255) (1,255) (320) (1,575)

See note 1 See note 2

Opening General Fund & Earmarked Reserve balances (10,962)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year (1,255)

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (12,217)

2017/18

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund 

not incl in 

reporting

Net movement 

on GF reserves

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure 

in CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (9,537) 10,227 690 (690)

Joint Head Planning & Development 337 2 339 339

Senior Solicitor 1,623 940 2,563 2,563

Strategic Manager (Resources) 4,536 (2,528) 2,008 1,759 3,767

Strategic Manager (Services) 3,041 686 3,727 3,727

Other (23) (23) (23)

Net cost of services 9,304 9,304 1,069 10,373

Other Income and Expenditure 2,006 2,006 2,006

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,500) (11,500) (11,500)

Total (190) (190) 1,069 879

See note 1 See note 2

Opening General fund & Earmarked reserve balances (12,217)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year (190)

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (12,407)

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the funding 

available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in 

providing services, in comparison with those resourced, consumed or earned by the Council in accordance with 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practices.  The Expenditure Funding Analysis also shows how expenditure is 

allocated for decision making purposes between the Authority's responsibility sections for reporting.  Income and 

expenditure accounted for under Generally Accepted Accounting Practices is presented more fully in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

50 of 102
Page 105

chris.dobbs_40
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_41
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_42
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_43
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_44
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_45
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_46
Typewritten Text



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the accounts

1b Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting

2016/17
Fixed 

assets

Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 10,189 10,189 

Joint Head of Planning & Developm't (9) (9) 

Senior Solicitor 182 (12) 170 

Strategic Manager (Resources) 114 (1,024) (1,070) (1,980) 

Strategic Manager (Services) 347 (26) 321 

Other 42 (187) (145) 
Net cost of services 685 (1,071) 10,189 (1,257) 8,546 

Other Income and Expenditure 1,794 1,794 

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,595) (11,595) 

Total 685 (1,071) 1,794 (1,406) (1,257) (1,255) 

2017/18
Fixed 

assets

Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 10,227 10,227 

Joint Head of Planning & Developm't 2 2 

Senior Solicitor 938 2 940 

Strategic Manager (Resources) (71) (1,202) (1,255) (2,528) 

Strategic Manager (Services) 680 6 686 

Other 40 (63) (23) 

Net cost of services 1,587 (1,192) 10,227 (1,318) 9,304 

Other Income and Expenditure 2,006 2,006 

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,500) (11,500) 

Total 1,587 (1,192) 2,006 (1,273) (1,318) (190) 

2 Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Capital

Net change 

for pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund
TOTAL

Funding Monitoring 732 732

Joint Head of Planning & Developm't

Senior Solicitor

Strategic Manager (Resources) 546 (917) 1 (370)

Strategic Manager (Services)

Other (42) (42)

Total 504 (917) 1 732 320

Capital

Net change 

for pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund
TOTAL

Funding Monitoring 690 690

Joint Head of Planning & Developm't

Senior Solicitor

Strategic Manager (Resources) (196) (1,564) 1 (1,759)

Strategic Manager (Services)

Other

Total (196) (1,564) 1 690 (1,069)

2016/17

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2017/18

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

This note recognises that statutorily the Council Tax payers are not to be charged with a number of 

charges by statute, so these are removed through entries through the Movements In Reserves statement 

to arrive at the net surplus or deficit chargeable in the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services.

51 of 102
Page 106



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the accounts

3 Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,240 1,422

(655) Impairment charged to service 253

7,686 8,064

6,002 6,498

17,515 Housing Benefit payments 17,102

74 71

1,153 1,269

1,047 1,169

24 Pension administration expense 23

Employees benefit adjustment 372

330 741

105 Transfer of investment asset 107

34,521 37,091

(184) (265)

(6,990) (8,647)

(321) (739)

(5,001) (3,545)

(17,770) Housing Benefit Subsidy (17,040)

(5,358) (5,716)

(97) (89)

(223) (172)

(154) Employees benefits pension adjustment

(36,097) (36,213)

(1,575) 878

4 Segment Reporting

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(634) (713)

(1,281) (1,465)

(676) (741)

(2,334) (2,478)

(432) (318)

(5,357) (5,716)

Strategic Manager (Services)

Other

Total analysed on a segmental basis

Income per Responsibility Centre

Joint Head Planning & Development

Senior Solicitor

Strategic Manager (Resources)

Employees

Expenditure

External interest payable

Net Investment Properties

Expenditure and Income

Parish Precepts

Pension interest cost and expected return

Revenue expenditure financed from capital source 

Total Expenditure

Depreciation

Surplus on the provision of services

Total Income

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Collection Fund income

External contribution to deferred charge write off

Government Grants

Income - fees and charges

Interest and Investment Income

52 of 102
Page 107



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2016/17

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Movement 

in Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,200 (1,200) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (655) 655 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (118) 118 

Amortisation of intangible assets 45 (45) 

Capital grants and contributions applied

(564) 564 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 330 (330) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 31 (31) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (74) 74 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
(484) 484 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account
(10) 10 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement
790 (790) 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (309) 309 

Transfer to Capital Adjustment Reserve in respect of 

Prudential Borrowing (1,193) 1,193 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (215) 215 

Balance carried forward (504) (712) (10) (1,226) 1,226 

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council Tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Usable Reserves

53 of 102
Page 108



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued

2016/17
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Movement 

in Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward (504) (712) (10) (1,226) 1,226 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 2,208 (2,208) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year. (1,291) 1,291 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is 

different from council tax income calculated for the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements 12 (12) 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is 

different from NNDR income calculated for the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements (744) 744 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. (1) 1 

Total Adjustments (320) (712) (10) (1,042) 1,042 

Usable Reserves

54 of 102
Page 109



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2017/18

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Movement 

in Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,369 (1,369) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 128 (128) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 60 (60) 

Amortisation of intangible assets 53 (53) 

Capital grants and contributions applied

(744) 744 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 741 (741) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 45 (45) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (49) 49 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
(1,098) 1,098 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account (1) 1 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds previously credited as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement from Deferred Capital Receipts reserve

811 (811) 

Transfer of in year cash sale proceeds credited as part of gain 

loss on disposal (66) 66 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (330) 330 

Transfer to Capital Adjustment Reserve in respect of 

Prudential Borrowing
(596) 596 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (244) 244 

Balance carried forward 195 (49) (1) 145 (145) 

Usable Reserves

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

55 of 102
Page 110



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued

2017/18
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Movement 

in Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward 195 (49) (1) 145 (145) 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,117 (3,117) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year. (1,553) 1,553 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is 

different from council tax income calculated for the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements 131 (131) 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is 

different from NNDR income calculated for the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements (822) 822 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. 1 (1) 

Total Adjustments 1,069 (49) (1) 1,019 (1,019) 

Usable Reserves

56 of 102
Page 111



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

6 Other Operating Expenditure

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,153 1,269 

24 23 

(184) (265) 

993 1,027

7 Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

74 71 

1,047 1,169 

(223) (172) 

(97) (89) 

801 979

8 Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(4,629) (4,880) 

(2,360) (3,765) 

(4,362) (2,851) 

(244) (4) 

(11,595) (11,500)

Non-ringfenced government grants

Capital grants and contributions

Total

Further details of specific grant income are shown in note 9

Interest receivable and similar income

Total

Council tax income

Non domestic rates

Income & Expenditure relating to Investment Properties and change in fair value

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

Parish Council precepts

Pension Fund Administration expense

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non current assets

Total

Interest payable and similar charges

57 of 102
Page 112



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

9 Grant Income

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(1,152) (716) 

(471) (380) 

(2,033) (1,755) 

(697) (1,199) 

(9) (8) 

(35) (40) 

(244) (4) 

(4,641) (4,102) 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Credited to Services £000

(17,770) (17,040) 

(277) (266) 

(84) (79) 

(146) 

(13) (12) 

(86) 

(9) (66) 

(4) 

(321) (336) 

(12) 

(9) (16) 

(18,486) (18,058) 

NNDR Collection

Burton Art Gallery 

Total

Planning, Brownfield Register & Custom Build

Other (Miscellaneous) 

Northam Burrows 

Housing Renewal Capital Grants

Rural Sparsity Grant

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement

Revenue Support Grant

New Homes Bonus

Homelessness

Council Tax Collection

Grants Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Individual Registration Costs

Transparency Code Grant

Capital grants

Section 31 grant distribution

Total

Housing Benefits 

Housing Benefit Admin 

Council Tax Benefit

58 of 102
Page 113



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

10 Trading Operations

Expend- 

iture

Income (Surplus) / 

Deficit

Expend-iture Income (Surplus) / 

Deficit

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Planning & Development Services

610            (420)          190            Industrial Units and Managed Offices 441 (502) (61)

54              (120)          (66) Livestock and Pannier Markets (3) (125) (128)

220 (103) 117 Harbours and Pilotage 143 (100) 43

Highways, Roads and Transport

609            (1,261)       (652)          Off-street parking 534 (1,273) (738)

1,494 (1,905) (411) Total 1,116 (2,000) (884)

2016/17 2017/18

59 of 102
Page 114



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

11 Officers' Remuneration

Remuneration Band Number of 

Employees

Left During 

Year

Number of 

Employees

Left During Year

£50,000 - £54,999 1 1 1

£60,000 - £64,999 1 1

£65,000 - £69,999 1

£80,000 - £84,999 1

£85,000 - £89,999 1

Officers' Remuneration

Statutory Officers Earning in Excess of £50,000

Post Title Salary 

(Including 

Allowances)

Compensation 

for loss of 

Office

Expenses

Total 

Remuneration 

excluding 

pension 

contributions

Pension 

Contributions

Total 

Remuneration 

including pension 

contributions

Head of Paid Service 85,152           376                    85,528              13,454              98,982                  

Strategic Manager 

(Resources) 64,898           310 65,208              10,254              75,462                  

Solicitor 51,548           318                    51,866              8,145                60,011                  

12 Termination Benefits

2017/18

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

£0 - £19,999 4 4 7,829

2016/17

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

£0 - £19,999 4 4 42,534      

This table includes all statutory and non-statutory posts whose overall remuneration exceeds £50k excluding pension contributions 

and non taxable allowances.

2016/17 2017/18

In completing the 2017/18 Accounts we have complied with the statutory instrument regarding officer remuneration. The statutory 

instrument requires the individual naming of any officers with an annual salary of £150,000 or more and the post title of any officers 

earning £50,000 or more who occupy statutory roles or are responsible for managing the strategic direction of services. The Council 

had no officers earning more than £150,000 in 2017/18

Note - the amounts included in the two above tables are shown gross of any related tax which would be levied.

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other departures 

agreed

Total number of exit packages by 

cost band

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other departures 

agreed

Total number of exit packages by 

cost band

60 of 102
Page 115



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

13 Members Allowances

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

219 221 

14 17 

233 238 

14 Related Party Transactions

15 External Audit Costs

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

41 41

8 8

6

55 Total 50

16 Agency Services

Allowances 

Fees payable with regard to the annual audit fee

Fees payable for the certification of claims and returns

Other services

The Council acts as agent for Devon County Council, Devon & Cornwall Police & Crime Commissioner and 

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority in the collection of Council Tax and for Central Government for the 

collection of Non-Domestic Business Rates.  Details can be found in the Collection Fund.

Fees paid to Torridge District Council's appointed external auditor, Grant Thornton, were as follows:

Expenses

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for 

providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the 

form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. 

housing benefits). Details of transactions with government departments are set out in note 9 relating to all grant 

income and the NNDR Collection Fund.

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have 

the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of 

these transactions allows readers of the accounts to assess the extent to which the Council might have been 

constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability 

to bargain freely with the Council.

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. The Council's 

constitution requires members to declare their interests in related parties in a register of interests. In addition, 

members are asked to declare separately any transactions with the Authority.  

Some members are also Devon County Councillors, Torridge District Council collects both Business rates and 

Council tax on behalf of Devon County, details of which are contained within the Collection Fund Statements.   

The Council's Pension Fund is adminstered by Devon County Council, details of which are shown in note 48.                                                

In 2017/18 the Council made net payments of £788k to parties in which members had declared an interest. The 

largest net payment of £485k pertained to the Westward Housing Group Ltd, this included a second tranche of 

£403k S106 grant to build the first ever Social housing in Westward Ho! Westward Housing are one of the main 

affordable housing providers in the South West, and the grant was funded through Section 106 of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990. Other significant transactions include a net payment to the Burton Art Gallery 

Trust of £200k for agreed funding, and rental income of £132k from Kivells Ltd. 

The Council Constitution instructs members to exclude themselves when funding decisions are made 

regarding organisations in which they have declared an interest.                                                                                  

Officers of the Council are bound by the Council's Code of Conduct. Senior Officers (which encompasses all 

members of Management Team) are required to declare any related party transactions with the Council. No 

transactions have required disclosure.

Some elected members are also parish councillors, details of the parish precepts are contained within note 6.  

61 of 102
Page 116



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

17 Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

3,046 1,818

1,011 1,329

26 102

330 741

(319) (331)

(564) (744)

(484) (1,098)

(1,193) (596)

40

(74) (49)

1,818 1,172

1,228 646

Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

Repayment of Prudential Borrowing

Explanation of movements in year

Use of reserves

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets 

acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital is to be 

financed in future years by charges to revenue for assets used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase 

in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority 

that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Decrease/(Increase) in Capital Financing 

Requirement

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Plus Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under 

Statute

From Sources of Finance

 - Capital receipts applied

Sum from capital sources

 - Government grants and contributions

Sums set aside from revenue:

Direct revenue contributions

62 of 102
Page 117



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - contined

Movements in Balances

2016/17
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 32,204 6,934 750 571 473 716 41,648

Additions 182                553            13                 263                  1,010

Reclassification (65)                 11              331               (341)                 (64)
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services 419 419

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve

2,595 53 2,649

Derecognition - Disposals (240) (240)

Derecognition - Other

Other movements in cost or valuation 141 (137) 4

At 31 March 35,476 7,258 750 915 390 637 45,426

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April (6,460) (4,638) (214) (130) (11,441)
Depreciation charge

(491) (461) (29) (981)
Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve (247) -            (247)
Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve

Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Provision of Services

Derecognition - Disposals 209 209

Other adjustments (41) 78 37

At 31 March (7,239) (4,890) (243) (52) (12,424)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2017
28,237 2,368 507 915 339 637 33,002

At 31 March 2016
25,744 2,296 536 571 344 716 30,207

63 of 102
Page 118



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - contined

Movements in Balances

2017/18
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 35,476 7,258 750 915 391 637 45,426

Additions 26                  482            10              -                811                   1,329

Reclassification 824                (1,335)              (511)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (128) (128)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve

1,079 0 (33) 1,046

Derecognition - Disposals (54) (18) (72)

Derecognition - Other

Other movements in cost or valuation

At 31 March 37,223 7,722 760 915 358 113 47,090

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April (7,239) (4,890) (243) (52) (12,424) 
Depreciation charge

(528) (500) (29) (1,057)
Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve (311) -            (311)
Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve

Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Provision of Services

Derecognition - Disposals 11 16 27

Other adjustments

At 31 March (8,067) (5,374) (272) (52) (13,765)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2018
29,156 2,348 488 915 306 113 33,325

At 31 March 2017
28,237 2,368 507 915 339 637 33,002

64 of 102
Page 119



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

19 Property, Plant and Equipment

Revaluations

Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Valued at Historical Cost 7,722 760 915 113 9,510

Valued at fair value in year

As at 31/03/2018 37,010 310 37,320

As at 31/03/2017 30 35 65

As at 31/03/2016 183 183

As at 31/03/2015 12 12

As at 31/03/2014

37,223 7,722 760 915 357 113 47,090

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair 

value is revalued every five years. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out by the District Valuer and Valuation Office. 

Valuations were carried out in accordance with methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of 

the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Asset revaluations are based on a 20% full revaluation exercise as at 1 April 2017 

and an 80% desktop exercise as at 31 March 2018.

65 of 102
Page 120



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

20

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

Valuation

1,219 Balance at start of year 1,219 

1,219 Balance at end of year 1,219

21 Intangible Assets

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

Balance at start of year:

1,495 - Gross carrying amounts 1,521 

(1,418) - Accumulated amortisation (1,463) 

78 Net carrying amount at start of year 58

26 - Purchases 102 

(45) Amortisation charge for the period (53) 

58 Net carrying amount at the end of year 107

Heritage Assets

The Authority's accounting policies for recognition and measurement of heritage assets are set out in 

the Authority's summary of accounting policies (see note 4.23).

The majority of Heritage Assets are held by the Burton Art Gallery. Many items are on permanent display whilst 

others are included as part of shows that take place during the year.  From 1 April 2016 the operation of the 

Burton Art Gallery was transferred to a Trust however the permanent collection remains in the ownership of the 

Council. Other assets, such as statues and war memorials, are located on open display throughout the District. 

The Council accounts for its purchased licences for software as intangible assets. All software is given a finite 

life based on the period that the software in the purchased form is expected to be of use to the Council. The 

useful lives vary from two to four years and are amortised on a straight-line basis. Service specific software is 

charged to the relevant service but non-specific software is charged to the ICT cost centres and then absorbed 

as an overhead across all services in the Net Expenditure on Services.

66 of 102
Page 121



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

22

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

121 Rental income from investment property (124) 

(16) Direct operating expenses arising from investment 17 

105 Net gain / (loss) (107)

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,497        Balance at start of year: 1,625        

44 Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment

84 Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments (60) 

1,625        Balance at end of year: 1,565

*Level 2  Valuation technique used for Investment Properties

Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investing 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

There are restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or 

in the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The Council has no 

contractual obligations, either to purchase, construct or develop investment property, or for repairs, 

maintenance or enhancement.

Investment properties are revalued as part of the Council's asset revaluation programme as described 

in note 20 Revaluations, and are recorded using their fair values. Fair Value being defined as the 

price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 

the measurement date. All revaluations carried out are assessed and categorised in accordance with 

accounting policy. The Council's investment property revaluations for the have been assessed as 

Level 2*  for valuation purposes. There has been no change in accounting policy for revaluation of 

investment properties during the year.  All valuations were carried out in accordance with the 

methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal institution 

of Chartered Surveyors.

The fair value for residential properties (at market rents) has been based on the market approach 

using current market conditions and recent sale prices and other relevant information for similar 

assets in the Local Authority area.  Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively 

purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant,  leading to the properties being 

categorised at Level 2 in the fair value heirarchy.

67 of 102
Page 122



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

23 Long Term Debtors  (amounts due in more than 12 months)

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

3 1

596 46 

599 47 

24 Assets Held for Sale

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

140 140 

Reclassification 511 

1,999 

140 Balance at year end 2,650 

25 Short Term Investments

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

13,046 12,032 

26 Short Term Debtors (amounts due in less than 12 months)

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

338 384 

138 191 

17 43 

61 689 

2,663 2,411 

3,217 Total 3,718 

Allowance for impairment of debt:

(64) Council Tax Arrears (74) 

(37) NNDR Arrears (45) 

(621) (587) 

(722) Total (706) 

2,495 Net current debtors total 3,012 

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,148 2,121 

277 344 

1,425 Net Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,465 

Bank current accounts

Short-term deposits with financial institutions

Other debtors

Total

Government Departments

Other Debtors and Prepayments

Council Tax payers

Business Ratepayers

HM Revenue & Customs

Cash held by the Authority

Officer car loans

Other debtors

Total

Balance at start of the year

Sale of the Brunswick Wharf development has been agreed subject to completion of the 

neccessary due diligence work.

During the year the Cleave Wood site was granted planning permission for residential 

development, and will be put on the market in the near future.

Revaluation

68 of 102
Page 123



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments

Long term Current Long term Current

£000 £000 Financial Assets £000 £000

Investments

13,046 Short term investment 12,032

13,046 Total Investments 12,032

Debtors

114 Loans and trade receivables 47

114 Debtors subtotal 47

2,495 Debtors that are not financial instruments 3,012

114 2,495 Total Debtors 47 3,012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,425 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,465

1,425 Total Cash and cash equivalents 2,465

Borrowings

1,155 96 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 964 191

1,155 96 Total Borrowings 964 191

Other long-term liabilities

Finance leases - financial liabilities at amortised 

cost

Total Other long term liabilities

Creditors

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Creditors subtotal

3,166 Creditors that are not financial instruments 3,618

3,166 Total Creditors 3,618

The Loans and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of 

financial instruments:

2017/182016/17

69 of 102
Page 124



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments continued�

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

Expense in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

74 Interest payable 71 

Interest payable on finance leases

Impairment losses

74 Interest payable and similar charges 71 

Income in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

(96) Interest and investment income (88) 

(96) Interest and investment income (88)

Impairment charge (interest accrual) reversal in Adjustments between Accounting 

basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

(22) Net (gain)/loss for the year (17)

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure account in relation to financial instruments are:

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and creditors 

are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The Council measures some of its financial instruments such 

as loans and investments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction takes place in either the principal market for the 

asset liability or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would 

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market participant�s 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 

available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs 

to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the 

Council�s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

� Level 1 � quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can 

access at the measurement   date 

�  Level 2 � inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly 

�  Level 3 � unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

�  N/A � The fair value of short-term financial assets and liabilities including trade receivables and payables is 

assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is higher 

than their balance sheet carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is now lower than that 

obtained when the investment was originally made.

Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of cash flows that take place over the remaining 

life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

� For loans from PWLB estimated interest rates in the range from 4.875% to 7.50% have been used.

� No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

� Where the instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to approximate to 

fair value.

� The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The Council has provided warrantees to Westcountry Housing (formerly Tarka Housing) as part of the housing 

stock transfer (see Note 50) but does not believe that any material liability will be incurred.

70 of 102
Page 125



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments continued…

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Carrying 
Amount

Fair  Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

£000 £000 £000 £000
PWLB Debt 2 1,239 1,543 1,143 1,365
Other Loans N/A 12 12 12 12
Finance Leases
Creditors N/A 867 867 1,141 1,141
Total Financial Liabilities 2,118 2,422 2,296 2,518
Cash and Cash equivalents 1,425 1,425 2,465 2,465

Long Term Investments

Money market loans< 1 year N/A 13,046 13,056 12,032 12,032
Trade debtors N/A 1,352 1,352 862 862
Total Loans and Receivables 14,397 14,408 12,894 12,894
Long term debtors N/A

29 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out under policies in the 
Annual Treasury Management Strategy, which is approved by the Council. The Council maintains written principles for overall 
risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as; interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of 
surplus cash.

2016/17 2017/18
Fair val ue 

Level

Level 2 Fair Value Liabilities 
The fair value of long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) of £1.365 million measures the economic effect of 
the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that would be offered for market transactions 
undertaken at the Balance Sheet date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value measures the additional 
or reduced interest that the Council will pay over the remaining terms of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB, 
against what would be paid if the loans were at prevailing market rates. 

However, the Council has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB rather than from the markets. A 
supplementary measure of the additional or reduced interest that the Council will pay as a result of its PWLB commitments for 
fixed rate loans is to compare the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. If a value is 
calculated on this basis, the carrying amount of £0.952 million on the long-term loans would be valued at £1.116 million. But if 
the Council were to seek to avoid either the projected loss or to realise the projected gain by repaying the loans to the PWLB 
would raise a charge for early redemption in addition to charging a premium for the additional interest that will not now be paid, 
giving a discount for the reduced interest income that will be avoided.

§  Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest 
rate movements.

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
§  Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.

§  Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.

Page 126

chris.dobbs_47
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_48
Typewritten Text
71 of 102



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

29 Financial Instruments continued�

Credit risk

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2016

Amount at 

31 March 

2017

Historical 

experience of 

default

Adjustment for 

market 

conditions at 31 

March 2017

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at   

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 % % £000

Trade debtors 1,555 1,459 13.50% 198

1,555 1,459 198

The Council�s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £5million cannot 

be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific 

to each individual institution. A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the Council�s deposits, but there is no evidence at 31 March 

2018 that this was likely to crystallise. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council�s customers.  

The risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with banks and 

financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria as assessed by Fitch Rating Services. The Strategy 

imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution.

The credit criteria in respect of financial assets by the Council are:

  Maximum investment of £3 million.

The following analysis summarises the Council�s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on 

the experience of the historical default over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.  

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

  Maximum investment of £5 million with any one institution.

  Minimum short-term Fitch rating of F1.

The Council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors, such that all of the balance is past its due date for payment.

72 of 102
Page 127



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

29 Financial Instruments continued�

Liquidity risk

£000 % £000 %

Local Bonds 12 0.7 12 0.55

Public Works Loans Board < 1 year 96 8.13 191 6.00

1-2 years 191 6.00 138 7.50

2-5 years 482 6.18 344 5.07

5-10 years 470 5.08 470 5.06

10-15 years
Total loan value outstanding 1,251 1,155

Interest rate risk

£000

Impact (increase) on Income and 

Expenditure Account (162) 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The absence of a need to borrow will limit the 

exposure to interest rate movements on borrowing.  The Annual Investment Strategy recognises the current low level 

of interest rates. The treasury team monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year and adjusts exposures 

appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where circumstances make it favourable, fixed 

rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better returns.  

  Borrowings at fixed rates � the fair value of the liabilities will fall.

Investments at variable rates � the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will 

rise.
  Investments at fixed rates � the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on 

the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income or Expenditure. However, 

changes in the interest receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. 

The Council manages its liquidity position through cash flow management procedures.  In the event of an unexpected 

cash requirement the Council has ready access to borrow from the money markets and the Public Works Loans 

Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial 

instruments.  The Council currently has no need to undertake significant borrowings to finance expenditure or 

replenish its borrowings. The maturity of the Council�s financial liabilities is as follows: 

Maturity Dates and Interest Rates

According to the Strategy if all interest rates had been 1% higher at 31 March 2018, with all other variables held 

constant, the financial effect would have been:

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in 

interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following 

effects:

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.  

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year and trade debtors are not shown in the table 

above.

                                   Maturity Date Due

2016/17 2017/18

73 of 102
Page 128



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

30 Operating Leases

Authority as Lessor

2016/17    

Restated

2017/18

£000 £000

596 520

1,097 1,321

3,299 3,268

4,992 5,109

Authority as Lessee

2016/17     

Restated

2017/18

£000 £000

37 56

59 143

245 235

341 434

The Council has a number of leases with various organisations for the lease of land and buildings, over 

periods of between 1 and 99 years. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non cancellable 

lease in future years are:

Not later than one year

Later than five years

Total

Later than one year but not later than five years

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

Total

The Council is committed to making minimum payments under leases relating to the long term liability for the 

interest in property and land acquired by the Council.  The minimum lease payments due from the Council 

are made up of the following amounts

74 of 102
Page 129



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

31 Short Term Creditors (amounts due in less than 12 months)

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

113 105 

608 1,133 

118 169 

628 66 

744 Other income in advance 916 

955 1,229 

3,166 3,618 

32 Provisions

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Movement £000

39 Property Search Cost 0 48 

58 Fishdock 0 0 

517 NNDR Appeals 0 347 

60 Housing Bond scheme 0 60 

674 455 

33 Short-term Borrowing

Balance Balance 

Maturity

At 31st March 

2017

At 31st March 

2018

Date £000 £000

< 1 year 96 191 

HM Revenue & Customs

Government Departments

Collection Fund Income in Advance

Other Local Authorities

Public Works Loans 

Board

Total at 31 March

Lender

Total at 31 March

Other entities and individuals

75 of 102
Page 130



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

34 Long Term Borrowing (Amounts due in more than one year)

Balance Balance 

Maturity 2016/17 2017/18

Date £000 Lender £000

12 Local Bonds 12 

1-2 years 191 Public Works Loans Board 138 

2-5 years 482 Public Works Loans Board 344 

5-10 years 470 Public Works Loans Board 470 

1,155 Total loan value outstanding 964 

35 Other Long Term Liabilities (Amounts due in more than one year)

Balance Balance 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Fund £000

94 Torridge Small Business Fund 0 

94 Total 0 

This was transferred to an earmarked reserve in 2017/18 to fund economic development via Dragon's Den project

36 Pensions Reserve

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(30,685) (44,077) 

(12,475) 3,741 

(2,208) (3,117) 

1,291 1,553 

(44,077) (41,900) 

The Pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 

for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority 

accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the 

benefits are earned by the employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 

inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. 

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the authority makes employer's 

contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The credit 

balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and 

current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements 

will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments 

to pensioners payable in the year

At 1 April 

At 31 March 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of net defined liability

76 of 102
Page 131



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

37 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(150) (139) 

12 131 

(139) (8) 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,047 At 1 April 303 

(744) (822) 

303 At 31 March (519) 

(£463k)  being the Council share of the NNDR Surplus (£1,157k surplus x 40%) see the Collection 

Fund Statement. 

(£56k) being additional income from renewable energy in 2017/18 which by statue cannot be realised 

until 2018/19

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive Income 

and expenditure Statement is different from NNDR income calculated for 

the year in accordance with statutory requirements

The balance on this account is made up of two elements:

The NNDR (National Non Domestic Rate) Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from 

the recognition of the NNDR income in the Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement as it 

falls due from NNDR payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to 

the General Fund from the Collection fund.

At 1 April

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and expenditure Statement is different from council tax income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

At 31 March 

The (£8k) represents TDC's share (12%) of the overall Collection Fund Surplus of (£61k) at 31/03/18 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of the 

council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement as it falls due from 

council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the 

General Fund from the Collection fund

77 of 102
Page 132



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

38 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,386 811 

(790) (816) 

215 248 

811 243 

39 Revaluation Reserve

 - revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

 - disposed of and the gains are realised.

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

10,614 12,295 

2,851 3,582 

(366) (536) 

(118) 

2,367 3,046

(21) 

(213) (311) 

(473) (22) 

12,295 At 31 March 14,987 

At 1 April 

Upward revaluation of assets

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not posted to the 

Surplus on the Provision of Services

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the 

Surplus on the Provision of Services

 - used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

Transfer of Investment Properties

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserve 

was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 

Account.

Disposals in Year

Transfer historic revaluation reserve balance in respect of  Investment Assets 

to Capital adjustment account

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of 

its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

At 1 April 

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash

Transfer of deemed sale proceeds credited to gain/loss on disposal in 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement

At 31 March 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non current assets 

but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements the Council does not 

treat these gains as usuable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  

When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital 

Receipts Reserve.

78 of 102
Page 133



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

40 Capital Adjustment Account 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

19,446 21,930 

(1,200) (1,369) 

655 (128) 

(45) (53) 

(330) (741) 

(31) (45) 

(951) (2,336) 

213 311 

(738) (2,025) 

309 330 

10 1 

1,193 596 

564 744 

74 49 

483 1,098 

2,633 2,818 

117 (60) 

Revaluation reserve movement iro disposed assets 21 

473 22 

590 Revaluation reserve movements (18) 

21,930 Balance at 31 March 22,707 

Opening balance adjustment -transfer from Revaluation reserve to CAA

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in the 

year

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

Transfer to Capital Adjustment Reserve iro of Prudential Borrowing

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 

Capital grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements for 

accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 

enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of the 

acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to 

the Comprehensive Income and expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation 

Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set 

aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction or enhancement.

The account contains revaluation gains and losses on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the 

date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Balance at 1 April

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the 

General Fund

Use of the Unapplied Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure

This note provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those 

involving the Revaluation Reserve.

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amortisation of intangible assets

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

79 of 102
Page 134



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

41 Capital Grants Unapplied

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

139 129 

(10) (1) 

129 128 

42 Capital Receipts Reserve

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

966 256 

66 

(308) (330) 

790 

811 

(1,193) (596) 

256 207 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are 

restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to 

finance historic capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to 

be applied for these purposes.

At 1 April 

Capital grants and contributions applied

At 31 March 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account  holds the grants and contributions received towards capital 

projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the 

monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms 

as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and /or the financial year in which this can 

take place.

At 1 April 

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure

At 31 March 

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Repayment of Prudential Borrowing

80 of 102
Page 135



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

43 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

General Fund - Revenue 
Earmarked Reserves

Balance at 
1/04/2016

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

Re- 
classified

Balance at 
31/03/17

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

Re- 
classified

Balance at 
31/03/18

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Backlog maintenance 201 180 (181) 200 268 (188) 280
Section 215 Notices 123 (14) 109 7 (6) 111
Job Creation 100 100 (100)
Organisational Change 723 (69) 654 (654)
Business Support 94 100 194
Contingency
Transition in Government Funding 746 (32) 714 78 (400) 393
Planning Appeals 100 (27) 73 20 93
Invest to Save 133 (16) 117 118
Future Commitments & 
Developments 1,396 946 (487) 1,855 1,166 (722) 2,299
Other earmarked reserves
Local Plan Inquiry 296 296 296
NNDR Deficit and Appeals 
Spreading 913 340 (200) 1,053 (260) 792
Total 4,631 1,566 (1,025) 5,172 1,634 (2,231) 4,575
Capital Reserves
Crematorium 69 146 215 63 278

Capital scheme Funding Reserve 4,909 559 5,468 472 5,940
General Vehicle Replacement 10 362 (344) 28 502 (299) 231
General Equipment Including IT 84 93 (91) 86 93 (49) 129
Total 5,072 1,160 (435) 5,796 1,131 (348) 6,578
Section 106 Reserves
Commuted Sums 160 (10) 150 15 (11) 154
S106 Revenue 23 (8) 15 16
Total 183 (18) 165 15 (11) 170

Total Earmarked Reserves 9,886 2,725 (1,478) 11,133 2,779 (2,590) 11,322

This section shows movements in these reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and 
the amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund Expenditure.

Capital Reserves have been generated from revenue income, but are to meet future capital expenditure.

Revenue reserves
� Backlog Maintenance Reserve will be used to undertake outstanding repairs to Property, Plant and Equipment. 
� Section 215 Notices Reserve to fund a Planning Act which can enforce buildings / land to be cleaned up when the condition adversely affects the 
area
� The Job Creation Reserve will allow the Council to fund ideas that will increase employment in the local economy.
� Organisational Change Reserve is to help fund the cost of reorganising services to meet future expenditure reductions
� Transition in Government Funding Reserve will be used to cover timing differences between reductions in Government grants and reductions in 
expenditure. 
� Invest to Save Reserve is to meet the upfront cost of expenditure saving or income generating schemes.
� Future Commitments & Developments Reserve is to fund planned expenditure that had been specifically budgeted or for which income had been 
received. Included in this combination of reserves is the £1.2 million of resources allocated for the future costs of Waste & Recycling Service Review.
� Local Plan Inquiry Reserve is to meet the costs associated with attending future Inquiries. 
� NNDR Deficit and Appeals Spreading Reserves have been set up to accommodate the accounting reversal of the deficit created on Business Rates 
and the spreading of backdated appeals by businesses with the Valuation Office over five years. 

S106 Reserves are contributions that the Council has received from developers for specific purposes and have been set aside to fund specific 
expenditure or projects in future years.

Page 136

chris.dobbs_49
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_50
Typewritten Text
81 of 102



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

44 Cash F low Statement - Operating Activities

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(96) (89) 

74 71 

(22) (18) 

45

2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000

(1,200) (1,369) 

(45) (53) 

655 (128) 

(1,345) (452) 

449

(31) (45) 

(917) (1,564) 

196 219 
(61) 503 

(2,748) (2,440) 

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

878 

565 741 
565 1,618 

Items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are 
investing and financing activities

Interest received

Interest paid

Cash Flow - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services that are investing or financing activities

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets

Non Cash Adjustments to the surplus or deficit on provision of services

Change in provisions

Capital grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services

Other adjustments

Depreciation 

Amortisation

Impairments & downward revaluations

(Increase)/decrease in creditors

Decrease/(Increase) in debtors

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

Pension liability reversal

Page 137

chris.dobbs_51
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_52
Typewritten Text
82 of 102



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

46 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

1,367 1,428 

6,000 8,000 

(790) (878) 

(3,000) (9,000) 

(427) (744) 

3,150 (1,193) 

47 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

96 96 

96 96 Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 

and Intangible assets

Purchase of short-term investments

Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

PWLB debt repayment

Proceeds of short-term investments 

Other receipts from investing activities

83 of 102
Page 138



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

48 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Participation in the Pension Scheme

All of the pension figures included in the 2017/18 Accounts are prepared in accordance with International 

Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19). This complies with all generic Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) and the 

Pensions TAS. The data provided by the Pension Fund's Actuary (Barnett Waddingham) also fully complies with 

their understanding of Financial Reporting Standard 17 and International Financial Reporting Standards.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council offers retirement benefits. Although 

these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the 

payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Devon County 

Council - this is a (defined benefit final salary scheme) and is fully funded, meaning that the Council and its 

employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with the 

investment assets. Governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions committee of Devon County 

Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations. 

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, 

structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields 

and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the 

statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund  the amounts required by statute as described in the 

accounting policies note.

This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. 

There are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet 

actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by 

employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council is 

required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement 

benefits is reversed out in the note titled Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations (AABFBR). The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and 

the AABFBR:

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under 

which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension 

liabilities.

Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement .

84 of 102
Page 139



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

48 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued�

 2016/17  2017/18  2016/17  2017/18 

£000 £000

85,959     84,924         1617 1528

(43,499)    (44,552)        

42,460     40,372         1,617       1,528         

42,460     40,372         1,617       1,528         

Pension Statement

 Scheme 

Assets 

 Pension 

Obligation 

 Net 

Pension 

Liability 

 Scheme 

Assets 

 Pension 

Obligation 

 Net 

Pension 

Liability 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

37,789 (68,474) (30,685) 43,499 (87,576) (44,077) 

(1,137) (1,137) (1,925) (1,925) 

(1,137) (1,137) (1,925) (1,925) 

1,314 (2,361) (1,047) 1,165 (2,334) (1,169) 

(24) (24) (23) (23) 

1,290 (3,498) (2,208) 1,142 (4,259) (3,117) 

5,723 5,723 609 609 

(17,291) (17,291) 3,132 3,132 

(907) (907) 

4,816 (17,291) (12,475) 609 3,132 3,741 

291 (291) 300 (300) 

1,187 1,187 1,453 1,453 

104 104 100 100 

1,582 (291) 1,291 1,853 (300) 1,553 

(1,874) 1,874 (2,451) 2,451 

(104) 104 (100) 100 

(1,978) 1,978 (2,551) 2,551 

43,499 (87,576) (44,077) 44,552 (86,452) (41,900)

Admin Expenses

   Employee Contributions

   Employer (Council) Contributions

   Employer (Council) Contributions                

unfunded

    Accural of Pension Strain payment

2017/18

Other movements in the liability (asset)

Net liability from defined benefit 

obligation

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Present value of the defined benefit 

obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Sub-total

Closing Balance as at 31 March

Remeasurement of net Defined 

Liability-CIES

Employers' contributions payable to 

the scheme

Reversal of Retirement Benefit

Contributions

Re-measurements

Actuarial gains and losses arising on 

changes in demographic and financial 

assumptions

Other actuarial gains & losses

Return on plan assets

Retirement grants and pensions

  Funded Payments

  Unfunded Payments

  Net payments

Interest income & expenses

2016/17

Opening Balance 1st April

Prior year adjustments to opening 

balance

Current service cost

Past service costs

CIES - Net Cost of Services

85 of 102
Page 140



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

48 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued�

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

 2016/17  2017/18  2016/17  2017/18 

23.4 23.5 23.4 23.5

25.5 25.6 25.5 25.6

25.6 25.7 25.6 25.7

27.8 27.9 27.8 27.9

3.6% 3.4% 3.6% 3.4%

2.7% 2.4% 2.7% 2.4%

4.2% 3.9% 4.2% 3.9%

2.7% 2.4% 2.7% 2.4%

2.7% 2.6% 2.7% 2.6%

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

 2016/17  2017/18 

£000 £000

1,161 1,088

10,460 9,552

Private Equity 297

15,126 16,489

25,586 26,338

1,299 1,399

1,112 911

2,411 2,310

1,693 1,598

3,806 4,145

6,458 6,653

2,384 2,420

14,341 14,816

43,499 44,552Total assets

Sub-total other investment funds

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 retiring today

 - Men

 - Woman

Longevity at 65 retiring in 20 years

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

 - Men

 - Woman

Rate of inflation (RPI)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

 - Property

 - Target Return Portfolio

 - Alternative Assets

Bonds: 

 - Gilts

 - Other Bonds 

Sub-total bonds

Other investments: 

Fair value of scheme assets

 - Infrastructure

Cash and cash equivalents

Equities:

UK

Overseas

Sub-total equities 

Rate of inflation (CPI)

Both the Local Government Pension scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by Barnett 

Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Local Government Pension Scheme being based upon the 

latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2016 and has then been updated for estimated fund returns, asset 

statement, market returns, income and expenditure or as at the 31 Match 2018.

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using their projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions 

that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

86 of 102
Page 141



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

48 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued�

Estimation of Assets and Liabilities

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

The authority anticipates paying contributions of £1.62m to the scheme in 2018/19.

(3,221)

£000

130 (129)

1,420 (1,395)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 18 years. 

(2016/17 18 years)

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions set out in the annual 

actuarial report. The sensitivity analysis shown below have been determined based on reasonably 

possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 

each change that the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant. The 

assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men 

and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be 

interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the 

scheme, i.e. on the actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of 

assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the 

previous period.

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 

0.1%)

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as possible. 

Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis and the next triennial valuation is due to be 

completed on 31 March 2020, at which point the employers contributions may change. 

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows

Decrease in 

Assumption

Increase in 

Assumption

£000

3,376 (3,245)

(1,519) 1,548

3,407

87 of 102
Page 142



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Accounts

49 Contingent Liabilities

50 Contingent Assets

51 Trusts

At 31 March 2018, the Council had identified the following material contingent liabilities:-

Property Warranties

The Council has provided environmental warranties to Westcountry Housing (formerly Tarka Housing) as part of 

the Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen environmental impact for which the Council might be 

liable at a later date. The Council has insured itself against any future potential liability. The Council�s own 

Environmental Health records show a low likelihood of any liability.

The Council has provided property warranties to Westcountry Housing (formerly Tarka Housing) as part of the 

Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen property defects for which the Council might be liable at a 

later date. The warranties, which last 30 years, provide a maximum liability over this period of £6.000 million but the 

liability for any one dwelling is capped at £3,529. The disclosures and exemption clauses within the warranties, 

coupled with the various stock condition surveys, are such that the Council assesses that there is unlikely to be any 

material liability arising in respect of the warranties.

Environmental Warranties

The Trustees of Municipal Mutual Insurance had been anticipating a solvent run off when settling all claims. In 

2012/13 the Trustees concluded that this was no longer possible and required the Council to make a contribution 

based on claims settled on behalf of the Council. A further levy contribution was requested in 2015/16. The 

Trustees have not ruled out the need to make further contributions however it is not anticipated that any further 

contribution to the shortfall will be material. However should further claims arise in future years then the Council�s 

potential liability will increase.

Municipal Mutual Insurance

The Council is also participating in a joint action against the Royal Mail for recovery of VAT on postage charged as 

Exempt and estimated to be £0.423 million.  

As the receipt of these amounts is uncertain they have not been included within these accounts.

The Council holds the Thomas Burton Will Trust. Under the terms of the Trust the income is applied for the upkeep 

of the Burton Art Gallery. The assets of the Trust amount to £12,430 (£12,430 in 2015/16 ) and do not belong to the 

Council but are held by it as a deposit and are included on the Balance Sheet as a liability under Long Term 

Borrowing. The income to the Council from the Trust of £87 (£94 in 2015/16) is included within Gross Income on 

Strategic Manager (Services)  in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

National Non-Domestic Rates

At 31 March 2017 there were outstanding appeals in respect of Non-Domestic Rating valuations and these have 

been included in Note 32 financial statements as a provision. The appeals provision has been calculated with 

reference to previosuly settled appeals. In addition there will be appeals that have yet to be submitted. An estimate 

has been submitted  for appeals yet to be lodged.  These valuations will not be determined until some time after the 

date the appeal is submitted. The Council will be liable for a proportion of any refund made to the ratepayer. The 

size of this liability in respect of the refunds is likely to be material but it is not possible at this point in time to 

quantify precisely.

88 of 102
Page 143



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

(10,591) Business Rates receivable (11,047) 

213 (621) 

(10,378) (11,668)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

5,270 5,271 

949 949 

105 105 

4,216 4,217 

10,540 10,542

52 42 

(470) (424) 

568 803 

0 0 

132 133 

282 Total Charges to Collection Fund 554

(186) (118) 

(21) (13) 

(1,031) (656) 

(825) (525) 

(2,063) (1,312)

8,759 9,784

(1,619) (1,884)

2,348 727

727 (1,157)

Write offs and  Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Central Government

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Torridge District Council

Charges to Collection Fund

Total Expenditure

Income

This section summarises how the money we collected through our share of Non-Domestic Rates is 

distributed between precepting authorities.

The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates

Transitional Protection Payments

Total Income

Torridge District Council

Closing Balance at 31 March

The £1,157k represents the overall surplus on the Non-Domestic Collection Fund at 31/03/18 (2016/17 

£727k deficit). Of this 40% is attributable to TDC, which equates to £463k (2016/17 £290k deficit).

Increase in provision for appeals

Cost of Collection

Interest on Refund

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Balance at 1st April

Disregarded Amounts

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Central Government

Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit

89 of 102
Page 144



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

2016/17 2017/18

£000 Notes £000

Income

(38,692) 1 (40,858) 

(38,692) (40,858)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

27,486 29,695 

3,934 4,129 

1,820 1,910 

3,384 Torridge District Council 3,599 

1,153 Parish Precepts 1,269 

37,777 40,602

55 69 

90 85 

0 0

145 154

626 Devon County Council 871 

91 Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner 125 

42 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue 58 

104 Torridge District Council 144 

863 1,198

38,785 41,954

93 1,096

(1,251) (1,158)

(1,158) (62)

Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue

Charges to Collection Fund

Write offs of uncollectable amounts

The £62k represents the overall surplus on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund at 31/03/18 

(2016/1 £1,158k). Of this  12% is due to Torridge, which equates to £8k (see note 37) (2016/17 £139k).

Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Closing Balance at 31 March

Total Charges to Collection Fund

      The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Council Tax

This section summarises how the money we collected through Council Tax is distributed between  

precepting authorities.

Total Income

Balance at 1 April

Council Tax receivable

Total expenditure

Disregarded Amounts

Apportionment of previous year's surplus

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Devon County Council

Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner

90 of 102
Page 145



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2017-18

Notes to the Collection Fund

General

1 Calculation of Council Tax Base

Actual Band D 

A 1,155.7 3,485.9

B 1,348.4 4,238.8

C 1,541.0 5,125.0

D 1,733.6 5,019.1

E 2,118.9 3,531.7

F 2,504.1 1,416.2

G 2,889.4 565.8

H 3,467.2 37.7

Total 23,420.2

2 Income collectable from Business Rates payers

2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000

34,314 38,491

49.7p 47.9

48.4p 46.6

Rateable value at 31 March

Uniform Business Rate

Small Business Rate

These accounts represent the transactions of the Collection Fund, which is a statutory fund 

separate from the main accounts of the Council.  The accounts are, however, consolidated with the 

Council's balance sheet. The accounts have been prepared on the accruals basis.

The Council collects Non-Domestic rates for its area, which is based on local rateable values 

multiplied by either a uniform rate; there is a reduced rate levied on small business.  The total 

amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is then apportioned 50% to Central Government, 

9% to Devon County Council and 1% to Devon Fire and Rescue Authority.  The remaining 40% is 

Torridge's share and is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Torridge District Council is one of eleven authorities who are in the Devon Business Rates Pool. 

The Pool allocates losses and gains to its members based upon their relative business rates tax 

base.

The council tax base is calculated by taking the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation 

band  (adjusted for discounts as necessary) and converted into the number of Band D equivalent 

properties multiplied by the council tax rate per Band D properties.

Number of Dwellings

91 of 102
Page 146



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 147

chris.dobbs_53
Typewritten Text

chris.dobbs_54
Typewritten Text
92 of 102



Glossary of Terms         

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Accounting Period 
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months 
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date. 

Actual 
The actual, rather than budgeted, expenditure or income attributable to the accounting 
period. Sometimes referred to as �Actuals�. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
Changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses due to actual experience or events that have 
not been exactly the same as the assumptions adopted at the previous valuation, or 
the actuarial assumptions have changed. 

Actuary 
An expert who analyzes the financial consequences of risk, with the purpose of assessing 
the level of funds required in the pension fund. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses 
that arise because: 

• Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last 
valuation (experience gains and losses); or 

•    The actuarial assumptions have changed. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account
This account represents the value of any unused holiday, time off in lieu or flexi hours 
which have not been taken by officers at 31 March. 

Amortisation 
The writing down of an intangible fixed asset over its useful life. 

Appointed Auditors 
The Audit Commission appoints external auditors to every Local Authority, from one of 
the major firms of registered auditors. 

Assets 
An item having value to the Council in monetary terms, categorised as: 

•  Current assets will be consumed within the next financial year (e.g.: cash and 
stock). 

•  Fixed assets (non current) provide benefits over their useful life for more that 
one year and can be tangible (e.g. buildings) or intangible (e.g.: computer 
software licences). 

• Community assets are assets that the local authority intends to hold in 

93 of 102
Page 148



Glossary of Terms         

perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and may have restrictions on 
their disposal (e.g. town squares and picnic sites). 

•  Infrastructure assets that form part of the economic or social framework of the 
area and whose function is not transferable (e.g.: highways, bridges and 
footpaths). 

•  Operational assets are fixed assets held and occupied by a local authority and 
used in the direct delivery of services. 

• Non-Operational assets are fixed assets held by a local authority but not 
directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services (e.g.: buildings 
under construction and surplus assets. 

•  Assets under Construction details capital expenditure to date on work in 
progress. 

•  Available for Sale are assets actively being marketed at the Balance Sheet 
date. 

Audit & Governance Committee 
A Committee of the Council who consider financial matters and reports from Internal 
Audit, and approve and monitor our Financial Regulations and risk management. The 
Committee is delegated to approve the Accounts following External Audit review. 

Audit of Accounts 
An independent examination of the Council�s financial affairs. 

Authorised Limit 
This represents the legislative limit on the Council�s external debt under the Local 
Government Act 2003. 

Balance Sheet 
A statement of all the Council�s assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year, 31 
March. 

Budget 
The forecast of net revenue and capital expenditure over the accounting period. 

Capital Adjustment Account 
This records the timing difference between the costs of fixed assets used and the 
capital financing set aside to pay for them. 

Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on assets which have a long term value. Includes the purchase of land, 
purchase or cost of construction of buildings and the acquisition of plant, equipment 
and vehicles. 

94 of 102
Page 149



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Capital Charges 
A general term used for the notional charges made to service revenue accounts for the use 
of fixed assets. The term covers the following: Depreciation, Impairment charges and 
Amortisation of Deferred Charges (included in gross expenditure) offset by the Amortisation 
of government grants deferred (included in income). 
 
Capital Financing Costs 
Costs, such as interest, which are incurred as a result of spending funds spent on non-
current assets. 
 
Capital Receipts 
Proceeds received from the sale of property and other capitalised assets. 
 
Carrying Amount 
The recorded value in the Balance Sheet, of either an asset or a liability. 
 
Cash-flow Statement 
A statement summarising the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with 
third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. 
 
Collection Fund 
A separate fund recording the income and expenditure relating to council tax and Business 
Rates, Torridge is responsible for the collection and distribution of Council Tax and Business 
rates for both the Council and others preceptors. 
 
Community Assets 
Fixed assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no determinable finite 
useful life and in addition, may have restrictions on their disposal. 
An example is a park. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
A statement summarising the resources generated and consumed by the Council during the 
year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).  . 
 
Contingency 
Money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or 
shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in budgets. 
 
Contingent Liabilities or Assets 
Amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise in the future, 
but which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for which provision as not yet 
been made in the Council’s accounts. 
 
Council Tax 
The main source of local taxation to Local Authorities. Council Tax is levied on households 
within its area by the Billing Authority and the proceeds are paid into its collection Fund for 
distribution to precepting Authorities and for use by its own General Fund. 
 

95 of 102
Page 150



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Council Tax Requirement 
The net estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services, after deducting income 
from fees and charges, certain specific grants and funding from reserves, which require 
financing from Council Tax income. 
 
Creditor 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered but 
for which payment has not been made at 31 March. 
 
Current Assets 
Short-term assets held at the Balance Sheet date, including cash, cash equivalents and 
monies due from debtors within 12 months. 
 
Current Liabilities 
Short-term liabilities, due to be settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 
 
Current Service Cost 
Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension 
scheme’s liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current period i.e the 
ultimate pension benefits “earned” by employees in the current year’s employment. 
 
Curtailment 
Curtailments will show the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any employee has 
been made redundant in the previous financial year. 
 
Debtor 
Sums of money due to the Council, but unpaid at the balance sheet date. 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts 
Capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place and wholly consist of 
principal outstanding from the sale of council houses 
 
Deferred Charges (now known as REFCUS see below) 
Expenditure which may properly be capitalised but which does not result in tangible fixed 
assets owned being by the Council. These charges are to be amortised to revenue over an 
appropriate period. 
 
Deferred Contributions 
Amounts received relating to future activities to be undertaken. 
 
Defined Benefit Scheme 
This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions 
payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The 
scheme may be funded or unfunded. 
 
 
 

96 of 102
Page 151



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Depreciation 
The allocation of the cost of a fixed asset over its useful economic life. Representing  the 
assets reduction in value over the accounting period through general wear and tear, 
consumption or obsolescence. 
 
Derecognition 
The removal from the Balance Sheet of a previously recognised financial asset or liability. 
E.g. when a building is sold 
 
Earmarked Reserves 
Those elements of the Council’s total reserves which are retained for specific purposes. 
 
Employee Costs 
Costs incurred employing staff including salaries, employer’s national insurance, pension 
contributions, and training. 
 

Exceptional Items 
Material items deriving from events or transactions that will fall within the ordinary activities 
of the Council, but which need to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size and/or 
incidence to give a fair presentation of the accounts. 
 
Expenditure 
Amounts paid by the Council for goods and services rendered of either capital or revenue 
nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment since expenditure is deemed to 
have been incurred once the goods and services have been received even if they have not 
been paid for. 
 
External Audit 
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure 
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper 
practices and to ensure the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 
 
Fair value 
The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
  
Fees and Charges 
The Council’s charges for certain services e.g. car parking. 
 
Finance Lease 
A lease whereby all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset are with the lessee. 
In substance the asset belongs to the lessee. 
 
Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both 
financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial  

97 of 102
Page 152



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives. 
 
Financial Regulations 
The written code of procedures, approved by the Council, intended to provide a framework 
for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, 
audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 
General Fund 
The main revenue fund of the Council, income from the council tax precept and Government 
grants are paid into the fund, from which the cost of providing services are met. 
 
Government Grants 
Payments by Central Government towards the Council’s expenditure. They are specific for a 
particular service; and are receivable in respect of both revenue and capital expenditure. 
 
Government Grants Deferred 
Grants or contributions received which have supported wholly or in part the acquisition of 
fixed assets, net of the appropriate share of depreciation on those assets for which a 
depreciation charge is made. 
 
Heritage Assets 
An asset with a historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental 
quality that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 
Housing Benefit 
An allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or in part, their rent. 
Benefit is allowed or paid by local Authorities but Central Government refunds part of the 
cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants 
as rent allowance. 
 
Impairment 
A reduction in the value of an asset to below its carrying amount on the balance sheet due 
to damage, obsolescence or a general decrease in market value. 
 
Income 
Amounts due to the Council for goods supplied or services rendered of either a capital or 
revenue nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment. Income is deemed to 
have been earned once the goods or services have been supplied even if the payment has 
not been received (in which case the recipient is a debtor to the Council). 
 
Income & Expenditure Account 
The net cost for the year for services provided by the Council for which it is responsible and 
showing how the cost has been financed from precepts, grants and other income. 
 
Intangible Assets 
Non-current assets without  physical substance, but which are identifiable and controlled by 
the Council. Computer software is the most common example. 

98 of 102
Page 153



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Interest 
An amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it is invested or borrowed. 
 
 
Leasing Costs 
Sums paid for the use of an asset for a specified period of time. Two forms of lease exist: 
finance leases and operating leases. Operating leases are those where the risks of 
ownership of the leased asset rest with the owner of the asset all other leases are finance 
leases and must be recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
 
LGPS (Local Government Pension Scheme) 
The fund that manages and pays the Council’s staff pensions. Our LGPS scheme is now 
managed by Peninsula Pensions. 
 
Liabilities 
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the 
future. Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Local Development Plan 
A plan which includes documents that establishes the local policy towards the use of land 
and the vision for involving communities in the plan making process. 
 
Long Term Borrowing 
Amounts borrowed in excess of 364 days. 
 
Long-Term Contract 
A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial 
asset, or the provision of a service (or a combination of assets and services which together 
constitute a single project), where the project falls into more than one accounting period. 
 
Long Term Debtors 
Sums of money due to the Council  repayable within a period in excess of twelve months. 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
A financial planning document that sets out the future years financial forecasts for the 
Council. It considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the 
general fund revenue budget and capital programme. It usually covers a four year time 
frame. 
 
Member 
An elected councillor of the Council. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The minimum amount which must be charged to the Council’s revenue account each year 
and set aside as provision for credit liabilities as required by the Prudential Code. 
 
 
 

99 of 102
Page 154



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
National Non Domestic rate (NNDR) 
The levy on business property, based upon a national rate in the pound applied to the 
‘rateable value’ of the property. The government determines a national rate poundage each 
year which is applicable to all Local Authorities. Torridge is a member of the Devon NNDR 
Pool of Local Authorities whose share of the NNDR is allocated between the members. 
 
Net Book Value 
The value of fixed assets included on the balance sheet, being the historical cost or a 
current revaluation less the cumulative amounts of depreciation. 
 
Net Debt 
Net debt is the Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. 
 
Net Realisable Value (NRV) 
NRV is the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less any costs to be incurred in 
selling the asset. 
 
Non Current Assets 
Assets that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more 
than one year. Examples include land, buildings and vehicles. 
 
Non-distributed Costs 
In the main this represents support service area charges. E.g.: Corporate Management, 
Finance, Legal, ICT, HR services, etc. In addition to this a number of non-service specific 
corporate fees are included as well as any extra payments made to maintain the value of the 
pension fund. 
 
Operating Lease 
A lease where the risks and rewards, and therefore the ownership of the asset, remains with 
the lessor. 
 
Operational Boundary 
The maximum anticipated level of external debt consistent with budgets and forecast cash 
flows. 
 
Pension Strain 
Additional employers pension contributions as a result of an employee’s early retirement. 
 
Precept 
The amount levied by one authority which is collected by another. e.g.: the County Council is 
the precepting authority and the District Council is the collecting authority. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments 
Material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising from changes in 
accounting policies or for the correction of fundamental errors. 
 
 
 

100 of 102
Page 155



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Provision 
An amount which is put aside to cover future liabilities or losses which are considered to be 
certain or very likely to occur, but the amounts and timing are uncertain. 
 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
An arm of Central Government which is the major provider of loans to finance the long term 
funding requirements for Local Authorities. 
 
Rateable Value 
A value placed upon all properties subject to rating. The value is based on a national rent 
that property could be expected to yield after deducting the cost of repairs. 
 
Related Parties 
Related parties comprise Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting and 
levying bodies subsidiary and associated companies, elected Members, all senior officers 
and the Pension Fund. In respect of individuals identified as related parties the following are 
also presumed to be related parties: 
 

• Members of the close family, or the same household; and 
• Partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member 

of their close family, or the same household, has a controlling interest. 
 

Revenue Expenditure 
Spending on the day-to-day running of services – mainly wages, operating expenses of 
buildings and equipment, and debt charges. These costs are met from the Council tax, 
government grants and our own fees and charges. 
 
Revenue Support Grant 
The major grant received each year from Central Government, which is not ring-fenced, 
to help finance our activities. Commonly referred to as the Council’s “Formula Grant” 
 
Reserves 
The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years. Reserves of a 
revenue nature are available and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the Council. 
Some capital reserves such as the capital adjustment account cannot be used to meet 
current expenditure. 
 
Restatement 
Changes to prior period comparative figures. Generally required due to changes in 
accounting standards and policies 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
A record of net gains on assets from revaluations made after 1 April 2007 not yet realised 
through sales.  
 
Revenue Contributions 
The financing of capital expenditure directly from revenue rather than from loans or other 
sources. 

101 of 102
Page 156



 
 

Glossary of Terms          
 
Revenue Expenditure 
The day to day expenditure of the Council on such items as employees, transport and 
equipment. 
 
Tax Base 
The number of houses (expressed in Band D Equivalents) the Council can charge Council 
Tax on. 
 
Treasury Management 
The process by which the Authority controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending 
activities. 
 
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) 
A strategy, approved by Cabinet, prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA 
requirements setting out the framework for treasury activity for the Council. 
 
Value for Money 
The benefit obtained (not just in financial terms) for a given input of cash. 

102 of 102
Page 157



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Non Compliance with Procedure Rules and Waivers
Date: 12th June 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:   To provide an update on any matters of non-compliance with the 
Contract and Financial Procedure Rules and on the Waivers approved by the Head of Paid 
Service and Section 151 Officer.

1. INTRODUCTION
The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the overall financial arrangements of the 
Council. Under the Financial Procedure Rules (FPR) and Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPR) he and the Head of Paid Service are able to authorise waivers when, as may 
happen from time to time, it is not possible or practical to follow the FPR or CPR. 
Those waivers approved since June 2017 are reported on.

2. REPORT
The process for waiving the Contract and Financial Procedure Rules was introduced 
in February 2011. It enables any of the rules to be waived provided the reason 
meets one of the four clear principles. The process was adopted in line with several 
other Councils.

The FPR (and similarly the CPR) state: “Where officers consider that the Financial 
Procedure Rules cannot be followed then reasoned, considered and sensible 
solutions to everyday problems that may arise shall be applied.

If the answer to one or more of the following questions is ‘Yes’, the waiving of the 
Financial Procedure Rules may be considered: If the Financial Procedure Rules 
were to be followed to the letter…………
 Life or Death – Is there a significant chance that the life or health of officers, 

members or the public will be put at real risk?
 Increased Costs/Loss of Income - Will the Council incur significant avoidable 

costs or lose significant income (significant shall be taken to mean material in 
the sense that it is either material to the project, the service or the Council)?

 Limited Markets – Would the Council be wasting its time obtaining quotations 
as supply of the product or service is demonstrably restricted to one or few 
businesses (or a select list is recommended by Central Government)?

 Embarrassment – Would the Council be criticised for failing to act promptly?”

There is a comprehensive procedure for obtaining a waiver which includes a 
standardised application form, the support of the relevant Senior Manager, challenge 
and verification by the Governance Team and final approval by either the Section 
151 Officer or Head of Paid Service. See Appendix A for an overview of the waiver 
process.

The waivers approved up to June 2017 (up to waiver number 110) were reported to 
this Committee in July 2017. Those approved since then are set out in
Appendix B (2017-18 Waivers, numbered 111 – 121).    

Page 158

Agenda Item 9



We analysed the waiver data for the past 6 years to determine whether there were 
any trends/areas for concern.

The following graph shows that for the first 3 years there was a typical annual 
pattern, but this changed in 2015/16, with an overall increase of 10 waivers in 
2015/16 over the previous year, but 8 of these waivers related directly to the 
Transforming Torridge Programme. The subsequent reduction of the number of 
waivers in 2016/17 and again in 2017/18 confirms that waiver activity in 2015/16 was 
distorted by the Transforming Torridge Programme and the number of waivers 
approved is being managed effectively.  

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Number of Waivers Each Year

Focusing on 2017/18, the 11 waivers were raised for the following reasons:

Reason for Waiver Number
Improving Community Facilities 3
Telephony/Network 2
ICT Software 2
Recycling 1
Housing Insurance 1
Apprenticeship Provision 1
Homelessness Prevention 1

Total 11

The following graph shows that the services which raised the most waivers are the 
Property Team (30% of all waivers raised), IT (13%), Planning (7.5%), Housing 
(7.5%) and Waste (7%). As the Property Team manages the majority of the Council’s 
external contracts, the IT Team have been moving the Council on to common IT 
platforms, Housing allocates grant monies, Planning have been commissioning 
surveys as part of the Local Plan, and there are ongoing changes to the delivery of 
the Council’s Waste & Recycling Services, this is as should be expected.     

Page 159



Pr
op

er
ty

H
ou

si
ng IC
T

Pl
an

ni
ng

C
om

m
er

ci
al

W
as

te

Bu
rto

n

H
R

Ac
co

un
ts

C
C

TV

El
ec

tio
ns

Le
is

ur
e

C
us

to
m

er
 S

up
po

rt

Le
ga

l

Pa
rk

in
g

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

Li
ce

ns
in

g

R
ev

s 
& 

Be
ns

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40
2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Who Raises Waivers?

Waiver requests are reviewed independently and challenged before being passed for 
approval. In addition to this process, we also review waivers to the FPR/CPR on a 
quarterly basis and report on any areas of concern to the Head of Paid Service and 
Section 151 Officer. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
As set out above and in appendix B

Human Resources Implications
Agency appointments as set out in the report

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
Adequate controls are in place to ensure efficient application of the Financial and 
Contract Procedure Rules.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the FPR and CPR as set out in the Constitution.  

Page 160



Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance Committee, commented 
“Waivers are independently scrutinised and also come under scrutiny from respective 
Lead Members to ensure they were raised for legitimate business reasons, as set out 
in the Financial Procedure Rules. I am satisfied that in all instances the Council has 
tried to achieve a best value approach.” 

4. CONCLUSIONS
The Council’s arrangements allow for efficient approval of waivers for all of the 
Procedure Rules provided they meet at least one of the four stipulated criteria. The 
Governance Team maintains a record of waiver requests together with any 
transactions which are required to be noted and any matters of non-compliance with 
the Procedure Rules.  

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee are asked to note that since July 2017 there were:
 11 waivers approved by the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace
Steve Hearse
Cllr Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files; Waiver records

Page 161



Appendix A

Page 162



- 6 -

APPENDIX B - WAIVERS OF FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES - 2017/18
A précis of the details of each waiver request received are listed below together with dates of approval.

Date approved or note if rejected

No.

F
PR

 or C
PR

?

Applicant Reason

W
hich R

ule?

R
eport to 

C
om

m
ittee

H
ead of Service

Property & 
Procurem

ent 
M

anager

Internal Audit 

H
O

PS
Section 151 

O
fficer

Telephony Replacement
With the Existing Telephony service current Unify contract ending 31 August 2017, a replacement service is required for continuation of service.
Unify contract was part of a Devon Wide solution that Devon County Council put in place, this platform required a significant investment 
(£200k+) to upgrade and conform to PSN compliancy. Devon County Council have now moved away leaving a massive investment to continue 
with this platform.

An alternate, standalone telephony platform is needed to cover existing requirements, but also adding some future proofing for developments.                                                                                                         
Alternative solutions have been considered but an investment of 20-30K from replacement phones would be required. 
By utilizing a Unify licence partner (Datasharp, based in Truro), This allows us to retain and re-use our existing installed base of handsets, and 
gives more flexibility with a platform using technology that is familiar to both Torridge and Devon County Council. This Platform is flexible and 
resilient and can be mirrored to the DR site.

Devon County Council have also had a waiver approve for the same system / Company for delivering Telephony for Partner access (500+ 
users). Cost for hardware and licences including setup £30,315 (One off), 24/7 Support £6,428 per year

111

F Kevin Salter Increased Costs / Loss of Income/ 
Limited Markets/Embarrassment 5.1.8 N/A SH

21/7/2017 n/a CD
21/7/2017

JW
24/7/2017

Changing Rooms Refurb
Emergency repairs works are required to the Bideford Sports Ground changing rooms in order for the facilities to be ready and useable for the 
start of the season. Due to time restrictions and the urgent nature of these works time does not allow for obtaining 3 written quotations. 
Alternative companies were considered / approached, but were unable to price and deliver the works in the time available.
Quotation was for £31,599.59.

This waiver has been produced to authorise the acceptance of the quotation from Westcountry Maintenance Services.

112

F Adrian Redwood Embarrassment 5.1.7 N/A SH 
26/6/2017 n/a CD 

27/6/2017
JW 

25/7/2017

P
age 163



- 7 -

Date approved or note if rejected

No.

F
PR

 or C
PR

?

Applicant Reason

W
hich R

ule?

R
eport to 

C
om

m
ittee

H
ead of 

Service

Property 
M

anager

Internal Audit 

H
O

PS
Section 151 

O
fficer

Wide Area Network
Our current Wide Area network (WAN) contract with Unify will expire mid-August, but we have since taken steps to extend to August 31st 2017 
for both Voice and Data services, this was required for continuation of service as the new WAN provider (Updata) contract DCC has in place 
start 1st September 2017. Unify contract was part of a Devon Wide WAN solution that Devon County Council (DCC) put in place, since this 
contract has been in place share services with North Devon District Council has taken place over this network.

DCC released an ITT to CCS RM1045 framework to meet the requirements; this was for a 12-month contract, plus an optional 12-month 
extension.  DCC deliberately chose a short-term contract as it wants to investigate all the options moving forward and look at making more use 
of the BDUK roll-out of Superfast services. Since this award DCC has signed a two-year contract so Districts can get value for money as this 
new service requires upfront installation charges to meet PSN requirements.

During the last couple of Months multiple meeting has taken place to make sure all districts join the same network to be able to continue with 
shared services. I can now confirm all the previous districts will now produce a Waiver for joining the new Updata DCC service. 
This service will be PSN compliant, allow for shared services, with a future proof network allowing for expansion if required.
Cost for hardware, installation £10,236 (One off)
Support / line rental £11,775 Year one
Support / line rental £11,541 Year two

113

F Kevin Salter Increased Costs / Loss of Income/ 
Limited Markets/Embarrassment 5.1.8 N/A SH

26/7/2017 n/a CD
26/7/2017

JW
26/7/2017

Annual Billing Contract
This procurement opportunity was sent to three suppliers who were all contacted prior to the start of the quotation period and who showed keen 
interest in providing a quote. Despite this only two suppliers returned quotes and therefore this wavier is required in order to comply with FPR’s.

The winning quote was provided by the current supplier and there is a risk that re-tendering would push timescales back to an unacceptable 
level with no likelihood of reducing costs.

114

F Simon Toon Increased Costs / Loss of Income/ 
Limited Markets 5.1.7 N/A JH 

17/8/2017 n/a CD 
17/8/2017

JW 
17/8/2017

P
age 164



- 8 -

Date approved or note if rejected

No.

F
PR

 or C
PR

?

Applicant Reason

W
hich R

ule?

R
eport to 

C
om

m
ittee

H
ead of Service

Property & 
Procurem

ent 
M

anager

Internal Audit 

H
O

PS
Section 151 

O
fficer

Apprenticeship Training Provider
The apprenticeship levy came into effect in April 2017 and places certain conditions on larger employers to recruit and train apprentices.  The 
public sector have an additional target to support the initiative with an expectation that we will take on 2.3% of our workforce as apprentices.  
The Council has taken on apprentices since 2012 and has always used Petroc as the training provider, given the practicalities of travel for 
students - particularly bearing in mind the majority of our apprentices have been aged under 20.  Initial research in 2012 found that there were 
no other training providers locally and recent conversations with both Mid and North Devon confirm that this remains - with both those 
employers also using Petroc as their training provider.  We have an on going relationship with Petroc regarding training for other staff and 
assistance with other projects (for example the HR recruitment microsite).  This has ensured a strong relationship with the ability to negotiate 
around cost and specific criteria covered in the training provided.  Based on TDC salary bill our levy is approximately £11,500. We pay this levy 
on a monthly basis and can then use this towards our training costs.  Until we know the exact age profile of our apprentices we will not know 
whether we need to pay any additional (although this is unlikely)

115

F Sarah Ayres Limited Markets 5.1.7 N/A JH 
9/8/2017 n/a CD 

21/8/2017
JW 

21/8/2017
Recycling / Environmental Centre Professional Fees
The TDC Environmental Centre (waste & recycling depot) project is proposed on a site that had previously been advanced for development by 
a third party. Substantial survey & design work had already been carried out by Steven Sherry Consultants as part of the original planning 
application for the site. The work involved site investigations, on site surveys and considerable time in compiling design information for the site. 
To reduce the lead time and benefit from the work already completed, we intend to buy the design data that already exists. 

The total cost of the entire design for the Environmental Centre amounts to £19,600.00 exc VAT. The fees involved are in line with current 
market expectations and are competitive, but more significantly enable an immediate start with the detailed design of the new facility.

116

F Adrian Redwood Limited Markets 5.1.7 N/A SH
3/10/2017 n/a CD 

3/10/2017
JW

4/10/2017

P
age 165



- 9 -

Date approved or note if rejected

No.

F
PR

 or C
PR

?

Applicant Reason

W
hich R

ule?

R
eport to 

C
om

m
ittee

H
ead of 

Service

Property & 
Procurem

ent 
M

anager

Internal 
Audit 

Section 151 
O

fficer

Environmental Insurance
Environment Insurance for the housing stock transferred to Tarka Housing in 2007, needs to be renewed (current policy runs to 10th December 
2017) for an additional 8 years. In order to go out to the market, detailed information, of the housing stock would need to be provided, this 
information was provided in 2007 to the original insurer, the information required would include an updated detailed breakdown of the housing 
stock by type and location, this information is not held by Torridge District Council.

AON (insurance broker) have obtained a renewal quote for £50K + IPT (£56K total). This compares well to the original 10 year premium of 
£63K + IPT (£66K total). There are only three insurers in the UK who offer this type of insurance, the original broker quoted £5K + £650 per 
additional day in order to obtain quotes from the market (effectively the other two insurers), other quotes are unlikely to be significantly 
lower than the renewal quote, and significant costs are required to run this exercise. Therefore tendering is likely to take more time than 
what is available, require information that we do not hold, and result in an increased cost to the Council.

117

C Peter Hudson Limited Markets 3.2 N/A SH
6/11/2017 n/a CD

6/11/2017
JW

6/11/2017
Corporate Payment Solution
The Councils corporate payment solution provided by Capita expires on 31 March 2018. This is a core piece of software used to take and 
manage payments over multiple channels and is fundamental to the ongoing effective operation of the Council. The rationale for seeking 
this waiver is based on limited markets, the high level of integration that exists between this software and other software solutions used by 
the Council and the lack of time to successfully procure and integrate an alternative solution by 31 March 2018.Furthermore, integration in 
to the Councils recently procured CMS software solution is also at a critical stage and as such any changes to
the corporate payment solution will cause additional costs to be incurred and a delay to the project which is not an option. The cost to renew 
the payment software is £39,995 based on a perpetual agreement. The Council currently has £10,000 per year credit with Capita as a result 
of a previous procurement exercise (Enforcement Service) therefore it is proposed that the 2017/18 credit is used to further reduce the cost 
of the software to the Council to £29,995.

118

F Simon Toon Increased Costs / Loss of Income/ 
Limited Markets 5.1.7 N/A SH 

14/12/2017 n/a CD 
14/12/2017

JW 
14/12/2017

P
age 166



- 10 -

Date approved or note if rejected

No.

FPR
 or C

PR
?

Applicant Reason

W
hich R

ule?

R
eport to 

C
om

m
ittee

H
ead of 

Service

Property & 
Procurem

ent 
M

anager

Internal 
Audit 

Section 151 
O

fficer

Homeless Prevention
This service has been in existence for a number of years and provides the Council with an outreach worker to engage with and help prevent 
homelessness of young persons. The post is jointly funded between DCC and the Council (£20K and £10K respectively). Historically the service was 
procured by DCC but 2 years ago DCC advised they were no longer able to procure the service on behalf of the Council although the same funding 
commitments would remain. Working jointly with NDDC during early 2016 a two-year contract was awarded to Encompass for the Young Persons 
Homelessness Prevention Service. A further joint procurement exercise was due to take place again this year but at the eleventh hour NDDC have 
decided to directly employ an officer to undertake this type of work. Given that the current contract expires at the end of March 2018 there is now 
insufficient time to conduct a full procurement exercise. It is therefore requested that this waiver is granted on the basis that the provision of a young 
persons homeless prevention officer is a critical requirement in preventing homelessness, there are limited markets for this type of service provision 
and the funding as stated above is available. 

On 2 March 2018 Councillor Simmons confirmed her support for this waiver.

119

F Simon Toon Limited Markets 5.1.7 N/A SH 
9/3/2018 n/a J Walter 

9/3/2018
JW 

12/3/2018
Remedial Works of BMX Track, Pollyfield
Red Rock Geoscience Ltd have been previously appointed by TDC to undertake the initial professional consultancy works to aid TDC in 
establishing the extent of remedial works to Pollyfield BMX track and also the Strongbox site. They have previously provided good value for 
money. In this instance having already established what is required on site. By going to further consultants would likely result in higher quotes 
being received by TDC for the same work and also keeping Red Rock would be beneficial from a consultancy point of view. Red Rock have 
quoted £9,100 + VAT to undertake the remaining consultancy work in support of a planning application and on site works.

120

F Andy Champion Increased Cost/Loss of Income/
Limited Markets 5.1.8 N/A SK

10/5/2018 n/a CD
10/5/2018

JW
10/5/2018

Northam Burrows Coastal Defence works
Specialist design input for two separate projects: Revetment Improvement Works and Appledore Gate Bridge Work (by grouping the two projects 
together we are realising some economies of scale). This waiver has been produced to authorise acceptance of the only fee proposal received from 
Black & Veatch Ltd (B&V). B&V were approached due to their involvement with very similar coastal defence works procured as recently as 2014. The 
same members of that team will be utilised to take advantage of their local knowledge and expertise. There are very few other specialist design 
consultancies capable of undertaking work of this nature and there is now insufficient time to find alternatives. With the autumn tides approaching the 
design phase needs to start immediately to have any prospect of project completion before the end of October 21018.

The overall estimate is for £34,751 which allows for full B&V involvement from inception to completion covering all phases including design, tendering, 
construction, supervision and project management etc. The intention is to place orders on B&V in a phased way with the hope that aspects covered in 
their fees can be undertaken in-house by TDC for the latter phases of the project, thereby realising a saving in the overall estimate.

121

F F F F F

P
age 167



Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2 1AG.  A list of members is available from 

our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).  

GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not 

liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details. 

 

 
 

Steve Hearse 
Strategic Manager (Resources) 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
EX39 2QG 
 
17 April 2018 

Dear Steve  

Planned audit fee for 2018/19 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) provides the framework for local 
public audit. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has been specified as an 
appointing person under the Act and the Local Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015 and has the power to make auditor appointments for audits of opted- in local 
government bodies from 2018/19.   

For opted- in bodies PSAA's responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and 
monitoring the quality of auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its 
responsibilities are available on the PSAA website. 

From 2018/19 all grant work now falls outside the PSAA contract, as PSAA no longer has 
the power to make appointments for assurance on grant claims and returns. Any assurance 
engagements will therefore be subject to separate engagements agreed between the grant-
paying body, the Council and ourselves and separate fees agreed with the Council. 

Scale fee 

PSAA published the 2018/19 scale fees for opted-in bodies in March 2018, following a 
consultation process.  Individual scale fees have been reduced by 23 percent from the fees 
applicable for 2017/18. Further details are set out on the PSAA website. The Council's scale 
fee for 2018/19 has been set by PSAA at £31,792.    

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to 
provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes'.  

The audit planning process for 2018/19, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL  
 
T  44 (0)1173057600   
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

Page 168

Agenda Item 10

http://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/what-we-do/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201819-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/


 2 

Scope of the audit fee 
There are no changes to the overall work programme for audits of local government audited 
bodies for 2018/19.  Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, 
the National Audit Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit 
Practice and guidance for auditors. Audits of the accounts for 2018/19 will be undertaken 
under this Code. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the 
NAO website. 

The scale fee covers: 

 our audit of your financial statements; 

 our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion); and 

 our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable). 
 
PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an 
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its latest guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2017. 
The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a 
conclusion on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people.  
 

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 
 

Main Audit fee £ 

September 2018 7,948 

December 2018 7,948 

March 2019 7,948 

June 2019 7,948 

Total 31,792 

 

  

Page 169

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/


 3 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in November to February. 
Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our 
findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work on the VfM 
conclusion along with our work on the whole of government accounts return will be 
completed in July 2019. 

 

 
Phase of work 

Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

November to 
January-  planning 
 
January to 
February - interim 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VfM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June to July  Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for the 
consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VfM conclusion January to July Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

As above 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 

July Opinion on the 
WGA return 

This work will be 
completed alongside the 
accounts audit. 

Annual audit letter September Annual audit letter 
to the Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 

 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Jon Roberts, our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner, via jon.roberts@uk.gt.com. 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
 

Geraldine Daly 
Engagement Lead 
 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page 170

mailto:jon.roberts@uk.gt.com


Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Torridge District Council

Year ending 31 March 2018

12 June 2018

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 11



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 31 May 2018 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Results of interim audit 6

Sector Update 8

Links 14

2

P
age 172



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 

delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

/

Introduction

3

Geraldine Daly

Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 7741

M 07500 783 992

E geri.n.daly@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7896

M 07880 456 123

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

P
age 173

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued by 

the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors to 

satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and 

sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties

We carried out our initial risk assessment to determine our 

approach in January 2018 and reported this to you in our 

Audit Plan.

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2018.

Progress at 31 May 2018

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual 

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 

procedures agreed with the Department for Work 

and Pensions. This certification work for the 2017/18 

claim will be concluded by November 2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to 

you in our certification letter.

Meetings

We met with the Head of Paid Services and the 

Strategic Manager (Resources) in May as part of our 

regular liaison meetings and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process is 

smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with 

network events for members and publications to 

support the Council. Our latest events were our local 

government accounts workshops which took place 

in Bristol on 2 February and in Plymouth on 6 

February. Further details of the publications that 

may be of interest to the Council are set out in our 

Sector Update section of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We carried out the following interim audit fieldwork in 

March 2018:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2017/18 

opinion has been brought forward by two months to 

31 July 2018. We are discussing our plan and 

timetable with officers.

The final accounts audit is due to begin in on 9 July 

with findings reported to you in the Audit Findings 

Report on 24 July 2018.

P
age 174



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2017/18.

April 2017 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit 

Committee setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council’s 2017-18 financial statements.

February 2018 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial 

value for money risk assessment within our Progress Report.

April 2018 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit 

Committee.

July 2018 Not yet due

Auditor’s Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance 

statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2018 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2018 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work 

carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due

P
age 175



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Results of Interim Audit Work

6

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall arrangements. 

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your attention. 

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key financial 

systems to date. We have not identified any significant weaknesses impacting on 

our responsibilities. 

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any weaknesses 

which impact on our audit approach.

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to 

the preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

P
age 176



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018 7

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council’s controls operating in 

areas where we consider that  there is a risk of material misstatement to the 

financial statements. 

Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in accordance with our 

documented understanding.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our 

audit approach.

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council’s journal entry policies and procedures as part 
of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not identified any 
material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the Council's 
control environment or financial statements.

To date we have undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions recorded 
for the first eleven months of the financial year, by extracting 'unusual' entries 
for further review. No issues have been identified that we wish to highlight for 
your attention.

Our work has not identified any errors or weaknesses which impact 

on our audit approach.

We will need to perform further procedures at the year end to test 

the remaining month of the financial year and year end journals, as 

well as to prove completeness of our populations.

Early substantive

testing

We have undertaken early substantive testing of non-grant revenues, welfare 
benefits expenditure and operating expenses for the first eleven months of the 
financial year.

Our work to date has not identified any issues which we wish to 

bring to the Council’s attention. We will complete our sample 

testing and ensure that related disclosures are appropriate as part 

of out financial statements audit.

Results of Interim Audit Work (continued)

P
age 177



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

8

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local government 

sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 178

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Public Sector Audit Appointments: Report on the 
results of auditors’ work 2016/17

This is the third report on the results of auditors’ work at local 

government bodies published by PSAA. It summarises the 

results of auditors’ work at 497 principal bodies and 9,752 

small bodies for 2016/17. The report covers the timeliness 

and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for 

money work, and the extent to which auditors used their 

statutory reporting powers.

The timeliness and quality of financial reporting for 2016/17, as reported by auditors, 

remained broadly consistent with the previous year for both principal and small bodies. 

Compared with 2015/16, the number of principal bodies that received an unqualified audit 

opinion by 31 July showed an encouraging increase. 83 principal bodies (17 per cent) 

received an unqualified opinion on their accounts by the end of July compared with 49 (10 

per cent) for 2015/16. These bodies appear to be well positioned to meet the earlier statutory 

accounts publication timetable that will apply for 2017/18 accounts.

Less positively, the proportion of principal bodies where the auditor was unable to issue the 

opinion by 30 September increased compared to 2015/16. Auditors at 92 per cent of councils 

(331 out of 357) were able to issue the opinion on the accounts by 30 September 2017, 

compared to 96 per cent for the previous year. This is a disappointing development in the 

context of the challenging new reporting timetable from 2017/18. All police bodies, 29 out of 

30 fire and rescue authorities and all other local government bodies received their audit 

opinions by 30 September 2017.

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements has remained 

relatively constant at 7 per cent (30 councils, 2 fire and rescue authorities and 1 other local 

government body) compared to 8 per cent for 2015/16. The most common reasons for 

auditors issuing non-standard conclusions on the 2016/17 accounts were:

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates;

• corporate governance issues; and

• financial sustainability.

The latest results of auditors’ work on the financial year to 31 March 2017 show a solid 

position for the majority of principal local government bodies. Generally, high standards of 

financial reporting are being maintained despite the financial and service delivery challenges 

currently facing local government.

9

P
age 179

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Overview of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)

10

What is it?

The GDPR is the most significant development in data protection for 20 years. It 

introduces new rights for individuals and new obligations for public and private 

sector organisations. 

What’s next?

Many public sector organisations have already developed strategic plans to 

implement the GDPR, which require policy, operational, governance and 

technology changes to ensure compliance by 25th May 2018. 

How will this affect 

you? 

What organisations 

need to do by May 

2018  

 All organisations that process personal data will be affected by the GDPR. 

 The definition of 'personal data' has been clarified to include any data that can identify a living individual, either directly or 

indirectly. Various unique personal identifiers (including online cookies and IP addresses) will fall within the scope of personal 

data

 Local government organisations need to be able to provide evidence of completion of their GDPR work to internal and external 

stakeholders, to internal audit and to regulators. 

 New policies and procedures need to be fully signed off and operational. 

Organisation Accountability Notifications and Rights Claims and Fines

 Organisations must document their assurance 

procedures, and make them available to regulators

 Some organisations need to designate a Data 

Protection Officer, who has expert knowledge of data 

protection law

 Organisations must notify significant data 

breaches to regulators within 72 hours

 Organisations must explain to individuals what 

their rights over their personal information are and 

how it is being processed and protected

 For the most serious data breaches, privacy 

regulators can impose penalties of up to €20 

million on public sector organisations, 

 Individuals and representative organisations can 

claim compensation for infringements of data 

protection law

P
age 180



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Financial sustainability of local authorities 2018

This National Audit Office report reviews financial 

sustainability across  Local Government and examines 

whether the MHCLG, along with other departments with 

responsibility for local services, understands the impact of 

funding reductions on the financial and service sustainability 

of local authorities.

The report concludes that current pattern of growing overspends on services and dwindling 

reserves exhibited by an increasing number of authorities is not sustainable over the medium 

term. The financial future for many authorities is less certain than in 2014, when the NAO 

last looked at financial sustainability. It also notes that the financial uncertainty created by 

delayed reform to the local government financial system risks longer-term value for money.

The NAO’s view is that the sector has done well to manage substantial funding reductions 

since 2010-11, but financial pressure has increased markedly since the 2014 review.. 

Services other than adult social care are continuing to face reducing funding despite 

anticipated increases in council tax. Local authorities face a range of new demand and cost 

pressures while their statutory obligations have not been reduced. Non-social-care budgets 

have already been reduced substantially, so many authorities have less room for manoeuvre 

in finding further savings. The scope for local discretion in service provision is also eroding 

even as local authorities strive to generate alternative income streams.

Key findings include:

• Financial resilience varies between authorities, with some having substantially lower 

reserves levels than others. Levels of total reserves in social care authorities as a whole 

are higher now than in 2010-11. However, there is variation in individual authorities’ 

ability to build up their reserves and differences in the rate at which they have begun to 

draw them down. Some 10.6% of single-tier and county councils would have the 

equivalent of less than three years’ worth of total reserves (earmarked and unallocated 

combined) left if they continued to use their reserves at the rate they did in 2016-17.

• A section 114 notice has been issued at one authority, which indicates that it is at risk of 

failing to balance its books in this financial year. In February 2018, the statutory financial 

officer for Northamptonshire County Council issued a section 114 notice, indicating that it 

was at risk of spending more in the financial year than the resources it has available, 

which would be unlawful.

• MHCLG’s work to assess the sector’s funding requirements as part of the 2015 Spending 

Review was better than the work it undertook for the 2013 Spending Review. The 

Department’s advice to ministers in 2015 drew on a more comprehensive evidence base, 

including data returns from 12 departments.

• The government has announced multiple short-term funding initiatives in recent years 

and does not have a long-term funding plan for local authorities. In 2016-17, the 

Department offered a four-year settlement to all authorities to enable better financial 

planning. However, there have been many changes to funding streams outside this core 

offer. The funding landscape following the 2015 Spending Review has been 

characterised by one-off and short-term funding initiatives. 

• There is also uncertainty over the long-term financial plan for the sector. The absolute 

scale of future funding is unknown until the completion of the next Spending Review. The 

government has confirmed its intention to implement the results of the Fair Funding 

Review in 2020-21 and to allow local authorities to retain 75% of business rates. 

However, the implications of these changes are not yet clear. 

• There is a lack of ongoing coordinated monitoring of the impact of funding reductions 

across the full range of local authority services.

11

P
age 181



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

CIPFA publications - The Prudential Code and 
Treasury Management Code

CIPFA have published an updated ‘Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities’. Key developments 

include the introduction of more contextual reporting 

through the requirement to produce a capital strategy 

along with streamlined indicators. 

The framework established by the Prudential Code should support local strategic 

planning, local asset management planning and proper option appraisal. The 

objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within this clear framework, that the 

capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code 

when carrying out their duties in England and Wales under Part 1 of the Local 

Government Act 2003, in Scotland under Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003, and in Northern Ireland under Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 

(Northern Ireland) 2011.

12

.

Since the Prudential Code was last updated 

in 2011, the landscape for public service 

delivery has changed significantly following 

the sustained period of reduced public 

spending and the developing localism 

agenda. It reflects the increasing diversity in 

the sector and new structures, whilst 

providing for streamlined reporting and 

indicators to encourage better understanding 

of local circumstances and improve decision 

making.

The introduction of a capital strategy allows 

individual local authorities to give greater 

weight to local circumstances and explain 

their approach to borrowing and investment.

The Code is available in hard copy and 

online.

CIPFA have also published  an updated Treasury 

Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 

and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Code provides 

a framework for effective treasury management in public 

sector organisations. 

The Code defines treasury management as follows:

The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 

with those risks. 

It is primarily designed for the use of local authorities (including police and crime 

commissioners and fire authorities), providers of social housing, higher and further 

education institutions, and the NHS. Local authorities in England, Scotland and Wales 

are required to ‘have regard’ to the Code.

Since the last edition of the TM Code was published in 2011, the landscape for public 

service delivery has changed significantly following the sustained period of reduced 

public spending and the developing localism agenda.

There are significant treasury management portfolios within the public 

services, for example, as at 31 March 2016, UK local authorities had 

outstanding borrowing of £88bn and investments of £32bn

.The Code is available in hard copy and online.

P
age 182



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

The Vibrant Economy Index
a new way to measure success

Places are complex and have an intrinsic impact on the people and businesses within them. 

Economic growth doesn’t influence all of the elements that are important to people’s lives –

so we shouldn’t use GDP to measure success. We set out to create another measure for 

understanding what makes a place successful. 

In total, we look at 324 English local authority areas, taking into account not only economic 

prosperity but health and happiness, inclusion and equality, environmental resilience, 

community and dynamism and opportunity. Highlights of the index include:

• Traditional measures of success – gross value added (GVA), average workplace earning 

and employment do not correlate in any significant way with the other baskets. This is 

particularly apparent in cities, which despite significant economic strengths are often 

characterised by substantial deprivation and low aspiration, high numbers of long-term 

unemployment and high numbers of benefit claimants

• The importance of the relationships between different places and the subsequent role of 

infrastructure in connecting places and facilitating choice. The reality is that patterns of 

travel for work, study and leisure don’t reflect administrative boundaries. Patterns emerge 

where prosperous and dynamic areas are surrounded by more inclusive and healthy and 

happy places, as people choose where they live and travel to work in prosperous areas.

• The challenges facing leaders across the public, private and third sector in how to 

support those places that perform less well. No one organisation can address this on 

their own. Collaboration is key.

Visit our website (www.grantthornton.co.uk) to explore the interactive map, read case studies 

and opinion pieces, and download our report Vibrant Economy Index: Building a better 

economy.

Vibrant Economy app

To support local collaboration, we have also developed a Vibrant Economy app. It's been 

designed to help broaden understanding of the elements of a vibrant economy and 

encourage the sharing of new ideas for – and existing stories of – local vibrancy. 

We’ve developed the app to help people and organisations:

• see how their place performs against the index and the views of others through an 

interactive quiz

• post ideas and share examples of local activities that make places more vibrant

• access insights from Grant Thornton on a vibrant economy.

We're inviting councils to share it with their employees and the wider community to 

download. We can provide supporting collateral for internal communications on launch and 

anonymised reporting of your employees' views to contribute to your thinking and response.

13

To download the app visit your app store and search 'Vibrant Economy‘

• Fill in your details to sign up, and wait for the verification email (check 

your spam folder if you don't see it)

• Explore the app and take the quiz

• Go to the Vibrant Ideas section to share your picture and story or idea

Our Vibrant Economy Index uses data to provide a robust, independent framework to help everyone understand the 

challenges and opportunities in their local areas. We want to start a debate about what type of economy we want to build 

in the UK and spark collaboration between citizens, businesses and place-shapers to make their places thrive.

P
age 183

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | June 2018

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

PSAA website links

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

MHCLG website links

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition

National Audit Office link

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018/

14

Links

P
age 184

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 185



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date
Date: 12th June 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports issued 
to ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports. 

Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the Service 
Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives the 
opportunity for Members as a group to discuss any related matters.

This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously reported. 

2. REPORT
A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A. 

There are seven audits to be reported upon: 
 Housing Benefits
 Payroll
 Cyber Security – End User Controls
 Health & Safety
 Key Performance Indicators
 Cemeteries
 Risk Management

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Page 186

Agenda Item 12



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework. Any agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit 
reports include those risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are 
reported separately and directly to management for them to manage. Progress with 
implementing actions is reported to the Head of Paid Service (or Senior Management Team) and 
to the Audit & Governance committee on a quarterly basis.
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”   

4. CONCLUSIONS
Seven reports have been issued since the meeting in February. The opinion for these audits at 
the time of publication was:

Opinion Audit
‘Good’
(which means minimal risks identified)

Benefits; 
Payroll 

‘Satisfactory’
(which means some risks identified; some 
changes should be made)

Cyber Security (End User Controls); 
KPIs; 
Cemeteries; 
Risk Management 

‘Marginal/Satisfactory’
(which means a number of risks have been 
identified)

Health & Safety 

Opinions range from: Good; Satisfactory; Satisfactory/Good; Satisfactory / Marginal; Marginal / 
Satisfactory; Marginal; Unsatisfactory; and, Unsound.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the seven internal audits in this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Jamie Hollis
Councillors - Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 187



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Appendix A
Benefits – Good (12/13 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (February 2017) – Good 12/13 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Background

Housing Benefit (HB) is a means tested social security benefit defined in law to help people pay their rent. 
The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) sets HB rates, policy and rules, but the payment of benefits 
is administered by Local Authorities. The DWP then pay the Authority a subsidy to cover the expenditure 
but only provided it has been properly administered. The external auditors Grant Thornton are required to 
independently review the administration controls that support the subsidy calculations but any control 
issues identified may impact on the subsidy paid to the Authority. 

Council Tax Benefit (CTB) was abolished with effect from 31st March 2013 by the Welfare Reform Act 
2012. It has been replaced in the main by a locally set Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS). The Scheme 
was approved by Council on 26th November 2012 and amended the previous CTB as follows:
 Limit Liability to 75%
 Limit Capital cut off threshold to £6,000 (previously £16,000)
 Abolish Second Adult Rebate
 Restrict council tax liability to a maximum liability of a Band D property
 Introduce an Exceptional Hardship Fund with a Policy for its use and administration. 
This scheme has rolled forward each year with increments to the Applicable Amounts to align with the HB 
scheme. The Pensioner CTS scheme is nationally set by Central Government and mirrors the previous 
CTB.

The main aim and objectives of the service is to pay the correct level of benefit / support to the right person 
at the right time. A further aim is to investigate and prevent fraud.

Opinion 

Overall we found that 11 controls were good and 2 were satisfactory.  Controls can be strengthened for 
payment arrangements in the event of a disaster and to verify that data back up records can be restored 
effectively if they are required. These are outside of the immediate control of Customer Services and will 
require support from Finance and ICT to improve the controls. Spot checking of assessors work is not as 
effective or comprehensive as previously found as the Monitoring Officer has been responsible for training 
new assessors and does not have capacity for regular reviews at present. Whilst some cross checking is 
done by other assessors and the Team Leader, limited resources mean that this is not likely to be as 
effective a control for some months to come.   

Management Response

Customer Support Manager - This is another positive audit of a critical service and is testament to the 
hard work of the team. This is set against a background of ongoing welfare reform, the delayed introduction 
of `full service` Universal Credit and vacancy management.

See following page for control table:

Page 188



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Benefits - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 18

Feb 18

C1. The computer system accurately 
calculates the benefit / support payable and 
parameters have been correctly set

Statutory and discretionary HB/CTS system parameters 
had been input and independently checked in a timely 
way. The test system was used to ensure potential issues 
were identified and mitigated. The system generates an 
event log of parameter changes.

G G

C2. All applications awaiting further 
information or action are monitored to 
ensure none have been left outstanding or 
unresolved

The Benefits Team Leader monitors pending claims 
reports and takes appropriate action where deemed 
necessary.

G G

C3. Reconciliation of council tax scheme 
amounts to the Council Tax system and 
rent allowances to the payments made are 
complete and up to date

Monthly reconciliations ensure HB and CTS payments 
and discounts post correctly between systems. A year end 
journal ensures Hostel Rents are posted to the general 
ledger.

G G

C4. Calculations are checked periodically 
by an independent person to ensure both 
accuracy and adequate verification has 
been obtained. 

The Monitoring Officer previously checked a sample of all 
officers’ claims; however focus this year has been on 
checking the trainee officers’ work. Checks are carried out 
by another assessor when a payment exceeds £1k, and 
the Team Leader checks all overpayments. This could be 
improved, once the trainees require less monitoring, but 
resources are currently limited.

G G

C5. IT system is secure and backed up at 
all times. Records are secure.

There is offsite server back up and back up to Hard Disk 
Drive. The quality of the data on the HDD has not been 
verified with a test restore. In the event of a virus or 
ransom-ware attack the HDD may be vital for prompt 
restoration of the system. 

A G

C6. Satisfactory business continuity plan in 
place in the event of an IT failure / disaster

The BCP covers processing of claims in an emergency; 
however, making HB payments to landlords through 
BACS requires attention following the change of bank.

A A

C7. All claims are supported by relevant 
claim form, supporting documentation and 
correspondence 

Sample testing of 20 claims found that assessments were 
supported by all the relevant documentation.

G G

C8. Claim details have been correctly input 
to the system so that benefit / support is 
correctly & promptly calculated. (All types: 
UC, IS, JSA, Tax Credit, income, self-
employed, ESA, GC)

Claim input was found to be accurate and promptly 
calculated. G G

C9. Overpayments are promptly identified, 
and recovery action taken.

Appropriate recovery action has been taken on 
overpayments created in the year.

G G

C10. Effective investigation methods are in 
place to ensure frauds & irregularities are 
identified, investigated & appropriate action 
taken.

Application design discourages fraudulent claims, and 
fraud information provided to the DWP is adequate and 
timely.

G G

C11. Payments are regularly reconciled to 
GL

Monthly reconciliations are carried out by experienced 
system administrators. A printed copy is signed and dated 
and supporting records held.

G G

C12. Access to the system is restricted to 
relevant officers and enforces adequate 
separation of duty

Password controls were effective for the Academy 
system.
Account restrictions are applied where conflicts of interest 
exist.

G G

C13. Overpayments and backdated cases 
are properly coded to ensure the subsidy 
claim will be correct

Testing of a sample of overpayments found that all had 
been classified correctly. These are monitored daily by the 
Team Leader.

G GPage 189



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Payroll – Good (9/10 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (February 2017) – Good (10/10 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The Authority’s Payroll process is designed to pay employees, members and a small number of pensioners 
inherited from the five former district Authorities that merged in April 1974 to form the current Torridge 
District Council. The Authority also offers its payroll service to Parish Councils as a method of paying their 
clerks.

The Human Resources team is responsible for maintaining accurate personnel records relating to staff 
employed by the Authority. An off the shelf software package called Sage is used for this, which was 
introduced in July 2008. 

The Exchequer team are responsible for updating and maintaining payroll data. The Bond Teamspirit 
software system is used for this. The System was implemented in April 2014, is hosted by North Devon 
Council and accessed by Torridge via a secure dedicated line. 

The Human Resources and Exchequer teams work closely together and payroll information is only added 
or amended following a formal instruction.

The main aims of the payroll service are to pay the correct people the correct amounts at the correct time.

Opinion

The audit has found that nine of the ten risks considered are now being mitigated effectively.  
Improvements have already been instigated with regard to records of Authorised signatories and with the 
processing of leavers. Further work on compliance with the new Data Protection Regulations is planned.

Management Response

Finance Manager - The findings of the audit are noted and where appropriate corrective action will be 
undertaken

HR Manager - I am pleased with the audit findings regarding the sickness procedure and related 
documentation. The findings regarding Leavers processes have been taken on board and the 
recommendations have been addressed. 

See following page for control table:

Page 190



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Payroll - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS RE KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

RISK AREA
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 2018

Feb 2018

R1. Fraudulent payments to 
ghost employees.

Checks and balances were found which reduce the risk of ghost 
employees being set up. Separation of duties throughout the 
process and the requirement for all posts to be approved by the 
Head of Paid Service contribute to this. 

G G

R2. Payments to incorrect 
individuals.

Experienced staff are used to set up employee payments and 
the details are then checked by up to two independent officers 
before payments begin. Signatory records can be improved.

A G

R3. Payments for incorrect 
amounts.

Employee salary levels are set up on the payroll system based 
on information provided by the HR team. All changes to payroll 
data are subject to validation by an independent officer.

G G

R4. Employee hardship as a 
result of late/non payments.

Payments were found to be timely with new starters set up 
promptly, timesheet data entered promptly and payroll runs 
occurring on schedule each month. 

G G

R5. Incorrect statutory 
deductions resulting in financial 
penalty. 

System parameters relating to Pay As You Earn deductions 
were found to match those as published on the Government 
website.

G G

R6. Inability to produce statutory 
returns or other key 
documentation such as P11D, 
P60.

Specialist payroll software is used to ensure the necessary 
returns can be produced. This includes Bond Team Spirit and 
Tax Shield. Data for these systems is securely and regularly 
backed up.

G G

R7. Financial penalties resulting 
from a data breach.

Both Torridge and North Devon Council (who host the payroll 
system) have layers of security reducing the risk of 
unauthorised access from inside or outside of the network.

G G

R8. Inefficient use of resources. Due to the nature of the system and the need to ensure probity 
it is necessary to have a wide range of checks and balances in 
place which invariably involves multiple officers. This can be 
resource intensive, however we did not identify any 
inefficiencies within the areas examined.

G G

R9. Material misstatements 
within the Accounts.

Accounting codes used are appropriate and reasonable. There 
are periodic reconciliations between the payroll system and 
general ledger to ensure postings are accurate. 

G G

R10. Reputational damage to 
the Authority, e.g. as a result of 
fraud or data breach

Effective actions are used to reduce opportunities for fraud 
thereby helping to protect the reputation of the Authority. IT 
Security around leavers should be improved.

A A

Page 191



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

ICT End User Controls – Satisfactory (3/4 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

No Previous Audit Opinion 

Background

The proliferation of the use of malware, and particularly ransomware, is merely a reflection of the ever 
increasing reliance upon information technology and use of logical data assets. The greater the 
opportunities, the greater the number of those wishing to exploit those opportunities. Almost all of the 
logical information, particularly personal information, has a financial value and Cyber-crime can be 
conducted from anywhere in the world.
Current Government and ICT industry initiatives have raised the profile of cyber and the risks associated 
with what represents a broad and ever evolving area of risk. The subject of Cyber Security continues to 
receive ever increasing exposure from the Government and mainstream media alike. Examples, such as 
the impact that the "Wanna Cry" ransomware attack had on the NHS, not only serve as a reminder of the 
impact that a cyber-attack can have on an organisation, but also the value of baseline good practice.   
HM Government's "Cyber Essentials Scheme" forms a baseline for the basic technical controls that 
organisations implement to mitigate the risk from common internet based threats. The "10 Steps to Cyber 
Security (Ten Steps)" guidance was launched in 2012 and further updated in January 2015 and provides a 
more comprehensive organisational approach to cyber security. Having already assessed the Councils 
ability to protect the corporate network and logical information assets against cyber threats using the Cyber 
Essentials Scheme, this audit concentrates on the non-technical elements contained within the Ten Steps 
framework. 

Cyber (Security) can be considered to be a body of technologies, processes and practices designed to 
protect networks, computers, programs and data from attack, damage or unauthorised access. 

Opinion

This high level review has found that 18 of the 28 controls reviewed were considered effective.  A limited 
number of remedial actions can provide tangible improvements to the remaining 10 controls. Note that 
multiple control weaknesses will be addressed by a limited number of key actions.  

Management Response

ICT Operational Manager - I agree with the findings of this audit. We have agreed a number of actions to 
address the issues identified by the auditor and to ensure that we have robust controls in place in this key 
area.

See following page for control table:

Page 192



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

ICT End User Controls - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS D
ec 2017

M
ar 2018

1. User Education & Awareness 
- Users have a critical role to 
play in their organisation’s 
security and so it's important 
that security rules, and the 
technology provided, enable 
users to do their job as well as 
help keep the organisation 
secure.

Improvements are needed in this crucial area. Both policy 
documentation and user guidance is in need of review and 
update in order to better mitigate the risks posed by poor 
user practice.
The end user becomes a potential security risk from day one 
of their employment within any organisation and there has not 
been a corporate induction in eighteen months. The need to 
improve the user guidance made available to staff and, the 
lack of a strong information governance culture, create clear 
control weaknesses. 

Opportunities to remedy the current position revolve around 
the creation of better user awareness through stronger 
information security induction and the introduction of clear 
user guidance. These opportunities do not require significant 
investment, although the further development of online tools 
could further aid both the user awareness process and 
consent management. 

2. Incident Management 
(Security) - All incidents are 
managed effectively, particularly 
those serious enough to warrant 
invoking the organisation’s 
business continuity or disaster 
recovery plans.

There is little recent evidence upon which to base the audit 
opinion in respect of major security incidents. However, the 
malware attack upon the Council in May 2015 ransomware 
attack provides assurance that the identification, response 
and review process in place is effective. 
The level of overall risk to the Council is heightened due to 
reliance upon a limited number of key ICT staff in the event of 
a major incident. This has been further exaggerated by the 
current absence of a senior manager to provide leadership 
and additional knowledge within the ICT Department.
Low level incidents are effectively managed via the Service 
Desk, with a good knowledgebase having been created 
within the ‘Heat’ Service Desk Solution. The ability to 
respond effectively to a Major Incident would be 
strengthened by creating appropriate procedures and advice 
within ‘Heat’.

3. Home & Mobile Working - 
Mobile working and remote 
system access offers great 
business benefits but exposes 
new risks that need to be 
managed. The organisation 
should establish risk based 
policies and procedures that 
support mobile working or 
remote access to systems that 
are applicable to users, as well 
as service providers.

This area is generally well controlled, with good technical 
controls in place and an effective device handover process 
that highlights both good and bad practice to mobile workers. 
Formal clarification of policy requirements would further 
strengthen this area.

Page 193



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

4. Removable Media Controls - 
Removable media provide a 
common route for the 
introduction of malware and the 
accidental or deliberate export 
of sensitive data. The 
organisation should be clear 
about the business need to use 
removable media and apply 
appropriate security controls to 
its use.

Whilst there is little in the way of effective policy or procedural 
documentation in this area, the technical controls in place 
provide a high level of assurance that only approved devices 
can be connected to end user computers. The clarification of 
the technical requirements for safeguarding the network from 
the unauthorised connection of devices within a formal policy 
would further strengthen assurance in this area.

Health & Safety – Marginal/Satisfactory (4/8 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (February 2012) – Good (7/8 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Background

Torridge District Council provides many and varied services to the population which it serves. In common 
with any other multifaceted businesses there will be some operations which by their very nature will be 
potentially more dangerous than others. Health & Safety legislation is very comprehensive and serious 
breaches may render the Council liable for fines, adverse publicity and in extreme circumstances 
prosecution for corporate manslaughter.

It is therefore essential that the Council has robust Health & Safety policies which will reduce the possibility 
of death or serious injury not only to its own staff but also to visitors to Council premises. The policies need 
to be appropriate to the level of risk identified.

As Health and Safety is a diverse and sometimes specialist area, the scope of the current audit has been 
restricted to providing assurance on the overall framework, i.e. the systems and processes that the 
Authority has in place to manage and respond to risks relating to Health and Safety. A limited amount of 
testing has also been carried out to ensure appropriate records of health and safety activities are being 
retained by those service areas deemed to operate in the most hazardous environments.

The audit is not intended as a substitute for any statutory or specialist Health and Safety inspections that 
may be required under current legislation.

Opinion 

The audit has found that four of the eight controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to ensuring sufficient resources are available to fulfil. 
  
Management Response

Regulatory Services Manager - Audit findings noted and accepted.

See following page for control table:
Page 194



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

H&S - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 18

M
ar 18

C1. The Authority has an 
established Health and Safety 
policy.

A policy statement and extensive sub policies are in place and 
published. All are now overdue for review and refresh. A A

C2. A competent person has 
been nominated to manage 
Health and Safety matters within 
the Authority.

The Authority has a nominated Health and Safety Advisor, 
however due to the number of hours allocated to the role having 
reduced significantly and the officer’s need to focus on his 
second unrelated role, this has left a resourcing gap which has 
resulted in key central Health and Safety activities not being 
maintained.

A A

C3. Appropriate Risk 
Assessments are in place.

A risk assessment policy is in place and examples were seen of 
risk assessments from the Waste and Recycling service along 
with those provided by contractors.

G G

C4. Workplaces and premises 
are reviewed and inspected and 
actions taken to manage risks 
identified.

A range of Health and Safety related workplace inspections take 
place. Many, but not all, were found to be up to date. A A

C5. Appropriate training has 
been undertaken and kept up to 
date by relevant officers.

Training begins with induction and is developed in accordance 
with the needs of the role. A reasonable budget has been 
allocated and all Operational Management Team members have 
recently attended a multi day IOSH course.

G G

C6. Procedures have been 
established for Accident and 
Incident Reporting.

Procedures are in place but are overdue for review and update. 
Records such as accident reporting forms and the summary 
sheet could be improved by ensuring they are fully completed.

A A

C7. Risk registers are in place Each service area has an operational risk register. The 
Corporate Risk Register includes entries with a Health and 
Safety aspect.

G G

C8. Health and Safety 
arrangements cover contractors 
as well as direct employees.

Health and Safety arrangements are integral to the tendering 
process for new contracts. Evidence was seen of ongoing H&S 
monitoring for an existing major contract (Leisure centres).

G G

Page 195



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

KPIs – Satisfactory (5/7 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

No Previous Audit Opinion 

Background

Each year targets are agreed for the Council’s Key Performance Indicators and progress is reported to 
Members via the Quarterly Business Reports. The measures are also used to compare the Council’s 
performance with other similar authorities.

For this audit we were asked to review the collection methods and validate a selection of 7 key 
performance indicators:

LE546 – End to end times for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s); 
BV012 – Average number of sickness days per employee; 
LE600b – Average number of Full Time Equivalent Posts; 
NI191 – Residual Household Waste
NI192 – % of household waste recycled; 
LE821 - Fly tipping incidents and number of fly tipping enforcement actions; 
LE252 - % of One Stop enquiries.

Opinion 

The audit has found that five of the seven indicators tested were reliable.  Improvements can be made with 
regard to ensuring that source data is accurate and reliable and ensuring that data entry is carried out 
accurately. 

Management Response

Governance Manager - I am pleased that the audit findings have given confidence in the way these key 
PI’s are being collated and reported. The minor data corrections will be made and these will be investigated 
to avoid in the future.

We welcome the suggestions for improvement which will be reviewed and where appropriate implemented.

See following page for control table:

Page 196



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

KPIs - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

Performance Indicator
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 2018

M
ar 2018

LE546 – E2E Times for DFG’s The methodology appears reasonable however changes to the 
way in which the data is reported could present it more 
favourably.

G G

LE600b – Average number of 
FTE’s

The methodology appears reasonable however the reliability of 
source data needs to be improved.

A A

BV012 - Sickness The methodology appears reasonable. Accuracy is dependant 
on FTE figures however these have been reported as an issue 
separately above.

G G

NI191 – Residual Household 
Waste Per Household

The process is generally robust and well defined, however some 
errors in the data were identified. A A

NI192 – Percentage of Household 
Waste Sent for Recycling

The process is considered robust and well defined. No errors 
were noted in our limited testing.

G G

LE821 – Fly Tipping Supporting records were retained and were agreed to 
SPAR.net. Cumbersome process for collating statistics could 
introduce errors which would go undetected.

G G

LE252 – One Stop The process appears reasonable and CS staff demonstrated a 
good understanding of what constitutes a ‘one-stop’ resolution.

G G

Page 197



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Cemeteries – Satisfactory (7/9 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (November 2014) – Satisfactory (6/9 controls were effective at the time of 
publishing)

Background

Torridge District Council is empowered to be a burial authority as detailed in the Local Government Act, 
1972. Statutory regulations for managing and maintaining cemeteries are laid down in The Local 
Authorities’ Cemeteries Order, 1977.  

The Cemeteries service at Torridge is responsible for burials and the management and maintenance of the 
four open cemeteries: Bideford (Higher Cemetery), Torrington (New Street), Holsworthy (Standbury Cross), 
Northam (Bone Hill); and for maintaining six closed cemeteries across the district. Crematoria Services are 
run separately, in partnership with North Devon District Council.

The administration activities for cemeteries (maintaining the Register of Graves, maintaining site plans, 
booking burials and liaising with Undertakers) have been centralised at Caddsdown Business Centre, 
reporting to the Property and Contracts Manager. 

Grave digging, grave-re-instatement, and grounds maintenance activities have been contracted out as part 
of the wider grounds maintenance contract. Torridge also employ a part-time caretaker at the Bideford 
cemetery who lives on-site and reports to the Head of Operational Services.

Opinion 

The audit has found that seven of the nine controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to the accuracy of site plans and systems of annotation and system security. 

Management Response

Property Manager - The Service is going through a period of change with the relocation of services from 
Customer Services to Caddsdown with new staff and software being employed. This also allows the 
opportunity for streamlining and updating processes and procedures. This clearly, with other staff changes, 
has meant some issues are not fully up to date but are in hand.

See following page for control table:

Page 198



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Cemeteries - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

M
ar 18

A
pr 18

C1. The Cemeteries services are 
operated in accordance with the 
organisation’s approved policies and 
financial procedure rules; Key 
employees are appropriately qualified 
and/or skilled, experienced; Officers 
and contracted third parties operate 
in accordance with legislation.

The Property Manager is conversant with key legislation and provides 
advice and support to other staff as necessary.
Third parties such as ISS (Grounds Maintenance) are subject to formal 
contracts and a Cemeteries Code of Working Practice. G G

C2. There is documentary evidence 
to demonstrate that fees are charged 
accurately and collected in a timely 
manner and that fees are reviewed 
annually and increased as necessary 
(with approval by Committee).

Fees and charges are reviewed on an annual basis and approved by the 
Community and Resources Committee. For 2017-18 this occurred on 
19/12/16. Fees and charges are published on the Authority’s web-site 
and payment for services is received in advance.

G G

C3. Income collection and banking 
are carried out regularly and promptly 
and arrangements with any third 
parties are properly monitored (and 
any debt recovery processes are 
effectively managed).

Payments are received in advance of the service. Income is promptly 
banked and posted to the Cemeteries account code in an accurate and 
timely manner. G G

C4. Regular surveys are undertaken 
to ensure that site plans are current 
and that all relevant parties are 
working with up-to-date information

In accordance with the Local Authority Cemeteries Order 1977, detailed 
plans are held which record the layout of Cemeteries and the plot 
numbers. One incorrectly named plot and inconsistent use of 
annotations on working copy maps reduce the overall reliability. The 
master copy of the maps is not being updated regularly due to software 
licensing issues.

A A

C5. All financial records and accounts 
are updated correctly and reconciled 
to the GL on a regular basis 

The posting of information between financial systems occurs promptly. A 
record of income received is maintained by staff at Caddsdown however 
there is no formal reconciliation. A reconciliation of 2017-18 income by 
the Accountancy team specifically for this audit found no variances.

G G

C6. Information and key records are 
protected from loss, damage or 
unauthorised access. 

Access to both electronic data and paper based records is controlled; 
however Cemetery Pro access controls were generally weak. Electronic 
data is subject to regular backups however there was uncertainty 
regarding whether this included the AutoCAD mapping database. 
Manual ledgers are unique and any loss would be permanent. They are 
held in a fireproof safe.
There is duplication for more recent burials which are recorded manually 
and electronically, a source of inefficiency.

A A

C7. Management information is 
regularly reviewed in terms of 
budgetary monitoring and service 
performance and profitability

The Corporate Property Manager and support Accountant discuss the 
budget quarterly and address any developing issues. 
SPAR.net is used to record performance related information such as 
LE406.

G G

C8. Premises are regularly checked 
and maintained to ensure operational 
effectiveness, general 
tidiness/respectfulness, and public 
safety

Grounds maintenance is carried out under contract by ISS, who were 
appointed from April 2014. Contract monitoring is carried out by 
members of the Property team.
Cemeteries visited during the audit appeared well maintained.

G G

C9. Business Continuity Plans 
include natural emergencies which 
may result in increased death rates 
and how these may be managed at 
the cemeteries.

A Business Continuity Plan was in place for the Property and 
Procurement Service. A key recovery objective is cemetery management 
in the event of large numbers of deaths.

G G

Page 199



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Risk Management – Satisfactory (5/8 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (May 2017) – Satisfactory (6/8 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The Authority’s Risk Management (RM) Strategy defines RM as the process by which risks are identified, 
assessed, managed and controlled. It is about the way the Council recognizes and plans to deal with the 
possibility of failing to achieve its corporate and service objectives. It is concerned with identifying the risks, 
evaluating the impact and likelihood, recording what is in place to mitigate the risks, and if the risks are still 
too high to take further action to mitigate the risks effectively. 

The RM process at service level is the responsibility of each Operational Manager. Operational Managers 
are required to maintain a risk register which identifies and evaluates the key service risks that are 
considered unacceptable and require more regular review and closer monitoring. At the strategic level, 
there is a Corporate Risk Register which is managed through the Risk Management Group, led by the 
Strategic Manager - Resources who then report to the Senior Management Team (SMT). SMT then review 
the Corporate Risk Register and conduct horizon scanning in order to identify potential future risks. 
Corporate Risks are a standing item on the agenda of the Audit & Governance Committee which meets 
throughout the year. The whole process is governed by the Risk Management Strategy, which has a three 
year review cycle when it is updated and approved by SMT.    

In 2015 the Authority introduced Integrated Business Plans which now include operational risk registers. 
This was to help embed risk management and ensure risks are considered at key points such as during 
development of the plans.

Opinion 

The audit has found that five of the eight controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to provision of RM training; frequency of RMG meetings; quality and update frequency of 
risk register information including those covering partnerships and major projects. 

Management Response

Strategic Manager (Resources) - It is encouraging to see and note that some improvements and progress 
have been made since the previous audit, although also a few backward steps. I acknowledge however, 
that there is still plenty of opportunity to make more significant improvements through better training, 
awareness and developing simpler processes for the lower level service area risk registers, which can be 
achieved quite easily during the year.  

Four Corporate Risk Management Group meetings have been scheduled for this year with the first having 
already taken place on 16 April. There is also (just set up) a regional risk management group, which will 
enable us to learn from how others manager this process and share best practice. I attended the inaugural 
meeting on 25 April.  

See following page for control table:

Page 200



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Risk Management - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

M
ar 2018

A
pr 2018

C1. There is a risk management 
strategy and process in place that 
has been approved and is regularly 
reviewed. 

A RM Strategy and RM Process documents are in place and were last 
reviewed and approved by Senior Management in June 2015, on a three year 
cycle. 

G G

C2. The Senior Management Team 
and Members play an effective role 
in monitoring risk management 
arrangements 

The Audit and Governance Committee had received periodic reports on Risk 
Management (RM) and the Corporate Risk Register, A copy of the register 
had been provided for critical review for 3 of the 5 meetings (per the Agenda 
packs and minutes).

The Strategic Management Team hold discussions on RM at each meeting, 
including Horizon Scanning. The Risk Management Group have only met two 
times during the current year, down from five last year.

A A

C3. The risk management 
framework is aligned with the 
Authority's strategic plan and in 
particular the service business plans 
and performance management 
arrangements.

Service risk registers are subsumed into each service area’s Integrated 
Business Plan. The Plans include cross references to strategic goals, 
especially with regard to overall service objectives and actions (as opposed to 
the risks). The Plans also include details of both performance measures and 
risks.

G G

C4. The risk management strategy 
and process is communicated to 
senior staff, and those dealing with 
risk. A risk owner is assigned to 
each risk and Risk management 
training is provided to officers as 
appropriate.

The Strategy and Process documents had both been updated in June 2015 
and are published on the intranet where they are available to all staff. Risk and 
action owners are assigned to each risk within the Corporate and Service Risk 
Registers. 

There has been no formal training on Risk Management since 2014.

A A

C5. The roles and responsibilities of 
individuals in managing risk are 
defined, communicated and 
understood. There are clear and 
effective reporting lines for risk 
management both up and down the 
organisation.

Roles and responsibilities of members and officers in managing risk are 
defined in the Authority’s Constitution and to a lesser degree the Risk 
Management Strategy. Corporate risks are monitored by RMG and reported to 
SMT and the A&G Committee.

G G

C6. Programme, project and 
partnership risks are considered as 
part of day to day service 
management.

The Authority has limited involvement with partnerships at the present time. 
Service Risk Registers are used to record relevant entries and mitigating 
actions, however these entries were not always SMART or up to date.
Major projects and contracts have RM as an embedded process and we saw 
evidence of a detailed and up to date risk log covering one of each of these.

G G

C7. Risk registers are in place and 
accurately describe the risk and 
consequence and show effective 
mitigating controls.

A Corporate (Strategic) and Service Risk Registers are in place. The format 
allows for sufficient detail to be captured however some issues remain around 
the quality and completeness of information, as well as the update frequency 
of the records.

A A

C8. There is a defined process for 
identifying, recording and managing 
new and emerging risks.

A RM Process document establishes the need to identify, assess, control, 
review and monitor, risks. The document includes a template for the 
submission of newly identified risks.
In practice, RMG, SMT and the A&G Committee all monitor risks throughout 
the year and RMG and SMT conduct ‘horizon scanning’ for new risks that may 
occur. Operational managers maintain Service Risk Registers.

G G

Page 201



Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Progress with Agreed Actions
Date: 12th June 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular report on progress with agreed 
actions. This report is set out at appendix A. 

2. REPORT
A summary of the position as at the 31st May is shown at Appendix A. 

Since the Audit & Governance Committee in February 2018 there has been 7 internal 
audit report issued containing 29 agreed new audit actions. In the same period there have 
been 32 actions completed by management. 

There were 18 internal audit actions due for completion by the end of May 2018 which 
were not completed on time. The responsible officers have been contacted and as a 
result:
- An extension has been agreed for 10 audit actions;
- A second extension has been proposed for 2 audit actions;
- One audit action has been recommended for archive;
- Five audit actions remain outstanding.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework where testing has shown risks are not being adequately managed. The agreed 
actions are evaluated using the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those 

Page 202

Agenda Item 13



risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 
directly to management for them to manage. The Internal Audit team report on progress in 
implementing the actions agreed with management to better control high and medium risks. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the 
Audit Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date - Councillor Philip Hackett – May 2018.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Since the A&G meeting in February 2018, 29 new actions have been identified in internal 
audit reports and 32 actions have been completed by management.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee are asked to:

 Agree second extension and archive requests
 Note the progress with actions in this Quarter

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace
Steve Hearse
Councillor Philip Hackett
Other officers as required

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 203



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st May 2018

Description Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total

Number of scheduled actions on last report (1/2/2018) 38 1 39
Number of new agreed actions this period 29 1 30

Total agreed actions   69  
Actions completed this period 32  32
    
Balance of scheduled actions (31/5/2017)   37
    
Number of actions where target date has not been achieved   18
    

Number of Scheduled Actions by Service  

Service Area Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total  Due by 

31/05/18
Due by 

30/09/18
Due After 
30/09/18

Accountancy Services 2  2   1 1
Commercial   0     
Customer Services   0     
Governance   0     
Housing Options 2  2  2   
Human Resources   0     
ICT 5  5  1 3 1
Legal Services 2  2  1 1  
Planning 2  2   1 1
Property 7  7   1 6
Regulatory 4 2 6   5 1
Revenues & Benefits   0     
Safeguarding 2  2    2
Waste & Recycling & Community Safety 1  1  1   
Strategic Manager (Services) 8  8   5 3

Total o/s actions 35 2 37  5 17 15

P
age 204



Appendix B - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st May 2018

First Extension Agreed

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit Action Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Health & Safety Janet Williams Extension 
Agreed

H&S Audit 
2017/18

Policy Framework - 
Availability

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
30/09/2018

Findings accepted. A review of all policies will be carried out and updated documents made available on 
the intranet. See action below

Health & Safety Janet Williams Extension 
Agreed

H&S Audit 
2017/18 Resource Issues

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
30/09/2018

Agreed Action - Identify the additional resource required to effectively carry out the role and have a full 
plan in place for that new resource. 
Resource need identified and work ongoing to complete plan of work and make appointment

Health & Safety Janet Williams Extension 
Agreed

H&S Audit 
2017/18

Fire Safety Risk 
Assessments

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
30/09/2018

Findings accepted and a review of fire safety is currently underway, this will be carried out and any 
updated documents made available on the intranet.
See action above

Housing  Simon Toon Extension 
Agreed

Housing Options 
Audit 2016/17 Data Protection

Was 
31/03/2018 

Now 
31/12/2018

Specifications for the new interview rooms to be based at Riverbank House include the use of CCTV, 
panic alarms and solid doors which will improve soundproofing and reduce the risk to confidentiality. 
Still working to agree final specifications

Planning Sean Kearney Extension 
Agreed

Planning Audit 
2017/18 The Local Plan

Was 
31/03/2018 

Now 
30/09/2018

We anticipate that the Plan will have cleared any final hurdles soon. There is a further hearing session 
planned for January to assist with this. 
Delayed by Planning Inspector requesting additional consultation.

Planning Diane 
Thompson

Extension 
Agreed

Planning Audit 
2017/18 Appeals

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
31/12/2018

We will be reviewing the appeals process in the new year with a view to making any necessary 
adjustments or improvements. Relevant team members will be made fully aware of the correct process
 to use.
Scheduled for completion later this year

Planning Diane 
Thompson

Extension 
Agreed

Planning Audit 
2017/18

System 
reconciliations

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
30/9/2018

We will liaise with the Accountancy team to explore whether this reconciliation is possible.
In progress - awaiting end of final accounts

Property Andrew Waite Extension 
Agreed

Asset Mgt Audit 
2017/18 Benchmarking

Was 
31/03/2018 

Now 
31/01/2019

We have been informed that due to insufficient resources within the property team, there have been 
no accurate Property Performance Indicators prepared during the last two years, other than rough 
estimates. Work priorities

Property Andrew Waite Extension 
Agreed

Asset Mgt Audit 
2017/18

Asset Management 
Plan

Was 
30/04/2018 

Now 
31/03/2019

The Asset Management Plan 2013-17 published on the website states it is closely aligned with the 
Capital Programme covering the same period. Page 22 sets out the Capital Programme budges from 
April 2013 to March 2017. As such the Asset Management Plan is now deemed to be out of date.  
Work priorities

Safeguarding  Simon Toon Extension 
Agreed

Safeguarding 
2016/17 Information Sharing

Was 
31/03/2018 

Now 
31/12/2018

A protocol should be developed so that all agencies have a clear understanding of information sharing 
requirements. This is being led by the DSCB (Devon Children’s Safeguarding Board). Liaison is ongoing.
 Work continues between the Devon District Safeguarding Group and the two boards to improve 
the level of communication, co-operation and the development of an information sharing 
agreement.

P
age 205

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1130
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1130
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1131
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1132
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1132
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1000
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1119
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1116
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1115
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1115
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1082
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1081
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1081
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1031


Second Extension Requested

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit Action Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Licensing Janet Williams Extension 
Requested

Licensing Audit 
2017/18

CSE Training for Taxi 
Drivers

Was 
31/12/2017 

Now 
31/03/2019

We encourage the service to work alongside the Police Force to provide CSE training to all taxi drivers.  
The service should consider the following;
• Whether the course needs to be undertaken by internal or external route.  There are external providers 
available which have been identified by other local authorities.
• To establish the type of training required in order to comply with best practice.  Drivers would be
 expected to complete 1-1 training.  In benchmarking it was evident that some authorities have chosen 
to implement different types of training; 1-1 training, and use of e learning materials/modules.
• To determine whether there is a benefit in working with other authorities (this could result in cost saving, 
as well as providing consistency of training across the Devon area).
• To determine the frequency of training and the need for refresher training (both should be 
communicated to taxi drivers once this is known)
• Ensuring that the Licensing system retains a central record of training undertaken by taxi drivers
for monitoring purposes.  (The Licensing service has confirmed that their current licensing system 
could be updated to enable recording and monitoring of Taxi Driver CSE training).
We have made more information available in our newsletter and circulated more guidelines 
and a utube training video. We were awaiting North Devon for a joint training session but may 
now have to do something ourselves.

Community 
Safety Janet Williams Extension 

Requested
CSP Audit 
2017/18

Annual Strategic 
Assessment

Was 
31/05/2018 

Now 
31/8/2018

Complete the annual strategic assessment to report to the appropriate committee
External dependency - This is still in production with the Safer Devon Partnership but should 
be completed in August

Archive Requested

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit Action Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Property  Adrian 
Redwood

Milestone 
Missed

LLPG Audit 
2015/16

Street Name & 
Numbering Was 31/3/2018

Module owned and licensed by TDC, however, it is not used. The module setup needs reviewing and 
training will be required by IDOX. There will be a financial implication. We will review and discuss options 
with the ICT Service however resources for this are limited at present so it will be actioned as a longer
 term project.
There are issues between the SAM and IDOX systems that have stopped this initiative from moving 
forward

P
age 206

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1093
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1093
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1078
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1078
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=916
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=916


Outstanding Issues

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit Action Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Legal Jamie Hollis Milestone 
Missed

Data Protection 
2014/15

Privacy Within 
Corporate Buildings

Was 31/3/2017 
Now 31/3/2018

Originally 31/3/2015. Consideration will be given to whether it is possible to improve privacy within 
corporate buildings for members of the public who wish to discuss confidential matters. This will need to 
be deferred until after the current Accommodation Review is complete. Delays to Transformation 
Torridge Programme - this cannot be addressed until office moves have been completed. 
Decision to re-tender has further delayed the office move which is now anticipated in March 2017. 
Completion depends on redevelopment of Riverbank House, expected late Summer 2018

Waste Richard Haste Milestone 
Missed

Procurement Audit 
2016/17 Formal Contracts

Was 
30/09/2016 

Now 
30/09/2017

We acknowledge that there is no formal agreement in place, Peake GB are a specialist provider who
we have used for many years, and we hold risk assessments to ensure that both parties are aware of and 
can manage risk associated with the service.
We have recently reviewed clinical waste collections which should result in a significant reduction in the 
costs payable to the contractor. If the ongoing costs associated with the service warrant it (are expected 
to be over £30k per year), we will carry out a formal tendering exercise and draw up a formal agreement 
between the partner Authorities and the contractor. This was to have been a joint procurement 
exercise by Torridge, North Devon and Mid Devon but North Devon and Mid Devon have shelved 
this. The current arrangement with Peake (although without a contract) allows for the subsidy of
their disposal charge by the collection costs - if we go to the market then in any new arrangement 
will cost more for Torridge as the disposal element will have to be put into the existing county 
contract which is considerably lower. Other Councils do not want to change existing 
arrangements and incur more costs

Housing Helen Page Milestone 
Missed

Housing Options 
Audit 2016/17 Grants Scheme 31/03/2018

The use of loans and the prevention fund, as a prevention tool, is currently under review.

A cost benefit analysis of investment in prevention is to be undertaken. Anecdotal evidence to date 
suggests that it is more cost effective to loan priority need households money, even when the probability 
of recovery is unlikely, than cover the cost of securing temporary accommodation. If the Authority were 
to cease offering financial assistance to non-priority households, then it would become more difficult for
 these households to access housing, and this could lead to an increase in rough sleepers. As part of 
any cost benefit analysis consideration needs to be given to the impact on local communities, and the 
cost to the Authority of not providing this assistance i.e. ASB, tents and rubbish, complaints etc.
No update provided

Housing Helen Page Milestone 
Missed

Housing Options 
Audit 2016/17

Policy and 
Procedures 31/03/2018

We would recommend that the accuracy and reliability of the source data be improved and that care be 
taken to ensure that SPAR.net entries match those on the supporting records. Figures to be reviewed 
and discrepancies investigated and resolved.
No update provided

ICT  Roger Jenkins Milestone 
Missed

Cyber Audit 
2017/18

ICT Security 
Guidance & Policy 
Suite

31/05/2018
Completion of the new ICT Information Security Policy and Guidance suite will be finalised and 
approved in the next few months and fulfils the requirements of the recommended actions.
No update provided

P
age 207

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=817
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=817
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=999
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=995
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=995
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1123
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1123
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1123


       .

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2018/19

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8
12/6/18 24/718 20/11/18 19/2/19

Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules

RIPA

Annual Governance 
Statement: final review

Code of Corporate 
Governance Draft AGS

Governance

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

Audit 
Committee

Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee

Risk 
Management Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk 

Register

Audit Manager’s Opinion Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2018/19

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with
Agreed ActionsInternal Audit

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Draft Accounts Presentation & Approval 
of Accounts & AGS

Preparation for the 
2019/20 AccountsAccounts Report on 

Going Concern
Update 
report

Update 
report

Update 
report

Audit Findings Report Annual Audit Letter Annual Certification 
Letter

Letter of Representation External Audit Plan
External 
Audit

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

P
age 208

A
genda Item

 15



Corporate Assurance Risk Register

June 2018

Contents

Section 1 3 Stage Risk Scoring Process

Brief description of the 3 stage risk scoring process and clarification of each stage

Section 2 Risk Matrix

The matrix used for calculating Risk score.

Section 3 Corporate Assurance Risk Register

- Inherent, Current and Target scores

- Controls and Assurances

- Future Actions and comments.

Torridge District Council’s Corporate Assurance and Risk Register is a best practice template for recording and managing risks. The Council also promotes 
the use of Assurance and Risk Registers for managing risks within service areas which are recorded and managed in service and project plans.

The Risk Register is a management tool where a review and updating process identifies, assesses and manages down the risk to acceptable levels. It 
provides a framework in which problems that may arise and adversely affect the delivery of the Council’s aims and priorities are captured and actions 
instigated to reduce the likelihood and impact of that particular risk.

P
age 209

A
genda Item

 16



Section 1 - Three Stage Risk Scoring Process

Torridge District Council operates a 3 Stage Risk Scoring process as outlined in the Council’s Risk Management Strategy which is available on the Council 
intranet site. The information below offers a brief overview of each stage of the Risk process.

Inherent score – the risk scored with no controls, assurances or actions in place.

Current score – the risk scored with controls, assurances and progressed actions.

Target score – the risk score with controls and assurances in place and linked actions completed.

As controls and assurances are put in place and actions completed the Risk will be more controlled and, therefore, the current score moves towards the 
Target Score.

P
age 210



Section 2 - Risk Matrix

E X A M P L E S OF IMPACT
Reputational Compliance Financial Service Provision / 

Continuity

CORPORATE RISK GRID

 National publication 
(name and shame) by 
external body leading 
to a loss of control 
over the running of 
Council operations 

 Front page of national 
paper

 Facing serious 
penalties or prosecution 
& criticism from 
institutions such as 
Ombudsman, Info. 
Commissioner 

 Customers are treated 
unfairly & suffer 
damage by the Council

 Over £400k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council. 

 Service delivery 
affected by over 3 
months. 

 Statutory / critical 
service delivery will 
cease for a period 
of time without any 
effective 
contingency.

High 3 6 9 12

 National or local 
front‐page press article 
leading to a reduced 
ability to affectively 
deliver one or more 
services. 

 National press article

 The Council may face 
criticism and be ordered 
to comply with 
legislation by an 
external body as a 
result of a breach

 Between 
£100k‐£399k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council

 Delivery affected 
between 1 & 3 
months. 

 Loss of a 
non‐critical service 
for a significant 
period of time.

Medi
um 2 4 6 8

 Disgruntled local 
groups/ individuals 
possibly leading to 
internal complaints 
with research into the 
causes

 Local press article &/or 
ombudsman enquiry

 The Council may 
commit largely 
undetectable breaches 
in legislation

 Internal procedure 
breaches that could 
have other minor effects 
on reputation, service 
delivery etc.

 Between 
£10k-£99k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council.

 Delivery affected 
by up to 1 month.  

 Minor disruption or 
inconvenience to 
service delivery & 
customers. 
(Reduced staffing, 
late opening, temp 
loss of IT).

Low 1 2 3 4

EXAMPLES OF LIKELIHOOD
Low Medium High Very High

Less than 10% 
chance of 
occurrence
Never 
happened 
before
Circumstance 
never 
encountered

10% to 40% 
chance of 
occurrence
Only likely to 
happen once 
every 3 or 
more years
Circumstances 
rarely 
encountered

41% to 75% 
chance of 
occurrence
Likely to happen 
at some point in 
the next 3 years
Circumstances 
occasionally 
encountered

More than 
75% chance of 
occurrence
Regular 
occurrence
Circumstances 
frequently 
encountered

P
age 211



Risk
Title

1. Balanced Budget 

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR1 Risk that inability to deliver savings and a balanced budget will 

result in an in year overspend
Steve Hearse Strategic Financial

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Budget setting process to identify deliverable savings through budget proposal reports to SMT, Members, Scrutiny 

Committee, C&R Committee and Council.  Assurance – Reports to and minutes of meetings.
2. Control – Management oversight of budget monitoring through Quarterly Business Review, Capital Asset Management Working 

Group, Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring report.  Assurance – QBR Report.
3. Control – Leader and Head of Paid Service challenge to Services through SMT.  Assurance – Minutes of meetings.
4. Control – Head of Paid Service challenge to SMT and OMT.  Assurance – Minutes of Team meetings and emails.
5. Control – Budget profiling continually reviewed to ensure accurate forecasting and refined in light of actual spend patterns. 

Assurance – Reports to and minutes of meetings
6. Control – Regular monitoring of overall budget and budget savings through Member and officer Governance arrangements, 

including SMT, Scrutiny, C&R, and Council. Assurance – Minutes of meetings
7. Control - Grant Thornton VFM and Financial Resilience exercise carried out annually provides assurance in the report that the 

Council has robust systems in place and that we are in a strong financial position going forward. Assurance – Grant Thornton 

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL1 
=2

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise opportunities
Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

1 The Medium Term Financial 
Strategy will be reviewed in 
January / February 2018

Steve 
Hearse

26 
February 

2018

Completed – However, the report 
identified a small £0.4m Budget Gap as at 
2022/23.  A Member workshop is being 
scheduled for June / July to consider 
options to close the gap (New Action). 
Report required to C&R

 2 Business rates revaluations – to 
evaluate the impact on TDCs 
finances and MTFS

Steve 
Hearse

26 
February  

2018
Completed – TDCs 2017/18 Financial 
Statements still reporting growth in 
Business Rates.  

I2xL1 
=2

3 Fair funding review and move to 
100% Business Rates Retention

Steve 
Hearse

Revised 
date – 

December 
2019

MHCLG work ongoing and unclear as yet 
the impact either will have on TDC 
finances.  It is for 2020/21 financial year 
and we maintain a watching brief to 
ensure evaluate any proposals as they 
emerge.

Target 
risk 

score

4 Living wage and review of salaries 
– evaluate the impact 

Steve 
Hearse

26 Completed - Impacts of living wage now 
built into Budget 2018/19 and MTFS.  

P
age 212



February 
2018

Next phase is to incorporate the changes 
to the pay structure.

5 Successful implementation of the 
Waste & Recycling Project 

Richard 
Haste

30 June 
2018

On track with the target (10,000) number 
of chargeable garden waste subscriptions 
9,333 as of 01 June 2018.  New service 
live on 4 June 2018. Temporary site being 
used to store new vehicles.

NEW 6 Member workshop to review 
MTFS and Capital Programme 
and report to Members

Steve 
Hearse

30 Sept 
2018

NEW 7 Revisit and review Transforming 
Torridge Programme savings 
plans once staff relocated to 
Riverbank House

Steve 
Hearse

31 Jan 
2019

P
age 213



Risk
Title

2. Human Resource 

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR2 A draft workforce plan has been developed. The Transforming 

Torridge programme is underway with project plans in place. 
There are a few remaining temporary arrangements across the 
Council.

Sarah Ayres Strategic Service Provision Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)

List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control –Individual services complete business plans. Temporary staffing arrangements utilised where necessary.  Assurance –

arrangements approved via GWAF process. 
2. Control – An outline Workforce Plan has been developed.  Vacancy controls will be maintained. Assurance – All vacancies are 

managed by GWAF process and filling of vacant posts is scrutinised by HRM and HoPS.

Current 
risk 

score

L3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate risk 

/ maximise opportunities
Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

1 High number of vacancies in Planning 
service currently covered by agency 
staff

Sean 
Kearney / 

Sarah 
Ayres

31 March 
2018

Completed - Planning team now 
adequately resourced and moved to 
business as usual. 

2 New Human Resources microsite has 
been developed and is due to be 
launched 1 December 2017

Sarah 
Ayres

31 
December 

2017

Completed – Microsite went live in May 
2018 and now all vacancies advertised 
on it.

NEW 3 Staff resources for Waste & Recycling 
and new service.  High turnover and 
shortage in some key areas e.g. HGV 
drivers. 

Sarah 
Ayres/ 

Richard 
Haste

N/a
New service going live on 4 June 
2018

NEW 4 The two year pay award (2018/19 & 
2019/20) involved changes and 
amalgamation of a number of spinal 
points, which impact around 188 staff.

Sarah 
Ayres 31 March 

2019

P
age 214



Risk
Title

3. Reputation of the Council

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR3 Risk that failure to manage and control the Council’s 

actions/activities will result in adverse publicity and significantly 
damage the reputation of the Council.

Jamie Hollis Strategic Reputation
Inherent 

risk 
score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Progress with business plans is monitored via quarterly business reviews (QBR) and key performance indicators (KPI). 

Assurance – QBR’s and KPI’s reported to SMT and Committees who challenge as appropriate.
2. Control – Properly functioning committees and working groups.  Assurance – Constitution and minutes of meetings
3. Control – Monitoring of all Freedom of Information requests Democratic Services and Communications to assess and anticipate 

appropriate response.  Assurance – Minutes of meetings
4. Control – Monitoring and reporting of Complaints.  Assurance – Ensure learning points and highlight areas of concern.  Emails to 

managers and regular reporting of stats to members via bulletin.
5. Control – Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee oversee Cllr behaviour Assurance – Minutes of meetings and monitoring 

officer reports
6. Control – Monitoring information about the Council in the local media.  Assurance – Formal responses to press enquiries 

including  quotations from Councillors. Proactive placing of positive news stories.
7. Control – Property Team oversea major decisions and major projects.  Assurance – Officers are responsible for carrying out due 

diligence and for checking that this has taken place. 

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

 1 Port and Harbour Safety Code Sean 
Kearney

Revised 
date       
30 

September 
2018

Harbour master has reviewed the existing code and 
now needs to be updated. 

2 New GDPR coming into force 25 
May 2018 with wide ranging 
impacts on data protection 
legislation and requirements

Jamie 
Hollis

31 March 
2018

New regulations now in place from 25 May 2018.  
TDC been working with Devon Audit Partnership to 
implement the change.  Some areas still outstanding 
and waiting software companies to release upgrade to 
manage data deletion where necessary, etc.

NEW 3 New Waste and Recycling 
Service being implemented with 
effect from 4 June 2018 affecting 
every household

Richard 
Haste

30 June 
2018

Project plan in place, which includes risk and 
communications plans. Significantly higher than 
expected calls and customers at receptions being 
dealt with.  A separate “call centre” team established 
to manage calls fro new and existing service.   
Communications feeding out continuously.

P
age 215



Risk
Title

4. Business Continuity

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR4 Risk that following an unforeseen event the Council’s 

business continuity processes are not robust enough to 
enable provision of key services in an emergency.

Jon Walter Strategic Business Continuity
Inherent 

risk 
score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Corporate Business Continuity Plan.  Assurance – Corporate Business Continuity Plan
2. Control – Service Business Continuity Plans monitored by SMT.  Assurance – Update reports to SMT.
3. Control – Identification and prioritisation of Corporate ICT systems for recovery as part of Business Continuity Plan (under 

review).  Assurance – Reviewed annually by SMT.  Monthly monitoring by ICT and by Emergency Planning.
4. Control – ICT System processes and skills in place to re-establish key systems.  Assurance – Processes being 

documented for review and testing
5. Control – External and independent review / audit of Cyber Security.  Assurance – Reported to SMT to 

implement appropriate actions where necessary and Audit & Governance Committee. 

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL2 
=4

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

1 Zurich to undertake a Business 
Continuity review and report

Jon Walter 28 
February 
2017 – 

revised 31 
March 
2018

Completed – report produced and workshop 
held with SMT / OMT to formulate the 
“Business Impact Analysis” for TDC, which 
will guide the overarching BC strategy 
document.

2 Arrangements for telephony and 
disaster recovery at Caddsdown

Steve 
Hearse

31 July 
2017 - 
revised

Reviewed of existing infrastructure completed 
for scope of project.  Upgrade required 
before can update and will commence 
following the completion of the upgrade to the 
Corporate telephony system.

Target 
risk 

score

I2xL1 
=2

NEW 3 Development of Corporate 
Business Continuity Strategy, 
which will form the basis of our 
business needs infrastructure e.g. 
telephony, IT and physical office 
space. 

Jon Walter 30 
September 

2018

The output from the workshop identified the 
key critical services that need to be mobilised 
in priority order.  The next stage is to 
determine the enabling requirements needs 
to put this in place should an event occur.

NEW 4 Upon completion of the strategy 
and putting in place the Jon Walter 30 

P
age 216



requirements to deliver it in the 
event of an incident testing needs 
to take place to ensure is fit for 
purpose.

November 
2018

P
age 217



Risk
Title

5. Civil Emergencies

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR5 Risk that following an unforeseen event the council cannot 

respond to an emergency and fulfil its statutory duties under 
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  Putting the public at risk 
and damage to the Authorities reputation.

Richard Haste Strategic Compliance
Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL3 
=9

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Corporate Emergency Plan and specific plans in place.  Assurance – Emergency Plans
2. Control – Members of OMT and SMT trained to respond to an emergency.  Assurance – Training provided
3. Control – Member of the Local Resilience Forum.  Multi agency group responsible for ensuring Category 1 duties are fulfilled  

Assurance – Attendance by Waste and Recycling Manager at regular multi agency meetings
4. Control – Out of hour’s standby service operating 24/7.  Assurance – Trained officers duty rota
5. Control – Member of the Northern Devon Responders Forum and Blue Light Forum, when local incidents are discussed and 

planned for.  Assurance – Attendance by Waste and Recycling Manager on a quarterly basis

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL2 
=4

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further 

mitigate risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on 
progress

RAG Status

1 Training for Members on 
emergency planning and 
dealing with emergencies

Richard Haste 30 June 2019 This will be included in the 
Members training for the new 
Council.

2 Refresher training for OMT / 
SMT on roles of silver officers

Richard Haste 30 November 
2018

JW / AR to be given full training 
and OMT refresher – this has 
been completed.  Refresher 
training still outstanding. JW / 
AR training taken place.

Target 
risk 

score

I2xL1 
=2

P
age 218



Risk
Title

6. Safeguarding children and 
vulnerable adults

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR6 Officers and members of the Authority may not identify and 

report to the MASH any vulnerable adults or children that are 
at risk of abuse as required by the Children’s Act. Putting 
individuals at risk, damage to the Council’s reputation and 
possible financial/legal implications (eg. Baby Peter case)

Steve Hearse Strategic Compliance
Financial

Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – A Safeguarding Policy has been approved.  Assurance – Approved by Full Council.
2. Control – There is Council representation at Multi Agency Safeguarding and Harm meetings.  Assurance – Meeting minutes.
3. Control – Training has and will take place for Safeguarding Officers.  Assurance – Attendance list.
4. Control – A Lead Safeguarding Officer and deputy have been appointed. A Safeguarding Group has been established.  

Assurance – Lead Safeguarding Officer and Deputy positions have been filled by the Strategic Manager (Resources) and the 
Customer Support Manager. Group includes the HRM and Senior Solicitor to cover Members and Staff

5. Control – 2014-15 s11 Return submitted. Demonstrated compliance with requirements Assurance – Return completed. 
6. Control – Attendance of Devon wide leads meeting by either Head or Deputy 

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

1 Additional training on suicide / 
prevent agenda

Steve Hearse 31 
December 

2016

Completed.

2 ‘s11 Audit and report required for 
2017.  New format

Steve Hearse 30 
September 

2017

Completed.

P
age 219



Risk
Title

7. Corporate Manslaughter

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR7 Risk that a fatality occurs and the council are found to have 

failed to ensure the safety of staff and/or public resulting in the 
Council being charged with Corporate Manslaughter. This will 
result in financial/legal implications (prosecution and unlimited 
fines). If a prohibition notice is issued it will stop Council 
activities until non-compliance has been rectified. Adverse 
publicity will cause damage to reputation of the Council. Senior 
Officers may also be subject to fines and imprisonment

Head of Paid 
Service/SMT

Strategic Compliance
Financial

Performance
Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control –The Council has in place health and safety policies and procedures which are reviewed and updated as necessary by 

the Corporate H&S Advisor.  Assurance – Available to view on council intranet site; Corporate Health and Safety Policy last 
reviewed July 2014. Policies are reviewed as a minimum every 3 years. They were last updated April 2012.

2. Control – All services have risk assessments in place. Specific risk assessments for high risk areas such as asbestos and 
legionella.  Assurance – Service managers responsible for undertaking and maintaining risk assessments in their own areas. 
Audits by Corporate H&S Advisor. 

3. Control – All Council Buildings and Public areas are subject to programmed and reactive maintenance. Risk assessments, 
inspections and audits undertaken. Assurance – Budget managed by Property Services, Records maintained. 

4. Control – All fleet vehicles are subject to routine servicing, maintenance and MOT as necessary. Assurance – Maintenance 
and servicing records, vehicle defect reports and subsequent actions recorded.

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status Target 

risk 
score

I3xL1 
=3

1 All H&S assessments need to be 
updated following training

Janet Williams Revised 
Date -      

31 March 
2019

Revised action date of 30 June 2017. 
Progressing but not complete as of 
November 17. Works continuing in this 
area.

2 Organise training for SMT Janet Williams Revised 
Date – 30 

September  
2018

Training provider/ course found, to 
progress by end of year.

P
age 220



P
age 221


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Audit Manager's Opinion
	6a - Torridge - Internal Audit Annual Monitoring Report 2017-18

	7 Annual Governance Statement - Final Review
	7a - Appendix A - 2018 Approved Code of Governance
	7b - Appendix B - List of Governance Principles
	7c - Appendix C - 2017-18 AGS Action Pan (Ranked by Officer Suggestion of Highest Priority
	7d - Appendix D - 2017-18 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	7e - Appendix E - Officer suggestions for priority actions to include in the AGS

	8 Draft Accounts 2017 - 2018
	9 Waivers and Non-compliance with Procedure Rules
	10 2018/19 Audit Fee Letter
	11 Grant Thornton Update Report
	12 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	13 Progress with Agreed Audit Actions
	15 Forward Plan
	16 Corporate Assurance Risk Register - June 2018



